GUARANTEED PRICE CONTRACT

RUNNYMEDE HEALTHCARE CENTRE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT RFP VERSION 2.0

TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PROJECT AGREEMENT

AGREEME	ENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR	1
ARTICL	E A-1 THE WORK	
ARTICL		
ARTICL		
ARTICL		
ARTICL	E A-5 CONTRACTOR'S FEE	
ARTICL	E A-6 GUARANTEED PRICE	
ARTICL		
ARTICL	E A-8 RECEIPT OF AND ADDRESSES FOR NOTICES	
ARTICL		
ARTICL		
ARTICL	E A-11 INTERPRETATION AND OTHER MATTERS	
DEFINITIO	ONS	21
GENERAL	CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT	
PART 1	GENERAL PROVISIONS	
GC 1.1	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	
GC 1.2	LAW OF THE CONTRACT	
GC 1.3	RIGHTS AND REMEDIES	
GC 1.4	ASSIGNMENT	
GC 1.5	PROJECT REQUIREMENTS	
PART 2	ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT	
GC 2.1	AUTHORITY OF THE CONSULTANT	
GC 2.2	ROLE OF THE CONSULTANT	
GC 2.3	REVIEW AND INSPECTION OF THE WORK	
GC 2.4	DEFECTIVE WORK	
PART 3	EXECUTION OF THE WORK	
GC 3.1	CONTROL OF THE WORK	
GC 3.2	CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR OTHER CONTRACTORS	
GC 3.3	TEMPORARY SUPPORTS, STRUCTURES AND FACILITIE	
GC 3.4	DOCUMENT REVIEW	
GC 3.5	CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE	
GC 3.6	CONSTRUCTION SAFETY SUPERVISOR	
GC 3.7 GC 3.8	SUPERVISOR	
GC 3.8 GC 3.9	LABOUR AND PRODUCTS	
GC 3.9 GC 3.10	DOCUMENTS AT THE SITE	
GC 3.10 GC 3.11	SHOP DRAWINGS	
GC 3.12	USE OF THE WORK	
GC 3.12 GC 3.13	CUTTING AND REMEDIAL WORK	
GC 3.14	CLEANUP	
GC 3.15	CONTRACTOR ATTENDING MEETINGS	
GC 3.16		
GC 3.17		
PART 4	ALLOWANCES	51
GC 4.1	CASH ALLOWANCES	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

GC 4.2	CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY	52
PART 5	PAYMENT	54
0051		5 4
GC 5.1	[INTENTIONALLY DELETED]	
GC 5.2	ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT APPLICATIONS FOR PROGRESS PAYMENT	
GC 5.3		
GC 5.4	PROGRESS PAYMENTS	
GC 5.5	SUBSTANTIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK	
GC 5.6	PAYMENT OF HOLDBACK UPON SUBSTANTIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK	
GC 5.7	COMPLETION.	
GC 5.8	FINAL PAYMENT	
GC 5.9	WITHHOLDING OF PAYMENT	
GC 5.10	NON-CONFORMING WORK	
PART 6	CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF THE WORK	63
GC 6.1	CHANGES	63
GC 6.2	CHANGE ORDER	
GC 6.3	CHANGE DIRECTIVE	
GC 6.4	CONCEALED, UNKNOWN CONDITIONS	
GC 6.5	DELAYS	
PART 7	DEFAULT NOTICE	
~~~ .		
GC 7.1	OWNER'S RIGHT TO PERFORM THE WORK, SUSPEND THE WORK OR TERMINATI	
	.CT	
GC 7.2	CONTRACTOR'S RIGHT TO SUSPEND THE WORK OR TERMINATE THE CONTRACT	
PART 8	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	77
GC 8.1	AUTHORITY OF THE CONSULTANT	77
GC 8.1 GC 8.2	NEGOTIATION, MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION	
GC 8.2 GC 8.3	RETENTION OF RIGHTS	
PART 9	PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY	
GC 9.1	PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY	
GC 9.2	DAMAGES AND MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY	
GC 9.3	HAZARDOUS MATERIALS	
PART 10	GOVERNING REGULATIONS	85
GC 10.1	TAXES AND DUTIES	85
GC 10.1 GC 10.2	LAWS, NOTICES, PERMITS AND FEES	
GC 10.2 GC 10.3	PATENT FEES	
GC 10.5 GC 10.4	WORKERS' COMPENSATION	
PART 11	INSURANCE — BONDS	
GC 11.1	INSURANCE	87
GC 11.2	BONDS	
PART 12	INDEMNIFICATION — WAIVER — WARRANTY	93
GC 12.1	INDEMNIFICATION	93
GC 12.1 GC 12.2	WAIVER OF CLAIMS	
GC 12.2 GC 12.3	WARRANTY	
PART 13	OTHER PROVISIONS	
GC 13.1	KEY PERSONNEL	
GC 13.2	COMMISSIONING	
GC 13.3	SITE BACKGROUND REPORTS	

ii

GC 13.4	ASSIGNABLE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT	
GC 13.5	RISK ASSESSMENT GUIDELINES	
GC 13.6	HOSPITAL'S PROPERTY INSURANCE	
GC 13.7	SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS	
GC 13.8	APPENDIX I – BONDS	
GC 13.9	REVISIONS TO THE WORK	

# AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR

This Agreement made on the 29th day of October

in the year 2007

by and between

2147928 ONTARIO INC., a corporation existing under the laws of the Province of Ontario

hereinafter called the "Owner"

#### and

#### BONDFIELD CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

hereinafter called the "Contractor"

The Owner and the Contractor agree as follows:

# ARTICLE A-1 THE WORK

The Contractor shall:

1.1 perform the *Work* required by the *Contract Documents* for

The Runnymede Healthcare Centre – Redevelopment Project consisting of the construction of the new Runnymede hospital and demolition of the existing Runnymede hospital all in accordance with the Contract Documents. This description does not in any manner limit the scope of the Work as set out in the Contract Documents.

located at Runnymede Healthcare Centre, 625 Runnymede Road, Toronto, Ontario

which have been signed by the parties, and for which

Stantec Architecture Ltd., Architects

is acting as and is hereinafter called the "Consultant" and

- 1.2 do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and the *Contract Documents*, and
- 1.3 commence the *Work* by the 1st day of November in the year 2007 and

attain the Interim Completion Date by the 1st day of September, 2009, the Substantial Performance of the Work by the 30th day of June, 2010 and, Total Completion by the 15th day of August, 2010 in each case subject to adjustment in *Contract Time* as provided for in the *Contract Documents*.

- 1.4 The *Contractor* shall:
  - .1 complete the *Work* in a thorough and expeditious manner, in strict accordance with all the terms and conditions of the *Contract Documents*, and including, without limitation, the standard of care set out in GC 3.16 and the *Construction Schedule*; and
  - .2 in the execution, performance and completion of the *Work*, the *Contractor* shall, except as agreed by the *Contractor* and the *Owner*, provide all the labour, *Products*, construction machinery,

equipment and services required for the performance and completion of the *Work* and shall carry out, perform, observe, fulfill and abide by all the covenants, agreements, stipulations, provisions and conditions mentioned and contained in the *Contract Documents* on the part of the *Contractor* to be carried out, performed, observed and fulfilled.

#### ARTICLE A-2 AGREEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS

2.1 The *Contract* supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral, relating in any manner to the *Work*, including the *Request for Proposals* but excepting any of the *Contract Documents* listed in Article A-3 of the Agreement- CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and excepting the Project Agreement made between *Project Co*, the *Hospital* and the *Contractor* dated the 28th day of September, 2007 and the "Implementing Agreements" as referred to therein which agreements shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with their terms.

No modification of the *Contract* shall be effective unless made in writing and signed by both *Owner* and the *Contractor* unless otherwise expressly provided.

# ARTICLE A-3 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- 3.1 The following are the *Contract Documents* referred to in Article A-1 of the Agreement THE WORK:
  - Agreement between the *Owner* and the *Contractor* (the "*Agreement*")
  - Definitions
  - The General Conditions of the Guaranteed Price Contract
  - The Supplementary Conditions to the Guaranteed Price Contract
  - The Limited Assignment of Construction Contract
  - Addenda
  - The following specifications and drawings:

#### **INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION**

		Certification	# of Pages
00001	Project Title Page	-	1
00007	Seals Page	-	3
00010	Table of Contents	-	4

#### **BIDDING AND CONTRACTING REQUIREMENTS Division 1 – General Requirements**

		<u>Certification</u>	# of Pages
01100	General Requirements	А	5
01121	Construction Sequence	А	2
01210	Cash Allowances	А	1
01250	Product Substitution Procedures	А	2
01260	Request for Information Procedures	А	1
	RFI Form	А	1
01310	Construction Schedule	А	8
01311	Coordination	А	2
01313	Project Meetings	А	3
01323	Construction Photographs	А	1
01330	Submittals	А	8
01351	Special Procedures for Work in Hospitals	А	1
01360	Equipment Procedures	А	3
01421	Acronyms and Abbreviations	А	8
01450	Quality Control	А	4
01500	Temporary Facilities and Controls	А	8

-	Surrounding Streets Context Map	-	1
-	Home Depot Context Map	-	1
01562	Hoarding	А	3
01600	Products and Workmanship	А	4
01732	Cutting and Patching	А	2
01741	Progressive Cleaning	А	1
01770	Contract Closeout Procedures and Submittals	А	7
01783	Extended Warranties	А	3
01805	Commissioning	А	4

# **Division 2 – Site Construction**

		<b>Certification</b>	# of Pages
02160	Excavation Support Systems	S	8
02221	Building Demolition	А	4
	Owner's Decommissioning Plan for Buildings to be Demolished	-	1
02300	Earthwork	А	6
02315	Topsoil and Finish Grading	L	5
02620	Foundation Drainage	А	2
02625	Site Drainage	L	4
02700	Pavements	А	6
02730	Pea Gravel Topping	L	2
02780	Precast Concrete Planter Wall	L	2
02810	Irrigation	-	12
02820	Ornamental Metal Fencing	L	3
02821	Chain Link Fences and Gates	А	3
02870	Site Furnishings	L	2
02872	Timber and Woodworking	L	3
02901	Tree Preservation	L	4
02925	Sodding	L	4
02930	Trees, Shrubs and Groundcovers	L	7

# **Division 3 – Concrete**

		<b><u>Certification</u></b>	# of Pages
03100	Concrete Formwork	S	10
03200	Concrete Reinforcement	S	10
03300	Cast-In-Place Concrete	S	17
03345	Concrete Floor Finishes	S	5
03450	Plant-Precast Architectural Concrete	А	7

# Division 4 – Masonry

		<u>Certification</u>	<u># of Pages</u>
04200	Masonry Units	А	11
04270	Glass Unit Masonry	А	3

# **Division 5 – Metals**

		<b><u>Certification</u></b>	# of Pages
05120	Structural Steel	S	23
05310	Steel Deck	S	7

		<b><u>Certification</u></b>	# of Pages
05400	Cold-Formed Metal Framing	А	5
05500	Metal Fabrications	А	7
05720	Aluminium Railing System	А	3
05810	Expansion Joint Assemblies	А	4

# **Division 6 – Wood and Plastics**

		<b>Certification</b>	# of Pages
06100	Rough Carpentry	А	2
06200	Finish Carpentry and Casework	А	8
06650	Solid Polymer Fabrications	А	3

# **Division 7 – Thermal & Moisture Protection**

		<u>Certification</u>	<u># of Pages</u>
07132	Elastomeric Sheet Waterproofing	А	3
07134	Thermoplastic Sheet Waterproofing	А	2
07145	Fluid Elastomeric Waterproofing	А	3
07162	Crystalline Waterproofing	А	3
07190	Water Repellents	А	2
07210	Building Insulation	А	4
07265	Vapour and Air Retarders	А	4
07467	Steel Siding and Soffits	А	3
07550	Modified Bituminous Membrane Roofing	А	7
07560	Fluid Applied Roofing	А	4
07600	Flashing and Sheet Metal	А	3
07710	Manufactured Roof Specialties	А	3
07810	Fireproofing	А	3
07850	Firestopping and Smoke Seals	А	4
07900	Joint Sealers	А	4

# **Division 8 – Doors and Windows**

		<b><u>Certification</u></b>	# of Pages
08110	Steel Doors and Frames	A	6
08210	Wood Doors	А	5
08310	Wall Access Doors	А	3
08315	Floor Access Doors	А	3
08331	Coiling Counter Doors	А	2
08333	Overhead Coiling Doors	А	3
08352	Accordion Grilles	А	2
08460	Automatic Entrances	А	7
08520	Aluminum Windows and Entrances	А	10
08710	Door Hardware	-	11
	Door Hardware Schedule	-	235
08711	Finish Hardware Installation	А	2
08790	Electrified Door Hardware	-	18
08800	Glazing	А	4

**Division 9 – Finishes** 

		<b><u>Certification</u></b>	<u># of Pages</u>
09100	Metal Support Assemblies	A	6
09250	Gypsum and Cementitious Boards	А	6
09300	Tile	Α	5
09440	Plastic Matrix Terrazzo	А	4
09510	Acoustical Ceilings	А	4
09600	Acoustical Treatment	Α	3
09650	Resilient Flooring	А	6
09670	Fluid-Applied Flooring	А	4
09677	Waterproof Flooring	Α	3
09680	Carpet	Α	4
09770	Special Wall Surfaces	А	2
09910	Paints	Α	10
09970	Exterior Steel Coatings	А	2

# **Division 10 – Specialties**

	<u>Certification</u>	<u># of Pages</u>
nate Compartments	А	3
artitions	А	2
titions	А	4
vres	А	3
and Cleaning Accessories	А	4
d Specialties	А	4
	nate Compartments Partitions titions vres and Cleaning Accessories d Specialties	nate CompartmentsA'artitionsA'artitionsAvresAand Cleaning AccessoriesA

# **Division 11 – Equipment**

		Certification	# of Pages
11014	Window Washing Systems	A	4
11150	Parking Control Equipment	-	7
	Parking Control Equipment Drawings	-	5
11160	Loading Dock Equipment	А	4
11170	Solid Waste Handling Equipment	А	4
11400	Food Service Equipment	F	pages 1 to 63
	Mechanical and Electrical Services Schedule Page	F	page 64
	Food Service Equipment Mechanical and Electrical Schedule	F	14
	Food Service Equipment Detail Drawings Page	F	page 65
	Food Service Equipment Detail Drawings	F	11
	Food Service Equipment	F	pages 66 to
			69
11700	Medical Equipment	А	4
11710	Medical Sterilizing Equipment	А	3
11780	Mortuary Equipment	Α	3

# **Division 12 – Furnishings**

		<b><u>Certification</u></b>	# of Pages
12355	Pharmacy Casework	А	12
	Pharmacy Drawings	-	10
12357	Pharmacy Storage Shelving	А	3
12494	Shades	А	5

# **Division 13 – Special Construction – Not Applicable**

# **Division 14 – Conveying Systems**

		<u>Certification</u>	<u># of Pages</u>
14205	General Provisions	V	23
14215	Geared Elevators	V	16
14220	Hydraulic Elevator	V	11
14560	Chutes	А	3

# **Division 15 – Mechanical**

		# of Do goog
15000	List of Sections	<u># of Pages</u> 2
15010	Basic Requirements	14
15010	Qualifications and Authorities (Ontario)	2
15020	Mechanical Contractor Commissioning	8
15050	Basic Materials & Methods	10
15050	Seismic Restraints	9
15075	Excavation & Backfilling	4
15100	Valves	17
15120	Pipe Welding	2
15120	Thermometers & Pressure Gauges	3
15140	Pipe Hangers & Supports	6
15150	Liquid Flow Measuring Devices	2
15170	Motors, Starters & Wiring Wd	16
15170	Three Phase Motors	5
15172	Electric Pipe Heating System	4
15190	Identification & Directories	5
15170	Sound Attenuation	4
15245	Vibration Isolation	6
15250	Mechanical Insulation	15
15300	Fire Protection – General	13
15305	Fire Extinguishers & Safety Blankets	2
15315	Packaged Fire Pump	4
15330	Wet Pipe Sprinkler System	7
15333	Preaction Sprinkler System	5
15335	Dry Pipe Sprinkler System	5
15375	Standpipe & Hose Systems	7
15400	Plumbing – General	5
15411	Underground Water Piping – PVC	2
15412	Domestic Water Supply Piping – Copper	3
15413	Drainage & Vent Piping - Cast Iron & Copper	2
15414	Buried Drainage & Vent Piping – PVC	$\frac{1}{2}$
15430	Plumbing Specialties & Accessories	6
15440	Plumbing Fixtures & Trim	23
15452	Pumps – Plumbing	4
15456	Domestic Water Heaters	1
15457	Packaged Potable Water Conditioning	8
15480	Medical Gas Systems	11
15482	Pipe & Fittings – Gas	3
15486	Compressed Air System	4
15500	Heating & Cooling Piping Systems – General	4
15513	Steel Pipe & Fittings - Heating & Cooling	3
	r	-

# # of Pages 2 5

		$\frac{\pi}{1}$ of 1 ago
15514	Copper Pipe & Fittings - Heating & Cooling	2
15515	Water Specialties - Heating & Cooling	5
15516	Flex Connections, Expansion Joints, Anchors & Guides	3
15520	Pipe & Fittings - Steam & Condensate	3
15525	Steam Specialties	9
15540	Pumps - Heating & Cooling	5
15541	Steam Condensate Pumping Units and Packaged Feedwater System	4
15545	HVAC Water Treatment Systems	6
15554	Package Boilers - Commercial Water Tube	6
15591	Oil Storage Tanks	4
15593	Fuel Oil Systems	7
15594	Diesel Exhaust Systems	3
15624	Refrigerant Detection System	3
15682	Package Chillers – Centrifugal	7
15712	Cooling Towers	4
15732	Fluid Cooler (Dry Cooler)	3
15755	Heat Exchangers	2
15760	Humidifiers	1
15781	Computer Room Air Conditioning Units	5
15782	Roof Top Package Unit	5
15784	Ductless Split Air Conditioners	3
15785	Water Source Heat Pumps	4
15791	Convectors & Wall-Fin	2
15792	Unit Heaters	3
15793	Unit Heaters – Electric	2
15794	Radiant Ceiling Panels	2
15795	Fan Coil Units	3
15800	Air Distribution – General	2
15805	Ductwork	10
15815	Flexible Ductwork	2
15817	Breeching & Chimneys	3
15820	Duct Accessories	3
15832	Dampers – Balancing	2
15833	Dampers – Operating	2
15834	Dampers – Fire & Smoke	- 4
15841	Coils	4
15845	Air Handling Units	8
15850	Fans	5
15852	Package Roof & Exhausters	2
15855	Filters & Filter Gauges	4
15860	Terminal Boxes	3
15865	Heat Reclaim Devices	2
15873	Package Kitchen Exhaust Hoods	1
15875	Grilles, Registers & Diffusers	3
15888	Dust Collection System	2
15898	Testing, Adjusting & Balancing	5
15900	Controls And Instrumentation	47
15960	HVAC Instrumentation & Controls – Sequence Of Operation	73
13700	Transminimum & Controls – Sequence of Operation	

# **Division 16 – Electrical**

		<u># of Pages</u>
16000	Table of Contents	2
16010	Electrical General Requirements	25

			# of Pages
	6020	Electrical Commissioning	<u># 01 Pages</u> 8
	16104	Incoming Electrical Service	1
	6105	Concrete Encased Duct Banks	4
	6106	Installation of Cables in Trenches and Ducts	3
	16107	Maintenance Hand Holes	1
	6108	Excavation and Backfill	4
	6111	Conduits, Conduit Fastenings & Fittings	6
	6112	Lighting Fixture Raceways	1
	6114	Cabletroughs	4
	6116	Wireways and Auxiliary Gutters	1
	6121	High Voltage Cables	4
	6122	Wires and Cables 0-1000 Volts	5
	6131	Splitters, Junction and Pull Boxes, Cabinets	2
	6132	Outlet Boxes, Conduit Boxes and Fittings	2
	6133	Wiring to Elevators	2
	6134	Wiring to Kitchen Equipment	2
	6135	Wiring to Owner's Equipment	1
	6137	Wiring to Laundry Equipment	1
	6138	Wiring to Motorized Doors	1
	6141	Wiring Devices	9
1	6146	Multi Outlet Assemblies	2
1	6151	Wire and Box Connectors 0-1000 V	1
1	6190	Vibration Isolation and Seismic Restraints	8
	6191	Fastenings and Supports	3
]	6200	System Co-ordination, Verification and Testing	8
]	6310	Medium Voltage Loadbreak Switchgear	10
1	6322	Dry Type Transformers, Primary Over 1000 Volts	6
1	6390	Grounding, Primary	4
1	6411	Power Factor Correction Units	4
1	6426	Low Voltage Switchboards	22
1	6440	Disconnect Switches up to 1000 Volts	3
]	6450	Grounding, Secondary	4
]	6461	Dry Type Transformers up to 600V Primary	4
	6462	Harmonic Cancellation Transformers	4
	16471	Lighting & Receptacle Panelboards	5
	6472	Power Panel	5
	6473	Panel Trim	2
	6477	Molded Case Circuit Breakers	2
	6478	Fuses - Low Voltage	2
	6480	Transient Voltage Surge Suppressors	3
	6485	Contactors	2
	6496	Ground Fault Circuit Interruptors	1
	6500	Lighting	31
	6536	Unit Equipment for Emergency Lighting	3
	6597	Lighting Control System	5
	6622	Power Generation, Diesel	33
	6627	Automatic Transfer Switches	11
	6628	Manual Transfer Switches	4
	6660	Fuel Leakage Detection System	4
	16670	Lightning Protection System	3
	6681	Special Hospital Wiring	2
	6684	Testing of Hospital Wiring	4
	16690	Vertical Headwall Units	6
	6700	Signal Systems	1
]	6723	Addressable Fire Alarm System	33

		<u># of Pages</u>
16725	3rd Party Fire Alarm Verification	3
16731	Clock System	5
16735	Communications Wiring System	37
16740	Closed Circuit Television System	21
16741	Telephone & Data Raceways	3
16753	Entertainment TV System	2
16754	Visual Nurse Call System	29
16758	Patient Wandering System	8
16759	Card Access Security System	20
16760	Integrated Multimedia Security Management System	19
16780	Emergency Panic Stations	5
16781	Intercom System	7
16782	Systems Integration	4
16783	Security Systems LAN	18

# Appendix

Panel Schedule List	1
Panelboard Schedules	108

# Schedules

<u>Schedule</u>	<u>Schedule Title</u>	<u># of Pages</u>
<u>Series</u>		
A1000	Room Finish and Colour Schedule	25
A2000	Door and Screen Schedule	30
A2100	Frame Types	2
A2200	Frame Profiles	4
A2300	Frame Details	6
A2400	Door Types	1
A4000	Accessory Schedule	79
A5000	Equipment Schedule	3

# LIST OF DRAWINGS

# ARCHITECTURAL

DRAWING NO.	DRAWING TITLE
A001	GENERAL INFORMATION / LEGENDS
A100	SITE PLAN
A110	CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE PLAN STAGE 1
A111	CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE PLAN STAGE 2
A120	ENLARGED SITE PLANS / DETAILS
A130	GRADING PLAN
A200	CONTEXT PLANS – LEVELS 0 TO 4
A201	CONTEXT PLANS – LEVEL 5 (MECHANICAL PENTHOUSE) & ELEV MACHINE ROOMS
A400	FLOOR PLAN – LEVEL 0 (BASEMENT)
A401	FLOOR PLAN – LEVEL 1
A402	FLOOR PLAN – LEVEL 2
A403	FLOOR PLAN – LEVEL 3

DRAWING NO.	DRAWING TITLE
A404 A405	FLOOR PLAN – LEVEL 4 FLOOR PLAN – MECHANICAL PENTHOUSE / PLENUM @ STAIR 1
A406	PENTHOUSE ROOF PLAN
A420 A421	FLOOR FINISHES PLAN – LEVEL O (BASEMENT) FLOOR FINISHES PLAN – LEVEL 1
A422	FLOOR FINISHES PLAN – LEVEL 2
A423	FLOOR FINISHES PLAN – LEVEL 3
A424	FLOOR FINISHES PLAN – LEVEL 4
A500	REFLECTED CEILING PLAN – LEVEL 0 - DETAILS
A501 A502	REFLECTED CEILING PLAN – LEVEL 1 – DETAILS REFLECTED CEILING PLAN – LEVELS 2, 3 & 4 – DETAILS
A502 A503	REFLECTED CEILING PLAN – LEVELS 2, 5 & 4 – DETAILS REFLECTED CEILING PLANS – MECHANICAL PENTHOUSE – ELEVATOR
11000	MACHINE ROOMS
A600 A601	BUILDING ELEVATIONS BUILDING ELEVATIONS
A601 A602	COURTYARD ELEVATIONS / EXTERIOR WINDOW ELEVATIONS
A620	WALL SECTIONS
A621	WALL SECTIONS
A622	WALL SECTIONS
A623 A624	WALL SECTIONS WALL SECTIONS
A624 A625	WALL SECTIONS WALL SECTIONS
A626	WALL SECTIONS
A627	WALL SECTIONS
A628	COLUMN SECTIONS
A630 A635	AREAWAY SECTIONS SECTION DETAILS
A636	SECTION DETAILS SECTION DETAILS
A640	MISCELLANEOUS ROOF AND SECTION DETAILS
A645	PLAN DETAILS
A700	STAIR PLANS AND SECTIONS
A701	MISCELLANEOUS STAIRS – PLANS, SECTIONS, DETAILS
A710 A711	ELEVATORS – PLANS, SECTIONS, DETAILS SERVICE ELEVATOR E5 / LINEN CHUTE / STACK SUPPORT – ENLARGED
A/11	PLANS, SECTIONS
A800	ENLARGED PLANS / INTERIOR ELEVATIONS – TYPICAL CARE ROOMS
A801	WASHROOMS – ENLARGED PLANS / INTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A802 A810	ENLARGED PLANS / INTERIOR ELEVATIONS – WASHROOMS ENLARGED PLANS / INTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A810 A811	ENLARGED PLANS / INTERIOR ELEVATIONS ENLARGED PLANS / INTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A820	MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS
A900	MILLWORK – PLANS / ELEVATIONS
A901 A902	MILLWORK – SECTIONS / DETAILS MILLWORK – SECTIONS / DETAILS
A902 A910	CASEWORK ELEVATIONS
A911	CASEWORK ELEVATIONS
A912	CASEWORK ELEVATIONS

NO. A920 CASEWORK SECTIONS / DETAILS

# ELECTRICAL

DRAWING NO.	DRAWING TITLE
E-100	DRAWING LIST AND LEGEND
E-200	ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN
E-201	BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN LIGHTING AND FIRE ALARM
E-202	LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN LIGHTING AND FIRE ALARM
E-203	LEVEL 2 FLOOR PLAN LIGHTING AND FIRE ALARM
E-204	LEVEL 3 FLOOR PLAN LIGHTING AND FIRE ALARM
E-205	LEVEL 4 FLOOR PLAN LIGHTING AND FIRE ALARM
E-206	PENTHOUSE FLOOR PLAN LIGHTING AND FIRE ALARM
E-300	FOUNDATION PLAN GROUNDING AND LIGHTING PROTECTION
E-301	BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN POWER AND SYSTEMS
E-302	LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN POWER AND SYSTEMS
E-303	LEVEL 2 FLOOR PLAN POWER AND SYSTEMS
E-304	LEVEL 3 FLOOR PLAN POWER AND SYSTEMS
E-305	LEVEL 4 FLOOR PLAN POWER AND SYSTEMS
E-306	PENTHOUSE FLOOR PLAN POWER AND SYSTEMS
E-307	ROOF PLAN LIGHTING PROTECTION
E-401	ELECTRICAL ROOMS DETAILS
E-402	COMMUNICATION ROOMS DETAILS
E-403	GENERATOR ROOM LAYOUT AND MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS
E-404	KITCHEN AND CAFETERIA LAYOUTS
E-405	KITCHEN AND CAFETERIA SCHEDULE
E-406	LIGHTNING PROTECTION, DUCT BANK AND MISC. DETAILS
E-407	MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS SHEET NO. 1
E-408	MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS SHEET NO. 2 – PATIENT BED HEADWALL
<b>T</b> (00	ELEVATIONS
E-409	MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS SHEET NO. 3 – LIGHTING
E-501	ELECTRICAL SINGLE LINE DIAGRAM
E-502	POWER RISER DIAGRAM
E-503	SWITCHBOARD ELEVATIONS AND SCHEDULES
E-504	GROUNDING RISER DIAGRAM
E-505	FIRE ALARM SYSTEM RISER DIAGRAM
E-506	FIRE ALARM SYSTEM SCHEDULE AND MECHANICAL INTERFACE SCHEDULE
E-507	NOT USED
E-508	NURSE CALL SYSTEM RISER DIAGRAM
E-509	TV RISER DIAGRAM AND SCHEDULE
E-510	SECURITY RISER DIAGRAM
E-511	ALARM SYSTEM BLOCK DIAGRAM AND ELECTRONIC METERING SYSTEM DIAGRAM
E-512	PATIENT CARE CLASSIFICATIONS KEY PLANS
E-512	CCTV RISER DIAGRAM
E-514	PARKING AND SECURITY SYSTEM DETAILS

# DRAWING DRAWING TITLE

# NO.

E-601	COMMUNICATIONS RISER DIAGRAM
E-602	COMMUNICATION DETAILS SHEET NO. 1 LABELING AND TESTING
E-603	COMMUNICATION DETAILS SHEET NO. 2
E-604	COMMUNICATION DETAILS SHEET NO. 3
E-605	COMMUNICATION DETAILS SHEET NO. 4 – COMPUTER ROOM RACKS
	LAYOUT
E-606	COMMUNICATION DETAILS SHEET NO. 5 – COMMUNICATION ROOMS
	RACKS LAYOUT
F (07	TELECOMMUNICATIONS WIDING DIACDAM

E-607 TELECOMMUNICATIONS WIRING DIAGRAM

# FOODSERVICE

DRAWING	DRAWING TITLE
NO.	
FS-1	FOODSERVICE EQUIPMENT LAYOUT PART PLAN – MAIN KITCHEN
FS-2	FOODSERVICE EQUIPMENT LAYOUT
	PART PLAN – SERVERY
	PART PLAN – GROUND FLOOR
FS-3	FOODSERVICE EQUIPMENT ELEVATIONS

# TRANSPORTATION

DRAWING NO.	DRAWING TITLE
SN-1	TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAGE AND PAVEMENT MARKING PLAN

# MECHANICAL

DRAWING	DRAWING TITLE
NO.	
M-101	MECHANICAL LEGEND AND DRAWING LIST
M-102	SITE SERVICING PLAN
M-103	PROFILE SHEET #1 PLUMBING
M-104	PROFILE SHEET #2 PLUMBING
M-105	PROFILE SHEET #3 PLUMBING
M-200	FOUNDATION PLUMBING
M-201	LEVEL 0 FLOOR PLAN PLUMBING
M-202	LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN PLUMBING
M-203	LEVEL 2 FLOOR PLAN PLUMBING
M-204	LEVEL 3 FLOOR PLAN PLUMBING
M-205	LEVEL 4 FLOOR PLAN PLUMBING
M-206	PENTHOUSE FLOOR PLAN PLUMBING
M-207	ROOF PLUMBING
M-301	BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN MEDICAL GASES
M-302	LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN MEDICAL GASES
M-303	LEVEL 2 FLOOR PLAN MEDICAL GASES
M-304	LEVEL 3 FLOOR PLAN MEDICAL GASES
M-305	LEVEL 4 FLOOR PLAN MEDICAL GASES

DRAWING NO.	DRAWING TITLE
M-401	LEVEL 0 FLOOR PLAN VENTILATION
M-402	LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN VENTILATION
M-402 M-403	LEVEL 2 FLOOR PLAN VENTILATION
M-404	LEVEL 3 FLOOR PLAN VENTILATION
M-404 M-405	LEVEL 4 FLOOR PLAN VENTILATION
M-405 M-406	PENTHOUSE FLOOR PLAN LOWER LEVEL VENTILATION
M-400 M-407	PENTHOUSE FLOOR PLAN UPPER LEVEL VENTILATION
M-407 M-408	BASEMENT PART FLOOR PLAN UPPER AND LOWER LEVEL MECHANICAL
11-400	DASEMENT FART FLOOR FLAN OF FLRAND LOWER LEVEL MEETIAMEAL
M-501	LEVEL 0 FLOOR PLAN HEATING
M-502	LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN HEATING
M-503	LEVEL 2 FLOOR PLAN HEATING
M-504	LEVEL 3 FLOOR PLAN HEATING
M-505	LEVEL 4 FLOOR PLAN HEATING
M-506	PENTHOUSE FLOOR PLAN HEATING
M (01	
M-601	BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN FIRE PROTECTION
M-602	LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN FIRE PROTECTION
M-603	LEVEL 2 FLOOR PLAN FIRE PROTECTION
M-604	LEVEL 3 FLOOR PLAN FIRE PROTECTION
M-605	LEVEL 4 FLOOR PLAN FIRE PROTECTION
M-606	PENTHOUSE FLOOR PLAN FIRE PROTECTION
M-701	KITCHEN DETAIL PLUMBING
M-702	PLUMBING DETAILS
M-703	RISER DIAGRAMS SHEET #1 PLUMBING
M-704	RISER DIAGRAMS SHEET #2 PLUMBING
M-705	RISER DIAGRAMS SHEET #3 PLUMBING
M-706	HEATING RISER DIAGRAM MECHANICAL SHAFTS LAYOUT
M-710	MEDICAL GAS RISER DIAGRAM
M-711	MEDICAL GASES DETAILS
M-720	<b>RISER DIAGRAM NOTES &amp; DETAILS FIRE PROTECTION</b>
M-730	HVAC DETAILS
M-731	MECHANICAL SECTIONS
M-732	MECHANICAL SECTIONS AND DETAILS
M-740	MECHANICAL SCHEMATICS SHEET #1
M-741	MECHANICAL SCHEMATICS SHEET #2
M-742	MECHANICAL SCHEMATICS SHEET #3
M-743	MECHANICAL SCHEMATICS SHEET #4
M-745	MECHANICAL SCHEMATICS SHEET #5
M-746	MECHANICAL SCHEMATICS SHEET #6
M-801	MECHANICAL SCHEDULES SHEET #1
M-801 M-802	MECHANICAL SCHEDULES SHEET #1 MECHANICAL SCHEDULES SHEET #2
M-803	MECHANICAL SCHEDULES SHEET #3 MECHANICAL SCHEDULES SHEET #4
M-804	MECHANICAL SCHEDULES SHEET #4

# LANDSCAPE

DRAWING NO.	DRAWING TITLE
L100	TREE INVENTORY, PRESERVATION AND PROTECTION PLAN

DRAWING	DRAWING TITLE
NO.	
L101	SITE LANDSCAPE AND KEY PLAN
L102	RESIDENT GARDEN LAYOUT PLAN & DETAILS
L103	RESIDENT GARDEN GRADING PLAN & DETAILS
L104	RESIDENT GARDEN PLANTING PLAN
L105	DETAILS
L106	ROOF GARDEN LAYOUT, GRADING, PLANTING PLAN & DETAILS

# IRRIGATION

DRAWING	DRAWING TITLE
NO	

NO.	
IR1	IRRIGATION PLAN
IR2	IRRIGATION PLAN
IR3	IRRIGATION PLAN

### STRUCTURAL

DRAWING NO.	DRAWING TITLE
S0-001	GENERAL AND DESIGN NOTES
S0-010	TYPICAL DETAILS
S0-011	TYPICAL DETAILS
S0-012	TYPICAL DETAILS
S0-012	TYPICAL DETAILS
S0-014	TYPICAL DETAILS
S1-000	WIND UPLIFT DIAGRAM AND LANDSCAPING LOADING DIAGRAMS
S2-000	FOUNDATION PLAN
S2-010	LEVEL 1 FLOOR FRAMING PLAN
S2-020	LEVEL 2 FLOOR FRAMING PLAN
S2-030	LEVEL 3 FLOOR FRAMING PLAN
S2-040	LEVEL 4 FLOOR FRAMING PLAN
S2-050	MAIN ROOF AND MECHANICAL PENTHOUSE FLOOR FRAMING PLAN
S2-060	MECHANICAL PENTHOUSE ROOF & ELEVATOR MACHINE ROOM FRAMING PLANS
S3-001	FOOTING AND COLUMN SCHEDULES
S3-002	FOOTING AND COLUMN SCHEDULES
S3-003	FOOTING AND COLUMN SCHEDULES
S3-011	BEAM SCHEDULES
S4-000	SECTIONS AND DETAILS
S4-001	SECTIONS AND DETAILS
S4-002	SECTIONS AND DETAILS
S4-003	SECTIONS AND DETAILS
S4-010	SECTIONS AND DETAILS
S4-011	SECTIONS AND DETAILS
S5-000	KEY PLAN – WALL ELEVATIONS
S5-010	WALL ELEVATIONS
S5-011	WALL ELEVATIONS

# DRAWING DRAWING TITLE NO.

S5-012 ELEVATIONS

- The Site Background Reports, as set out in GC 13.3

# ARTICLE A-4 COST OF THE WORK

4.1 The *Cost of the* Work includes the *Contractor's Design Contingency* as provided for in GC 4.2 – CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY and includes the *Contractor's Fee* as provided in paragraph 5.1 of Article A-5 of the Agreement – CONTRACTOR'S FEE and the *Contractor* represents the *Cost of the Work* is included in the *Guaranteed Price*.

# ARTICLE A-5 CONTRACTOR'S FEE

5.1 The *Contractor's Fee* is a fixed fee and is included in the *Cost of the Work*.

# ARTICLE A-5A FINANCING COST

1A.1 The *Owner* and the *Contractor* acknowledge that *Project Co* has arranged the *Financing* and that the *Cost of the Financing* is included in the *Guaranteed Price*.

# ARTICLE A-6 GUARANTEED PRICE

- 6.1 The *Guaranteed Price* is **[REDACTED]** which excludes *Value Added Tax*, and is equal to the sum of the *Cost* of the Work and the Cost of the Financing. The Guaranteed Price will only be adjusted as set out in GC 6.2 CHANGE ORDER.
- 6.2 *Guaranteed Price*

The parties agree that the *Guaranteed Price* will not be subject to adjustment despite changes in the *Work*, unless such changes in the *Work* also constitute a *Change in the Scope of the Work* as that term is defined in the *Contract Documents*. The parties further agree that the *Guaranteed Price* will only be adjusted where the *Contract Documents* specifically and expressly refer to an adjustment to the *Guaranteed Price* and no claim for an adjustment to the *Guaranteed Price* on any legal or equitable basis outside of the specific and express rights to an adjustment of the *Guaranteed Price* set out in the *Contract Documents* will be allowed. In order to be effective, any permitted adjustment to the *Guaranteed Price* must be provided for in a *Change Order* under GC 6.2 – CHANGE ORDER.

# ARTICLE A-7 PAYMENT

- 7.1 Subject to the provisions of the Contract Documents and paragraph 6.2 of Article A 6 of the Agreement GUARANTEED PRICE and to the provisions of GC 5.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PROGRESS PAYMENT and GC 5.4 PROGRESS PAYMENTS, and in accordance with and subject to legislative requirements respecting holdbacks the Owner shall in Canadian funds:
  - .1 make *Base Progress Payments* to the *Contractor* on account of the *Guaranteed Price* when due together with such *Value Added Tax* as may be applicable to such payment;
  - .2 upon the issuance by the *Consultant* of a certificate for payment of *Additional Owner Payments* payable, pay to the *Contractor* the unpaid monies of the *Additional Owner Payments* when due together with such *Value Added Tax* as may be applicable to such payment;

- .3 upon the later of (i) *Substantial Performance of the Work*, and (ii) the second (2nd) *Business Day* following the expiration of a period of forty five (45) days after publication of a certificate of substantial performance of the *Contract* in accordance with the *Construction Lien* Act (Ontario), pay to the *Contractor* the unpaid balance of the legislated holdback amount when due together with such *Value Added Tax* as may be applicable to such payment;
- .4 upon the issuance of the final certificate for payment, pay to the *Contractor* the unpaid monies of the *Guaranteed Price* when due together with such *Value Added Tax* as may be applicable to such payment; and
- .5 any payments to be made by the *Owner* in accordance with the foregoing shall be subject to any express rights of the *Owner* to withhold payment under the *Contract Documents* including without limitation under GC 5.9 –WITHHOLDING OF PAYMENT.
- 7.2 In the event of loss or damage occurring where payment becomes due under the property and boiler insurance policies, payments shall be made to the insurance trustee under and in accordance with the *Insurance Trust Agreement*.
- 7.3 Interest
  - .1 Should either party fail to make payments as they become due under the terms of the *Contract* or in an award by arbitration or court, interest at the default interest rate set out in the Financial Model on such unpaid amounts shall also become due and payable until payment. Such interest shall be compounded on a monthly basis. The prime rate shall be the lowest rate of interest quoted by The Royal Bank of Canada for prime business loans.
  - .2 Interest shall apply at the rate and in the manner prescribed by paragraph 7.3.1 of this Article on the amount of any claim and for which the *Contractor* is thereafter entitled to payment, either pursuant to PART 8 of the General Conditions DISPUTE RESOLUTION, or otherwise, from the date the amount would have been due and payable under the *Contract*, had it not been in dispute, until the date it is paid.

# ARTICLE A-8 RECEIPT OF AND ADDRESSES FOR NOTICES

- 8.1 Notices in writing between the parties or between them and the *Consultant* and the *Lender's Consultant* shall be delivered by hand or by commercial courier or by facsimile to the address set out below and shall be considered to have been received by the addressee on the date of receipt if delivered by hand or by commercial courier or by facsimile provided if the notice is not delivered by 4:00 p.m. on a *Working Day* then the notice will be deemed received on the next *Working Day*, and in the case of a facsimile transmission the facsimile transmission report (maintained by the sender) must indicate the transmission of the notice was successful.
  - .1 The Owner at

[REDACTED]

Attention:	[REDACTED]
Tel:	[REDACTED]
Fax:	[REDACTED]

# [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]

with a copy to *Infrastructure Ontario* at:

# [REDACTED]

Attention:	[REDACTED]
Tel:	[REDACTED]
Fax:	[REDACTED]

.2 The Contractor at

# [REDACTED]

Attention:	[REDACTED]
Tel:	[REDACTED]
Fax:	[REDACTED]

with a copy to *Project Co* at:

# [REDACTED]

Attention:	[REDACTED]
Tel:	[REDACTED]
Fax:	[REDACTED]

# .3 The Consultant at

# [REDACTED]

Attention:	[REDACTED]
Tel:	[REDACTED]
Fax:	[REDACTED]

with a copy to Project Co at:

# [REDACTED]

Attention:	[REDACTED]
Tel:	[REDACTED]
Fax:	[REDACTED]

.4 The Lender's Consultant at

# [REDACTED]

Attention:	[REDACTED]
Tel:	[REDACTED]
Fax:	[REDACTED]

Anyone can change its address by providing the other parties with a notice in writing of the change of address in accordance with the terms of this Article A-8.

## ARTICLE A-9 LANGUAGE OF THE CONTRACT

- 9.1 When the *Contract Documents* are prepared in both the English and French languages, it is agreed that in the event of any apparent discrepancy between the English and French versions, the English language shall prevail.
- 9.2 This Agreement is drawn in English at the request of the parties hereto. La présente convention est rédigée en anglais à la demande des parties.

#### **ARTICLE A-10 SUCCESSION**

10.1 The *Contract* shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto, their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns.

#### **ARTICLE A-11 INTERPRETATION AND OTHER MATTERS**

- 11.1 It is agreed that one of the reasons why the *Contractor* was selected for the *Work* is the *Contractor's* representation and warranty that it will achieve the *Completion of the Interim Work* and *Substantial Performance of the Work* and *Total Completion* by the dates set out in paragraph 1.3 of Article A-1 of the Agreement THE WORK, and the *Contractor* acknowledges that it has been advised by the *Owner* that it is critical to the *Owner* that *Completion of the Interim Work*, *Substantial Performance of the Work* and *Total Completion of the Interim Work*, *Substantial Performance of the Work* and *Total Completion* be achieved by the prescribed dates set out in the said paragraph 1.3 and that time is of the essence of this *Contract*.
- 11.2 The *Contractor* shall be an independent contractor in performing its obligations under the *Contract*. The *Contract* does not create any agency, partnership, joint venture, fiduciary or other relationship of the *Contractor* with the *Owner* other than the relationship of independent contractor.
- 11.3 No inspection, review, comment, approval, verification, confirmation, certification, acknowledgement or audit pursuant to the provisions of the *Contract* by the *Owner*, the *Owner's Project Manager*, the *Consultant* or *Lender's Consultant*, or anyone on their behalf, nor any failure of any of them to do so, shall relieve the *Contractor* from performing or fulfilling any of its obligations under the *Contract* or be construed as an acceptance of the *Work* or any part thereof.
- 11.4 If any provision of the *Contract* is determined to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in whole or in part, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability will only apply to such provision or part, as the case may be, and any other part and all other provisions of the *Contract* shall remain in full force and effect. Furthermore, the parties shall endeavour to agree on a provision which reflects insofar as reasonably possible the commercial intentions of the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or part.
- 11.5 The provisions of the *Contract* which by their nature are continuing shall survive termination of the *Contract*.
- 11.6 Each party shall from time to time execute and deliver all such further documents and instruments and do all acts and things as the other party may reasonably require to effectively carry out or better evidence or perfect the full intent and meaning of the *Contract*.
- 11.7 The *Contractor* acknowledges that the *Owner* has provided it with the *Site Background Reports* respecting the *Place of the Work* and the conditions for the *Work*. The cost of any *Work* which results from encountering any

condition that is described in or properly inferable from the *Site Background Reports* is included in the *Guaranteed Price* and there shall be no extension of *Contract Time*. The *Contractor* shall without limitation satisfy all the requirements and obligations contained in the *Site Background Reports*, including without limitation the Order of George Rockoski, the Director of Ministry of the Environment, dated March 3, 2005, in the performance of the *Work* and acknowledges that all costs to do so are included in the cost of the *Work*.

- 11.8 Upon the assignment of this *Contract* to the *Hospital* pursuant to the *Limited Assignment of Construction Contract*, nothing in this *Contract* shall in any way fetter the right, authority and discretion of the *Owner* as a public hospital under the *Public Hospitals Act* (Ontario) in fulfilling its statutory or other functions under law including under the *Public Hospitals Act* (Ontario), and the *Contractor* understands and agrees that nothing in this *Contract* shall preclude *Owner's* board of directors from performing, discharging or exercising its duties, responsibilities and powers under law including under the *Public Hospitals Act* (Ontario). The *Contractor* further agrees that it shall comply, with all written directions issued by or on behalf of *Owner's* board of directors from time to time and the cost, if any, of implementing the written directions and the additional time, if any, required to implement the written directions shall be implemented by way of a *Change Order or Change Directive*, as applicable, as provided in GC 6.2 – CHANGE ORDER and GC 6.3 – CHANGE DIRECTIVE.
- 11.9 Upon the assignment of this *Contract* to the *Hospital* pursuant to the *Limited Assignment of Construction Contract*, the *Contractor* recognizes and understands that the *Owner* is a public hospital under the *Public Hospitals Act* (Ontario) and is therefore subject to a highly regulated legal and operational environment. The *Contractor* acknowledges that in addition to the use of *Good Industry Practice* the *Contract Documents* including the *Contract Documents* referred to in GC 3.12.5 include instructions as to the manner in which the *Work* is to be performed to minimize disturbance to the *Hospital* including in respect to noise, dust control, access to the *Place of the Work* and the particular requirements in respect to those portions of the *Work* which are to be carried out within the *Hospital* and in respect to those portions of the *Work* where connections are being made to the *Hospital*. In addition the *Contractor* acknowledges that it has familiarized itself with *Hospital* operations and will perform the *Work* taking into account the requirements of the *Owner* to maintain normal *Hospital* operations and that the *Cost of the Work* includes all premium time and overtime that may be required to perform the *Work* in accordance with the *Contract Documents*, the instructions contained in the *Contract Documents* referred to in GC 3.12.5 and *Good Industry Practice*.
- 11.10 All references to any legislation set out in the *Contract Documents* shall be a reference to such legislation as amended from time to time.
- 11.11 *Project Co* and the *Contractor* acknowledge that this *Contract* will be assigned to the *Hospital* under the *Limited Assignment of Construction Contract* and that the provisions of this *Contract* which contemplate the *Owner* being a public hospital under the *Public Hospitals Act* (Ontario) are intended to apply to *Hospital* as *Owner* upon such assignment.

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

In witness whereof the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and by the hands of their duly authorized representatives.

#### SIGNED AND DELIVERED

in the presence of:

# 2147928 ONTARIO INC.

Signature [REDACTED] WITNESS

*Signature* name and title of person signing

#### BONDFIELD CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

Signature
[REDACTED]

# WITNESS

*Signature* name and title of person signing

*N.B.* Where legal jurisdiction, local practice, or the Owner or the Contractor requirement calls for:

(a) proof of authority to execute this document, attach such proof of authority in the form of a certified copy of a resolution naming the representative(s) authorized to sign the Agreement for and on behalf of the corporation or partnership; or

(b) the affixing of a corporate seal, this Agreement should be properly sealed.

#### DEFINITIONS

The following Definitions shall apply to all Contract Documents.

#### 1. Addenda

Addenda means Addenda issued by the Consultant as Addenda A001 to A009 together with Post-Tender Addendum No. 1.

#### 2. Additional Owner Payments

Additional Owner Payments means amounts payable to the Contractor which are payable pursuant to any Change Order or Change Directive under which the Owner is expressly responsible for an increase to the Guaranteed Price which includes without limitation any cost arising out of a Change in the Scope of the Work initiated by the Owner under GC 6.1 - CHANGES or any payments to be made by the Owner pursuant to GC 6.4 - CONCEALED OR UNKNOWN CONDITIONS or any payments to be made by the Owner pursuant to GC 6.5 - DELAYS or any other payments to be made by the Owner, which, pursuant to the express provisions of the Contract, are to be paid as Additional Owner Payments.

#### 3. Additional Site Information

Additional Site Information means (i) the Site Background Reports; (ii) other information respecting the Place of the Work in the Contract Documents including infrastructure drawings and other reports, information or plans; and (iii) information that would have been readily apparent to the Contractor from its inspections of the Place of the Work made under the Request for Proposals prior to the date of the RFP Submission.

#### 4. Agreement

Agreement has the meaning set out in Article A-3 of the Agreement – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

#### 5. Approved Mechanical and Electrical Subcontractors

Approved Mechanical and Electrical Subcontractors means a Mechanical or Electrical Subcontractor which is on a list of Approved Mechanical and Electrical Subcontractors provided by the Owner to the Contractor in the Request for Proposals.

#### 6. As-Built Drawings, As-Builts

As Built Drawings, As-Builts means a set of Contract Documents marked up by the Contractor during construction, to record changes in the Work from the design documents and to illustrate actual locations of hidden utilities or concealed elements. When simply referred to as "As-Builts", the term may also be interpreted to mean a set of Contract Documents containing the Contractor's annotations.

#### 7. Assignable Subcontract Agreement

Assignable Subcontract Agreement means the agreement referred to in GC 3.8.4.

# 8. Base Progress Payments

*Base Progress Payments* means all progress payments to be made under GC 5.4 – PROGRESS PAYMENTS for the period from the commencement of the *Work* to, in the case of the *Interim Work*, the *Interim Completion Date* and with respect to the balance of the *Work*, the *Substantial Performance Date* in respect of

.1 the *Interim Work* to be performed on or before the last day of the agreed monthly payment period ending immediately prior to the *Interim Reimbursement Payment Date*; and

.2 the balance of the *Work* performed on or before the last day of the agreed monthly payment period ending immediately prior to the *Final Reimbursement Payment Date*;

in respect to the *Guaranteed Price* but not including any progress payment in respect to the *Additional Owner Payments*.

# 9. Business Day

*Business Day* means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, a statutory holiday in the Province of Ontario or any day on which banks are not open for business in the City of Toronto, Ontario.

#### 10. Cash Allowance Disbursement Authorization (CADA)

A *Cash Allowance Disbursement Authorization* is an authorization to the *Contractor* by the *Owner* to expend monies from cash allowances included in the Guaranteed Price as contemplated under GC 4.1 – CASH ALLOWANCES.

#### 11. Change Directive

A *Change Directive* is a written instruction prepared by the *Consultant* and signed by the *Owner* directing a *Change in the Scope of the Work* within the general scope of the *Contract Documents*.

#### 12. Change in the Scope of the Work or Scope Change

*Change in the Scope of the Work* or *Scope Change* shall mean any change in the scope of the *Work* from that shown in or which is readily apparent or properly inferable from the *Contract Documents* and relating to the quantity or quality of *Products* or materials, components or equipment to be incorporated into the *Work* or any specified method of installation of materials or equipment into the *Work* but does not constitute a *Contractor's Design Contingency* expenditure. It is agreed that refinements and detailing will be accomplished from time to time with respect to the *Contract Documents*, including the addition of items or materials which may have been omitted from the *Contract Documents* but which are necessary to complete a detail shown, specified or readily apparent or properly inferable therefrom. Such refinements and detailing shall not constitute a *Change in the Scope of the Work* and will not result in any adjustment of the *Guaranteed Price*, but will be treated as a *Contractor's Design Contingency* expenditure in accordance with GC 4.2 – CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY. For greater certainty, it is understood and agreed that where the *Contractor* is entitled to any extension of time or compensation for additional costs or expenses pursuant to the express provisions of the *Contract Documents*, the matter giving rise to such extension of time or additional costs or expenses shall be deemed to be a *Change in the Scope of the Work* and shall be processed as a *Change Order* pursuant to GC 6.2 – CHANGE ORDER.

#### 13. Change Order

A *Change Order* is a written amendment to the *Contract* prepared in accordance with GC 6.2 – CHANGE ORDER by the *Consultant* and signed by the *Owner* and the *Contractor* stating their agreement upon:

- a Change in the Scope of the Work;
- the method of adjustment or the amount of the adjustment in the Overhead and Profit Fee, if any;
- the method of adjustment or the amount of the adjustment in the *Guaranteed Price*; and
- the extent of the adjustment in the *Contract Time*, if any.

#### 14. Claims

*Claims* has the meaning given to it in GC 12.1.1.

### 15. Commissioning

*Commissioning* shall mean the process of moving a building from a static condition to a dynamic condition; preparing a building, or a system for its intended use; the management of testing, verifying, recording and documenting and the training of the *Owner's* employees regarding the operation of systems within a building to assure specified operations through the range of operating conditions and shall include, for greater certainty but without limitation, the requirement that all active building systems and technologies forming part of the *Work* perform in accordance with the design intent, manufacturers' performance specifications and the *Contract Documents*.

## 16. Commissioning Agent

Commissioning Agent shall mean the person or entity appointed by the Owner, if any, to assist with Commissioning.

#### 17. Completion of the Interim Work

*Completion of the Interim Work* means that:

- (a) the *Contractor* has performed its obligations in GC5.4A COMPLETION OF THE INTERIM WORK;
- (b) the *Interim Work* is available for occupancy by the *Owner* in accordance with the standards for occupancy set out in the Ontario Building Code and the requirements of local municipal building authorities in the City of Toronto;
- (c) the *Commissioning* of the *Interim Work* has been completed in accordance with the *Contract Documents* to the extent required to meet the requirements for occupancy of the *Interim Work* set out in the Ontario Building Code, and the building services required for the *Owner* to carry out its *Commissioning* activities with respect to the *Interim Work* are available in accordance with the specifications; and
- (d) all *Interim Project Deliverables* other than those included as *Interim Minor Deficiencies* in accordance with GC 5.4A.2 have been assigned and provided to the *Owner*.

#### 18. Construction Schedule

*Construction Schedule* means the detailed computerized schedule prepared by the *Contractor* in accordance with the terms and conditions of the *Contract Documents* as updated from time to time in accordance with GC 3.5 – CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE.

# **19.** Consultant

The *Consultant* is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement. The *Consultant* is the Architect, the Engineer, or entity licensed to practice in the province or territory of the *Place of the Work*. The term *Consultant* means the *Consultant* or the *Consultant's* authorized representative.

#### 20. Contemplated Change Notice

A *Contemplated Change Notice* is a notice from the *Owner* to the *Contractor* describing a contemplated *Change in the Scope of the Work.* 

#### 21. Contract

The *Contract* is the undertaking by the parties to perform their respective duties, responsibilities, and obligations as prescribed in the *Contract Documents* and for greater certainty includes the *Addenda* but does not include any of the responses to Requests for Information submitted by the *Contractor* pursuant to the *Request for Proposals* all of which are superseded by this *Contract* and the *Addenda*.

#### 22. Contract Documents

The *Contract Documents* consist of those documents listed in Article A-3 of the Agreement – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS and amendments agreed upon between the parties in writing.

# 23. Contract Time

The *Contract Time* is the time stipulated in paragraph 1.3 of Article A-1 of the Agreement - THE WORK from commencement of the *Work* to the completion of the *Interim Work*, to the *Substantial Performance of the Work* and to *Total Completion*. Time is of the essence for this *Contract*.

#### 24. Contractor

The *Contractor* is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement. The term *Contractor* means the *Contractor* or the *Contractor*'s authorized representative as designated to the *Owner* in writing.

## 25. Contractor Delay

*Contractor Delay* means any delay in achieving the *Interim Completion Date*, the *Substantial Performance of the Work* or *Total Completion* by the prescribed dates set out in paragraph 1.3 of Article A-1 of the Agreement – THE WORK other than as expressly permitted under GC 6.5 – DELAYS.

#### 26. Contractor Hazardous Materials

Contractor Hazardous Materials has the meaning set out in GC 9.3.4.

# 27. Contractor Indemnified Persons

Contractor Indemnified Persons has the meaning given to it in GC 9.3.8.

# 28. Contractor's Design Contingency or *CDC*

*Contractor's Design Contingency or CDC* is an amount estimated by the *Contractor* and is included in the *Cost of the Work* to cover all the costs to the *Contractor* to implement an acceptable resolution to any and all *Design Issues* that are properly characterized as *Contractor's Design Contingency* matters as described in GC 4.2 – CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY.

#### 29. Contractor's Fee

The Contractor's Fee is the fee referred to in Article A-5 of the Agreement - CONTRACTOR'S FEE.

# 30. Contractor's Preliminary Minor Deficiencies List

*Contractor's Preliminary Minor Deficiencies List* means the list of any *Minor Deficiencies* identified by the *Contractor* in accordance with GC 5.5.1.

#### 31. Cost of the Financing

*Cost of the Financing* means all costs and expenses incurred in connection with the *Financing* pursuant to the indicative financing term sheet included in the *RFP Submission* and the *Lending Agreements* including without limitation all interest, fees, expense reimbursements, prepayment and breakage costs and all other costs and expenses shown in the *Financial Model*.

#### 32. Cost of the Work

*Cost of the Work* means the cost to the *Contractor* of performing the *Work* and includes the *Contractor's Design Contingency* and the *Contractor's Fee* and includes without limitation all premium time and overtime that may be required to perform the *Work* taking into account the requirements of paragraph 11.9 of Article A-11 of the Agreement – INTERPRETATION AND OTHER MATTERS.

#### 33. Design Issue

Design Issue means any matter arising under, with respect to or in connection with the Contract Documents, and in particular the drawings and specifications, which requires clarification in order to complete the Work.

# 34. Disclosed Hazardous Materials

Disclosed Hazardous Materials has the meaning set out in GC 9.3.3.

# 35. Existing Hospital

*Existing Hospital* means the existing hospital building of the *Hospital* within parts of which and adjoining which the *Work* will occur.

# 36. Final Reimbursement Payment Date

*Final Reimbursement Payment Date* means the tenth (10th) Business Day following the date of delivery by the *Consultant* of its report under GC 5.6.2 to the *Owner* confirming that *Substantial Performance of the Work* has been achieved.

# 37. Financial Model

Financial Model means the Financial Model included as Schedule 4 to the Project Agreement.

# 38. Financing

*Financing* means the financing with the *Lender* that is consistent in all material respects with the *Financial Model* to finance the *Base Progress Payments* until, as applicable, the *Interim Reimbursement Payment Date* and the *Final Reimbursement Payment Date*.

#### **39.** Good Industry Practice

*Good Industry Practice* means using standards, practices, methods and procedures to a good commercial standard in conformity with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, building codes, or rules or regulations and, in each case of the foregoing, having regard to the standard of care required under GC 3.16 – STANDARD OF CARE.

#### 40. Guaranteed Price and Contract Price

*Guaranteed Price* which excludes *Value Added Tax*, is equal to the sum of the *Cost of the Work* (which includes the *Contractor's Design Contingency* and the *Contractor's Fee*) and the *Cost of the Financing*. A reference to *Contract Price* in any of the *Contract Documents* shall be deemed to be a reference to *Guaranteed Price*.

#### 41. Hazardous Materials

Hazardous Materials has the meaning given to it in GC 9.3.2.1.

# 42. Hospital

Hospital means the existing hospital associated with the Project.

#### 43. Implementing Agreements

Implementing Agreements has the meaning given to it in the Project Agreement.

#### 44. Insurance Trust Agreement

Insurance Trust Agreement has the meaning given to it in the Project Agreement.

# 45. Insurance Trustee

Insurance Trustee means the Trustee appointed under the Insurance Trust Agreement.

## 46. Interim Completion Date

Interim Completion Date means the date Completion of the Interim Work is achieved.

### 47. Interim Minor Deficiencies

Interim Minor Deficiencies means the Minor Deficiencies with respect to the Interim Work.

# 48. Interim Minor Deficiencies List

Interim Minor Deficiencies List means the list of Minor Deficiencies prepared by the Consultant in accordance with GC 5.4A.2.

# 49. Interim Preliminary Minor Deficiencies List

*Interim Preliminary Minor Deficiencies List* means the list of *Minor Deficiencies* identified by the *Contractor* in accordance with GC 5.4A.1.

# 50. Interim Project Deliverables

Interim Project Deliverables has the meaning given to it in GC 5.4A.6.

# 51. Interim Reimbursement Payment Date

*Interim Reimbursement Payment Date* means the tenth (10th) *Business Day* following the date of delivery by the *Consultant* of its report under GC 5.4A.2 to the *Owner* confirming *Completion of the Interim Work*.

# 52. Interim Work

*Interim Work* means the portion of the work as described in the specifications in the Contract Documents as Phase 1 Construct new Hospital Building in clause 2.2 on page 1 of Section 01121 Construction Sequence.

# 53. Key Personnel

Key Personnel means the individuals identified in GC 13.1.3.

# 54. Lender

Lender means any or all of the persons who provide the Financing.

# 55. Lender's Consultant

*Lender's Consultant* means any consultant appointed from time to time by the *Lender* providing *Financing* for the *Work*. Nothing contained in the *Contract Documents* and no action taken by the *Lender's Consultant* in connection with the *Work* or the *Contract Documents* shall constitute direction and/or control by the *Owner* or the *Lender* providing *Financing* for the *Work*.

# 56. Lender's Direct Agreement

Lender's Direct Agreement means the Lender's Direct Agreement as defined in the Project Agreement.

# 57. Lending Agreements

Lending Agreements means the agreements with the Lender to implement the Financing.

# 58. Limited Assignment of Construction Contract

*Limited Assignment of Construction Contract* means the Agreement so-named between *Project Co, Hospital* and *Contractor* respecting the assignment of this *Contract* by *Project Co* to *Hospital*.

# 59. Longstop Date

*Longstop Date* means the date which is one hundred and eighty (180) days from the date for the attainment of *Substantial Performance of the Work* as provided in paragraph 1.3 of Article A-1 of the Agreement – THE WORK.

# 60. Make Good or Made Good

*Make Good* or *Made Good* means repairing, restoring, refurbishing, rehabilitating, or performing filling operation on the *Work* as required under the *Contract Documents* or any existing components disturbed due to the *Work* of this *Contract* to at least the condition existing at the commencement of the *Work*, in terms of construction integrity, finishes, alignment with existing adjoining surfaces, compatibility of materials, sound attenuation criteria, exfiltration/infiltration requirements, air/vapour barrier and thermal continuity.

# 61. Minor Deficiencies

*Minor Deficiencies* means any defects, deficiencies and items of outstanding *Work* (including in relation to any seasonal *Work*) which would not materially impair the *Owner's* use and enjoyment of the *Work* and includes any damage to the work of the *Owner's* own forces or the work of the *Owner's* other contractors caused by the *Contractor*.

#### 62. Minor Deficiencies List

*Minor Deficiencies List* means the list of *Minor Deficiencies* prepared by the *Consultant* in accordance with GC 5.5.2.

#### 63. Mock-up

Mock-up means two (2) or more materials, *Products*, or systems specified to be constructed at the *Place of the Work* or off site or at shop as applicable and then constructed on site to encourage a *Contractor* or *Subcontractor* and related *Suppliers* to be aware of the integral interface required to assemble these components or systems; usually constructed to full size.

# 64. Overhead and Profit Fee

The Overhead and Profit Fee is the amount stipulated in GC 6.2.4 which excludes the Value Added Tax.

#### 65. Owner

The *Owner* is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement. The term *Owner* means the *Owner* or the *Owner*'s authorized agent or representative as designated to the *Contractor* in writing, but does not include the *Consultant*.

#### 66. Owner Indemnified Persons

Owner Indemnified Persons has the meaning given to it in GC 12.1.1.

## 67. Owner's Project Manager

*Owner's Project Manager* shall mean the project manager either internal to the *Owner* or appointed by the *Owner* to assist the *Owner* in the implementation of the *Project*.

#### 68. Place of the Work

The *Place of the Work* is the designated site or location of the *Work* identified in Article A-1 of the Agreement - THE WORK.

#### 69. Product

*Product* or *Products* means material, machinery, equipment, and fixtures forming the *Work*, but does not include machinery and equipment used to prepare, fabricate, convey, or erect the *Work*, which are referred to as construction machinery and equipment.

#### 70. Project

The Project means the total construction contemplated by the Contract Documents of the Work.

#### 71. Project Agreement

*Project Agreement* means the agreement so-named between the *Hospital*, the *Contractor* and *Project Co* respecting the delivery of the *Project*.

### 72. Project Co

*Project Co* is the person or entity identified as such in the *Project Agreement*.

#### 73. **Project Deliverables**

Project Deliverables has the meaning given to it in GC 5.5.9.

#### 74. Provide

Provide means to supply, install and put into service.

## 75. Provincial Sales Tax

Provincial Sales Tax means the tax imposed under the Retail Sales Tax Act (Ontario).

#### 76. **Record Documents**

*Record Documents* means a collection of construction documents, including shop drawings, *Product* data sheets, reports, operation and maintenance information, as well as a revised set of the *Contract Documents*, recording the actual placement, configuration and nature of the various *Products* used in the construction of the *Work* and shall include record drawings prepared pursuant to GC 3.11.9. *Record Documents* shall include where available environmental consultant's report, pre-start health and safety review reports and shall include in an electronic format system acceptable to *Consultant, As-Built Drawings* on diskette or recordable CD, maintenance and operating instructions manual, six (6) sets of prints of record drawings and miscellaneous closeout submittals required by *Contract Documents*.

# 77. Release

Release has the meaning given to it in GC 9.3.3.

# 78. Request for Proposals

Request for Proposals means the Request for Proposals issued by the Hospital in respect of the Work.

# 79. **RFP Submission**

RFP Submission means the submission of the Contractor in response to the Request for Proposals.

#### 80. Risk Assessment Guidelines

*Risk Assessment Guidelines* means the Risk Assessment Guidelines for the *Project* set out in GC 13.5 – RISK ASSESSMENT GUIDELINES.

# 81. Schedule Cushion

The Schedule Cushion shall be a schedule contingency added to the last activity on the critical path of the Construction Schedule and consisting of thirty (30) days duration. The Schedule Cushion shall be included in the Construction Schedule and for greater certainty the Schedule Cushion shall not extend the Contract Time. The Owner has ownership of the Schedule Cushion and can elect to use it at any time in respect to an Owner initiated Change Order or upon the occurrence of any event of delay which would otherwise grant to the Contractor an extension of Contract Time provided any portion of the Schedule Cushion which has not been used by the Owner prior to the Substantial Performance Date will be given to the Contractor. For greater certainty such utilization shall not result in any right to a claim for an increase in the Cost of the Financing.

#### 82. Shop Drawing Schedule

Shop Drawing Schedule means the schedule for the submission of shop drawings described in GC 3.11.4.

#### 83. Site Background Reports

*Site Background Reports* means those reports, plans, and studies respecting the *Place of the Work* and the conditions for the *Work* referred to in GC 13.4 – SITE BACKGROUND REPORTS.

# 84. Sub-Subcontractor

*Sub-Subcontractor* shall mean a person or entity at any tier of the contracting chain beneath a *Subcontractor* or *Supplier*, who performs a part or parts of the *Work*, or supplies *Products* worked to a special design for the *Work* or who supplies work, services, materials, equipment or labour in any respect of the *Work*, or who supplies *Products* not worked to a special design for the *Work*.

#### 85. Subcontractor

A *Subcontractor* is a person or entity having a direct contract with the *Contractor* to perform a part or parts of the *Work*, or to supply *Products* worked to a special design for the *Work* or who supplies work, services or labour in any respect of the *Work*.

#### 86. Substantial Performance Date

Substantial Performance Date means the date Substantial Performance of the Work is achieved.

#### 87. Substantial Performance of the Work

Substantial Performance of the Work means that:

- .1 the *Contractor* has performed its obligations in GC 5.5 SUBSTANTIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK;
- .2 the *Work* is available for occupancy by the *Owner* in accordance with the standards for occupancy set out in the Ontario Building Code and the requirements of local municipal building authorities in the City of Toronto;
- .3 the *Commissioning* of the *Work* has been completed in accordance with the *Contract Documents* to the extent required to meet the requirements for occupancy of the *Work* set out in the Ontario Building Code and the building services required for the *Owner* to carry out its *Commissioning* activities are available in accordance with the specifications; and
- .4 all *Interim Project Deliverables* and all *Project Deliverables* other than those included as *Interim Minor Deficiencies* or *Minor Deficiencies* in accordance with GC 5.4A.2 or GC 5.5.8 respectively have been assigned and provided to the *Owner*.

#### 88. Supplemental Instruction

A Supplemental Instruction is an instruction including a field or site instruction issued for recording any clarifications or interpretation of the Contract Documents or giving direction on field conditions and not involving adjustment in the Guaranteed Price or Contract Time, in the form of specifications, drawings, schedules, samples, models, or written instructions, consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. It is to be issued by the Consultant to supplement the Contract Documents as required for the performance of the Work.

#### 89. Supplier

A *Supplier* is a person or entity having a direct contract with the *Contractor* to supply *Products* not worked to a special design for the *Work*.

#### 90. Total Completion

*Total Completion* shall occur when the *Work*, except those items arising from the provisions of GC 12.3 – WARRANTY, has been deemed to have been completed in accordance with the applicable provisions of the *Construction Lien Act* (Ontario) and is so certified by the *Consultant* as determined by the *Consultant* in accordance with this *Contract*, including satisfying the requirements of GC 5.8 – FINAL PAYMENT.

#### 91. Value Added Tax

Value Added Tax means the tax payable under Part IX of the Excise Tax Act (Canada).

#### 92. Work

The *Work* means the total construction and related services required by the *Contract Documents* and for greater certainty does not include the *Financing*.

#### 93. Working Day

*Working Day* means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or a holiday which is observed by the construction industry in the area of the *Place of the Work*.

# GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT

# PART 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

# GC 1.1 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- 1.1.1 The intent of the *Contract Documents* is to include the labour, *Products*, and services necessary for the performance of the *Work* by the *Contractor* in accordance with these documents.
- 1.1.2 Subject to GC 13.4, nothing contained in the *Contract Documents* shall create any contractual relationship between:
  - .1 the *Owner* and a *Subcontractor*, a *Supplier*, or their agent, employee, or other person performing any of the *Work*.
  - .2 the *Consultant* and the *Contractor*, a *Subcontractor*, a *Supplier*, or their agent, employee, or other person performing any of the *Work*.
- 1.1.3 The *Contract Documents* are complementary, and what is required by any one shall be as binding as if required by all.
- 1.1.4 Words and abbreviations which have well known technical or trade meanings are used in the *Contract Documents* in accordance with such recognized meanings.
- 1.1.5 References in the *Contract Documents* to the singular shall be considered to include the plural as the context requires.
- 1.1.6 The specifications are that portion of the *Contract Documents*, wherever located and whenever issued, consisting of the written requirements and standards for *Products*, systems, workmanship, and the services necessary for the performance of the *Work*.
- 1.1.7 The drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the *Contract Documents*, wherever located and whenever issued, showing the design, location, and dimensions of the *Work*, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams.

- 1.1.8 Neither the organization of the specifications into divisions, sections, and parts nor the arrangement of drawings shall control the *Contractor* in dividing the *Work* among *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* or in establishing the extent of the *Work* to be performed by a trade.
- 1.1.9 If there is a conflict within *Contract Documents*:

.1 the order of priority of documents, from highest to lowest, shall be

the Agreement between the *Owner* and the *Contractor*, the Definitions, the General Conditions, the *Addenda Division 1 of the specifications, Division 2 through 16 of the specifications, material and finishing schedules,* drawings.

- .2 drawings of larger scale shall govern over those of smaller scale of the same date.
- .3 dimensions shown on drawings shall govern over dimensions scaled from drawings.
- .4 later dated documents shall govern over earlier documents of the same type.
- .5 if an item is shown on one document, it shall be deemed to be part of the *Work*.
- .6 written descriptions and words shall govern over graphic depictions.
- 1.1.10 The Owner shall provide the Contractor, without charge, ten (10) hard copies of the Contract Documents (including the Addenda), two (2) of which shall be used for record drawings and one (1) electronic copy in pdf format of the Contract Documents (including the Addenda) contained on a CD. The Owner shall also provide the Contractor, without charge, one (1) hard copy of all administrative documents such as Change Orders, Contemplated Change Notices, Change Directives, Supplemental Instructions and Design Issue resolution forms. Any additional copies of the Contract Documents or part thereof including additional copies of administrative documents, shall be at the expense of the Contractor. The Contractor shall ensure that all copies of the Contract Documents received from the Owner shall be kept in a secure location.
- 1.1.11 Specifications, drawings, models, and copies thereof furnished by the *Consultant* are and shall remain the *Consultant's* property, with the exception of the signed *Contract* sets, which shall belong to each party to the *Contract*. All specifications, drawings, and models furnished by the *Consultant* are to be used only with respect to the *Work* and are not to be used on other work. These specifications, drawings, and models are not to be copied or altered in any manner except in accordance with the *Contract Documents* without the written authorization of the *Consultant*.
- 1.1.12 Models furnished by the *Contractor* at the *Owner's* expense are the property of the *Owner*.
- 1.1.13 The *Contract Documents* shall be signed in triplicate by the *Owner* and by the *Contractor*.
- 1.1.14 The *Contractor* shall verify the dimensions shown on the drawings before layout of *Work*. The *Contractor* acknowledges its responsibility for remedying issues falling within the *Contractor's Design Contingency* as set out in GC 4.2 CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY.
- 1.1.15 In the case of any item of the *Work* being specified under the heading of more than one trade section, the *Contractor* shall decide which of these trades is to perform the *Work*.

- 1.1.16 Headings in all *Contract Documents* are inserted for reference convenience only and shall not affect the *Work*, nor the interpretation of the *Contract Documents*.
- 1.1.17 Syntax
  - .1 Where the words 'accepted', 'reviewed', 'designated', 'directed', 'inspected', 'instructed', 'permitted', 'required', and 'selected' are used in the *Contract Documents*, they are deemed to be followed by the words 'by the *Consultant*', unless the context provides otherwise.
  - .2 Where the words 'acceptable', 'submit' and 'satisfactory' are used in the *Contract Documents*, they are deemed to be followed by the words 'to the *Consultant*', unless the context provides otherwise.
  - .3 Where the masculine is used in the *Contract Documents*, it shall be read and interpreted as if the feminine or neuter had been used when the context of the statement so requires, and the rest of the sentence, clause, paragraph or item shall be interpreted as if all changes in grammar, gender or terminology thereby rendered necessary had been made.
  - .4 The use of the words "include" or "including", or variations thereof, is not limiting.
- 1.1.18 With reference to GC 1.1.9, the *Consultant* shall decide on issues related to any conflict between documents of equal precedence.

# GC 1.2 LAW OF THE CONTRACT

1.2.1 The law of the *Place of the Work* shall govern the interpretation of the *Contract*.

### GC 1.3 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

- 1.3.1 Except as expressly provided in the *Contract Documents*, the duties and obligations imposed by the *Contract Documents* and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.
- 1.3.2 No action or failure to act by the *Owner*, the *Consultant*, or the *Contractor* shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the *Contract*, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

#### GC 1.4 ASSIGNMENT

- 1.4.1 The *Contractor* shall not sell, assign, transfer, charge, mortgage, encumber, dispose of or otherwise alienate all or any part of any interest, whether legal or beneficial, in this *Contract* without the prior written consent of *Owner*, which consent may be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
- 1.4.2 GC 1.4.1 shall not apply to:
  - .1 the grant of security or any other interest to *Lender* under any of the *Lending Agreements*; or
  - .2 the award of any *Subcontract* or any *Sub-Subcontract* entered into in connection with the *Project*.
- 1.4.3 The *Owner* shall not charge, mortgage or encumber, or, except in accordance with GC 1.4.4 sell, assign, transfer, dispose of or otherwise alienate, all or any part of its interest in this *Contract*.

- 1.4.4 The *Owner* may sell, assign, transfer, dispose of or otherwise alienate all (but not less than all) of its interest in this *Contract* and the *Project Agreement* and the other *Implementing Agreements*:
  - .1 to the Province of Ontario;
  - .2 to the Local Health Integration Network (as defined pursuant to the *Local Health System Integration Act* (Ontario);
  - .3 to any public hospital under the *Public Hospitals Act* (Ontario) to whom the Ministry of Health and Long Term Care, exercising its statutory rights, would be entitled to transfer same;
  - .4 to any successor of the *Hospital*, where such successor arises as a result of a direction or approval under the *Public Hospitals Act* (Ontario) and/or the *Local Health System Integration Act* (Ontario) or a reorganization of the delivery of health services initiated by the Province of Ontario;
  - .5 to any person that is regulated and funded by the Province of Ontario as a healthcare institution and is approved by the Ministry of Health and Long Term Care as a transferee of same; or
  - .6 in circumstances other than those described in GC 1.4.4.1 to .5 inclusive with the prior written consent of *Project Co*, the *Contractor* and the *Lender* not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed,

provided that (A) the person to whom any such sale, assignment, transfer, disposition or other alienation is made has the capacity to assume and perform, and agrees in writing with the *Contractor*, *Project Co* and the *Lender* to assume and perform, all the obligations of the *Owner* hereunder and under the *Project Agreement* (including all other "Implementing Agreements" as referred to therein); and (B) the Ministry of Health and Long Term Care confirms to the assignee or transferee its commitment to fund the assignee or transferee on terms and conditions no less favourable than those set out in the "Funding Letter" (as referred to in the *Project Agreement*) and a copy of such confirmation is provided to *Project Co, Contractor* and *Lender*.

1.4.5 Upon any sale, assignment, transfer, disposition or other alienation in accordance with GC 1.4.4, the *Owner* shall be released of all of its obligations under the *Contract* to the extent assumed by the assignee or transferee.

# GC 1.5 PROJECT REQUIREMENTS

- 1.5.1 The *Contractor* represents, covenants and warrants to the *Owner* that:
  - .1 it has extensive experience in the construction of health facilities and other public buildings and it has the necessary high degree of expertise and experience required to enable it to perform the services required by the Contract Documents, to review and interpret the *Contract Documents* and to complete the *Work* in accordance with the standard of care set out in GC 3.16 – STANDARD OF CARE;
  - .2 the manager or supervisory personnel it assigns to the *Project* are highly experienced;
  - .3 it has sufficient staff of qualified and competent personnel to replace its designated supervisors, subject to the *Owner's* approval, in the event of death, incapacity or resignation;

- .4 there are no claims or, to the knowledge of the *Contractor*, there are no pending, threatened or anticipated claims that would have a material adverse affect on the financial ability of the *Contractor* to perform the *Work*;
- .5 it has conducted inspections of the Place of the Work under the Request for Proposals and an investigation and examination of the Contract Documents and any other documents made available to the Contractor by the Hospital (which include, to the extent made available to the Contractor by the Hospital, equipment lists, legal description of the Place of the Work, copies of any registered and unregistered agreements affecting the Place of the Work, results of tests, reports of independent testing agencies and surveys and documents indicating location of utilities and other structures to the extent obtained by the Owner, information regarding the critical requirements to maintain the operations of the *Hospital*, hospital protocols and rules and regulations, if any, including the Site Background Reports and the Contract Documents referred to in GC 3.12.5), so as to ascertain the nature of the location of the Work and the Place of the Work, the physical conditions of the Place of the Work, the interface with the *Existing Hospital* and protocols, rules and regulations, if any, possible delays in commencing the Work, conditions relating to the transportation, handling and storage of materials and availability of labour and the character and availability of equipment, materials and facilities needed to perform the Work to identify any Design Issue. The Contractor has delivered to the Consultant requests for information in respect of all questions arising out of the foregoing inspections, investigations and examinations and in respect of each Design Issue identified. Based on this review, the Contractor has established a Contractor's Design Contingency adequate in its judgement to fund any change or delay cost that may arise as the result of any further *Design Issue* that may be identified that may be properly characterized as a *Contractor's Design Contingency* matter;
- .6 during the tender period, it has retained the necessary consultants or has sufficient staff with the appropriate skills to review the *Contract Documents*; and
- .7 it has solicited bids from and will award subcontracts only to the *Approved Mechanical and Electrical Subcontractors*.

# PART 2 ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT

# GC 2.1 AUTHORITY OF THE CONSULTANT

- 2.1.1 The *Consultant* will have authority to act on behalf of the *Owner* only to the extent provided in the *Contract Documents*, unless otherwise modified by written agreement as provided in GC 2.1.2.
- 2.1.2 The duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of the *Consultant* as set forth in the *Contract Documents* shall be modified or extended only with the written consent of the *Owner*, the *Contractor* and the *Consultant*.
- 2.1.3 If the *Consultant's* employment is terminated, the *Owner* shall immediately appoint or reappoint a *Consultant* whose status shall, upon notification to the *Contractor* of such appointment or reappointment, be that of the former *Consultant*.

# GC 2.2 ROLE OF THE CONSULTANT

2.2.1 The *Consultant* will provide administration of the *Contract* as described in the *Contract Documents* during construction until issuance of the final certificate for payment, and subject to GC 2.1 – AUTHORITY OF THE CONSULTANT and with the *Owner's* concurrence, from time to time until the completion of any correction of defects as provided in GC 12.3.3 of GC 12.3 – WARRANTY.

- 2.2.2 The *Consultant* will visit the *Place of the Work* at intervals appropriate to the progress of construction to become familiar with the progress and quality of the *Work* and to determine if the *Work* is proceeding in general conformity with the *Contract Documents*.
- 2.2.3 If the *Owner* and the *Consultant* agree, the *Consultant* will provide at the *Place of the Work*, one or more project representatives to assist in carrying out the *Consultant's* responsibilities. The duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such project representatives shall be as set forth in writing to the *Contractor*.
- 2.2.4 The *Consultant* will provide to the *Contractor* a complete set of the construction drawings and specifications under the *Contract Documents* incorporating all *Addenda* issued by the *Consultant* from the date of the *Request for Proposals* to the date of execution of the *Contract* as soon as reasonably practical following such date of execution. The *Consultant* shall review the progress of the *Work* and the general conformance of the *Work* to the requirements of the *Contract Documents*. The *Consultant* shall review the submission of the *Contractor* in respect to *Work* completed for the purposes of a progress payment application by the *Contractor* under GC 5.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PROGRESS PAYMENT to verify the extent of the completion of the *Work* in accordance with the schedule of values and shall perform the other responsibilities of the *Consultant* under GC 5.4 PROGRESS PAYMENTS and GC 5.8 FINAL PAYMENT.
- 2.2.5 The *Consultant* will not be responsible for and will not have control, charge, or supervision of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs required in connection with the *Work* in accordance with the applicable construction safety legislation, other regulations, or general construction practice. The *Consultant* will not be responsible for the *Contractor's* failure to carry out the *Work* in accordance with the *Contract Documents*. The *Consultant* will not have control over, charge of, or be responsible for the acts or omissions of the *Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers*, or their agents, employees, or any other persons performing portions of the *Work*.
- 2.2.6 The *Consultant* will be, in the first instance, the interpreter of the requirements of the *Contract Documents* and shall make findings as to the performance thereunder by both parties to the *Contract*. Interpretations and findings of the *Consultant* shall be consistent with the intent of the *Contract Documents*. When making any interpretations or findings or performing any other functions, or exercising any right or performing any obligation, under the *Contract Documents* the *Consultant* will act reasonably and in good faith and in accordance with generally accepted professional standards and will not show partiality to either the *Owner* or the *Contractor*. Any dispute between the *Owner* and the *Contractor* as to any decision, determination, direction, interpretation or finding of the *Consultant* or any other action taken by the *Consultant* pursuant to or in connection with the *Contract Documents* shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions of PART 8 – DISPUTE RESOLUTION.
- 2.2.7 Claims, disputes, and other matters in question relating to the performance of the *Work* or the interpretation of the *Contract Documents*, shall be referred initially to the *Consultant* by notice in writing given to the *Consultant* and to the other party for the *Consultant's* interpretation and finding which will be given by notice in writing to the parties within a reasonable time.
- 2.2.8 The *Consultant* will have authority to reject *Work* which does not conform to the requirements of the *Contract Documents*. Whenever the *Consultant* considers it necessary or advisable, the *Consultant* will have authority to require inspection or testing of *Work* in accordance with GC 2.3 REVIEW AND INSPECTION OF THE WORK, whether or not such *Work* is fabricated, installed, or completed. However, neither the authority of the *Consultant* to act nor any decision either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to any duty or responsibility of the *Consultant* to the *Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers*, or their agents, employees, or other persons performing any of the *Work*.
- 2.2.9 When a request for information is submitted by the *Contractor* in accordance with GC 3.1.1, the *Consultant* will endeavour to provide a response to the *Contractor* as soon as practical, taking into

account the impact of the request for information on the critical path. If the request for information relates to an item on the critical path or is reasonably likely to affect an item on the critical path, the *Consultant* shall respond within five (5) *Working Days* or such longer period of time mutually agreed to by the *Consultant* and the *Contractor*. If the request for information does not relate to an item on the critical path and is not reasonably likely to affect an item on the critical path, the *Consultant* shall establish a mutually agreed response time that is consistent with the *Construction Schedule*.

- 2.2.10 The *Consultant* will review and take appropriate action upon such *Contractor's* submittals as shop drawings, *Product* data and samples, as provided in the *Contract Documents*.
- 2.2.11 The *Consultant* will prepare *Change Orders* and *Change Directives* as provided in GC 6.2 CHANGE ORDER and GC 6.3 CHANGE DIRECTIVE.
- 2.2.12 The *Consultant* will conduct reviews of the *Work* to determine the dates of *Completion of the Interim Work* and *Substantial Performance of the Work* as provided in GC 5.4A – COMPLETION OF THE INTERIM WORK and GC 5.5 - SUBSTANTIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK respectively and make determinations as required in respect of the *Commissioning* as contemplated in GC 13.3– COMMISSIONING.
- 2.2.13 All certificates issued by the *Consultant* shall be to the best of the *Consultant's* knowledge, information and belief. By issuing any certificate, the *Consultant* does not guarantee the *Work* is correct or complete.
- 2.2.14 The *Consultant* will receive and review written warranties and related documents required by the *Contract* and provided by the *Contractor* and will forward such warranties and documents to the *Owner* for the *Owner's* acceptance.
- 2.2.15 Without limiting the generality of the responsibilities of the *Consultant* in accordance with this GC 2.2, the *Consultant* shall be responsible for reviewing and making a finding on *Design Issues* and issuing all final documentation in accordance with GC 4.2 CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY.
- 2.2.16 The Owner has retained the Owner's Project Manager to assist the Owner in the overall implementation of the Project. The Owner's Project Manager shall provide services and interface with the Contractor and the Consultant in relation to coordination of the Work for existing operations, schedule overview and communicating decisions and directions of the Owner. The Owner may, upon notification to the Contractor, appoint a new Owner's Project Manager whose status shall be that of the former Owner's Project Manager.
- 2.2.17 The *Consultant* shall cooperate with the *Lender's Consultant* on a reasonable basis to facilitate the responsibilities of the *Lender's Consultant*. No activities of the *Lender's Consultant* under the *Contract* shall limit in any manner the role and responsibility of the *Consultant* except as expressly provided for in GC 5.3.3 and GC 5.4.1.
- 2.2.18 When the *Owner*, the *Consultant* or the *Contractor* provides any written notice under this *Contract*, they shall also provide a copy of the notice to each other and to the *Owner's Project Manager*, *Project Co*, the *Lender* and the *Lender's Consultant*.

# GC 2.3 REVIEW AND INSPECTION OF THE WORK

2.3.1 The Owner, the Owner's Project Manager, the Consultant and the Lender's Consultant shall have access to the Work at all times during normal business hours. The Contractor shall provide sufficient, safe and proper facilities at all times for the review of the Work by the Consultant and the inspection of the Work by authorized agencies. If parts of the Work are in preparation at locations other than the

*Place of the Work*, the *Owner* and the *Consultant*, the *Owner's Project Manager* and the *Lender's Consultant* shall be given access to such *Work* whenever it is in progress upon reasonable notice and during normal business hours.

- 2.3.2 If *Work* is designated for tests, inspections, or approvals in the *Contract Documents*, or by the *Consultant's* instructions, or the laws or ordinances of the *Place of the Work*, the *Contractor* shall give the *Consultant* reasonable notice of when the *Work* will be ready for review and inspection. The *Contractor* shall arrange for and shall give the *Consultant* reasonable notice of the date and time of inspections by other authorities.
- 2.3.3 The *Contractor* shall furnish promptly to the *Consultant* two (2) copies of certificates and inspection reports relating to the *Work*.
- 2.3.4 If the *Contractor* covers, or permits to be covered, *Work* that has been designated for special tests, inspections, or approvals before such special tests, inspections, or approvals are made, given or completed, the *Contractor* shall, if so directed, uncover such *Work*, have the inspections or tests satisfactorily completed, and *Make Good* covering *Work* at the *Contractor's* expense.
- 2.3.5 The *Consultant* may order any portion or portions of the *Work* to be examined to confirm that such *Work* is in accordance with the requirements of the *Contract Documents*. If the *Work* is not in accordance with the requirements of the *Contract Documents*, the *Contractor* shall correct the *Work* and pay the cost of examination and correction. If the *Work* is in accordance with the requirements of the *Contract Documents*, the *Contract Docume*
- 2.3.6 Where inspection and testing services are specified, the firm employed for such services shall be the firm named and paid by the *Owner*, or named by the *Owner* and paid through a *Cash Allowance Disbursement Authorization* by the *Contractor* and others (unless otherwise indicated) or named and paid by the *Contractor*. Such inspection shall be identified in the *Construction Schedule* and the *Contractor* shall give the *Consultant* timely notice requesting on-site inspection when required.
- 2.3.7 Where standards of performance are specified and the *Work* does not comply with the specified standard of performance, the deficiency in the *Work* shall be corrected as directed by the *Consultant*. Subsequent testing to ensure that the standard of performance has been attained (including retesting by the *Owner*), shall be carried out at the *Contractor's* expense and does not form part of the *Cost of the Work* and shall not extend *Contract Time*.

# GC 2.4 DEFECTIVE WORK

- 2.4.1 The *Contractor* shall promptly remove from the *Place of the Work* and replace or re-execute defective *Work* that fails to conform to the *Contract Documents* whether or not the defective *Work* has been incorporated in the *Work* and whether or not the defect is the result of poor workmanship, use of defective *Products* or damage through carelessness or other act or omission of the *Contractor*. The correction of defective *Work* shall be at the *Contractor's* expense. The *Contractor* shall rectify, in a manner acceptable to the *Consultant*, all defective *Work* and deficiencies throughout the *Work*, whether or not they are specifically identified by the *Consultant*, and the *Contractor* shall prioritize the correction of any defective *Work* so as not to interfere with, or derogate from, the *Construction Schedule*, provided that the *Contractor* shall prioritize the correction of the *Owner* is determined to adversely affect the day to day operation of the *Hospital*.
- 2.4.2 The *Contractor* shall *Make Good* promptly other contractors' work destroyed or damaged by such rectifications at the *Contractor's* expense.
- 2.4.3 If in the opinion of the *Consultant* it is not expedient to correct defective *Work* or *Work* not performed as provided in the *Contract Documents*, the *Owner* may deduct from the amount of the *Guaranteed Price* the difference in value between the *Work* as performed and that called for by the *Contract*

*Documents*. If the *Owner* and the *Contractor* do not agree on the difference in value, they shall refer the matter to the *Consultant* for a determination and the determination will be issued as a *Change Order*.

# PART 3 EXECUTION OF THE WORK

# GC 3.1 CONTROL OF THE WORK

- 3.1.1 The Contractor shall have complete control of the Work and shall effectively direct and supervise the Work so as to ensure conformance with the Contract Documents including the phasing or sequencing requirements for the *Work* set out in the *Contract Documents*. During the progress of the *Work* the Contractor shall endeavour to submit any request for information to the Consultant in a timely manner having regard for the Construction Schedule and to identify in the request for information the timeframe within which a Supplemental Instruction is needed to ensure there is no impact on the Construction Schedule including whether and how the information requested affects the critical path. The Consultant shall respond to requests for information in accordance with GC 2.2.9. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for coordinating the various parts of the Work under the Contract. The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with Good Industry Practice and shall employ only quality materials and good workmanship subject to the specific requirements of the *Contract Documents*. The Contractor shall develop and implement noise and dust abatement protocols in accordance with the specifications. The *Contractor* shall develop and implement protocols in accordance with the specifications for the phasing or sequencing of the Work as set out in the Contract Documents including the coordination of the work of the Owner's own forces or other contractors with the Work. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the *Contractor* is responsible for the intermeshing of the various parts and systems comprising any portions of the *Work* so that no part shall be left in an unfinished or incomplete condition owing to any disagreement between the various Subcontractors or various Sub - Subcontractors, or between any of them or between any of them and the Contractor as to where the Work of one begins and ends with relation to the Work of the other.
- 3.1.2 The *Contractor* shall be solely responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures and for coordinating the various parts of the *Work* under the *Contract* and shall coordinate the *Work* so as not to interfere with, interrupt, obstruct, delay or otherwise affect, the work of others.
- 3.1.3 Prior to commencing procurement and construction activities, the *Contractor* shall verify, at the *Place* of the Work, all measurements and levels necessary for proper and complete fabrication, assembly and installation of the *Work* and shall further carefully compare such field measurements and conditions with the requirements of the *Contract Documents*. Where dimensions are not included or exact locations are not apparent, the *Contractor* shall immediately notify the *Consultant* in writing and obtain written instructions from the *Consultant* before proceeding with any part of the *Work* affected thereby.
- 3.1.4 The *Contractor* acknowledges that the security of the occupants of the *Existing Hospital* and the safety of the patients and employees in the *Existing Hospital* is paramount. If any of the employees of the *Contractor*, *Subcontractor* or *Sub-Subcontractor* is determined by the *Owner* to be a concern for the security of the *Existing Hospital* or for the safety of the patients or employees in the *Existing Hospital*, the *Owner* may require that the *Contractor* replace such employee or restrict access to the *Place of the Work* to that employee and the *Contractor* shall find or cause the *Subcontractor* or *Sub-Subcontractor* to find substitute employees to proceed with the Work so as not to jeopardize security or safety or cause delay to the progress of the *Work* contrary to the *Construction Schedule*.
- 3.1.5 In the event of an emergency threatening health, life or property, the *Contractor* shall take such action as may be reasonable and appropriate to save lives and protect persons from injury, and, this being done, to protect and preserve property. The provision of GC 10.2 LAWS, NOTICES, PERMITS,

# GC 3.2 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR OTHER CONTRACTORS

emergency or matter of safety.

- 3.2.1 The *Owner* reserves the right to award separate contracts in connection with work related to the *Project* to other contractors and to perform work related to the *Project* with its own forces. The *Owner* may assign the coordination, scheduling and safety training of the work of the Owner's other contractors or the *Owner's* own forces to the *Contractor*.
- 3.2.2 When separate contracts are awarded for work related to the *Project*, or when such work is performed by the *Owner's* own forces, the *Owner* shall:
  - .1 cause the *Owner's* other contractors or the *Owner's* own forces to comply with the instructions of the *Contractor* relating to coordination and scheduling of the activities and work of such contractors or the *Owner's* own forces with the *Work* of the *Contract*;
  - .2 enter into separate contracts with other contractors under conditions of contract which are compatible with the conditions of the *Contract* and provide for compliance by such other contractors with GC 3.2.3.1 and GC 3.2.3.3 and all directions of the *Contractor* in respect to any matter regarding site safety;
  - .3 ensure that insurance coverage is provided as would be required by a prudent owner similarly situated and coordinate such insurance with the insurance coverage of the *Contractor* as it affects the *Work* and in any event such insurance shall provide for liability insurance of not less than **\$[REDACTED]**; and
  - .4 take all necessary steps to avoid labour disputes or other disputes on the *Project* arising from the work of the *Owner's* other contractors or the *Owner's* own forces.
- 3.2.3 When separate contracts are awarded for work related to the *Project*, or when work is performed by the *Owner's* own forces related to the *Project*, the *Contractor* shall:
  - .1 subject to the performance by the *Owner* of its obligations under GC 3.2.2.1 and GC 3.2.2.2, provide for the coordination and scheduling of the activities and work of the *Owner's* other contractors and the *Owner's* own forces with the *Work* of the *Contract*;
  - .2 afford the *Owner* and the *Owner*'s other contractors reasonable opportunity to introduce and store their products and use their construction machinery and equipment to execute their work;
  - .3 participate with the *Owner's* other contractors and the *Owner* in reviewing their construction schedules when directed to do so by the *Owner*, the *Owner's Project Manager* and/or the *Consultant*;
  - .4 where part of the *Work* is affected by or depends upon, for its proper execution, the work of the *Owner's* other contractors or the *Owner's* own forces, promptly report to the *Consultant* in writing and prior to proceeding with that part of the *Work* any readily apparent deficiencies in such work. Failure by the *Contractor* to so report shall invalidate any claims against the *Owner* by reason of such readily apparent deficiencies; and
  - .5 subject to GC 3.6.1, for the *Owner's* own forces and for other contractors, assume overall responsibility for compliance with all aspects of the applicable Health and Safety legislation of the *Place of the Work*, including all the responsibilities of the 'constructor' under the *Occupational Health and Safety Act* (Ontario) ("OHSA").

- 3.2.4 The *Contractor* shall not be responsible for any failure in the performance of the work of the *Owner's* other contractors or the *Owner's* own forces. If:
  - .1 any of the *Owner's* other contractors or the *Owner's* own forces cause any damage to the *Work*; or
  - .2 the *Contractor* incurs any additional costs or there is any delay in the *Construction Schedule* as a result of any of the *Owner's* other contractors or the *Owner's* own forces not complying with the coordination, scheduling and safety instructions of the *Contractor*; or
  - .3 the *Contractor* incurs any additional costs or there is any delay in the *Construction Schedule* as a result of any work done by the *Owner's* other contractors or the *Owner's* own forces (other than work that is described in the *Contract Documents* and performed by such other contractors or the *Owner's* own forces in accordance with *Good Industry Practice* and in accordance with the terms of their respective contracts or engagements with the *Owner*);

the *Contractor* shall be entitled to compensation in respect of such damage or for such increased costs and to an extension of time for such delay, in each case authorized and valued as a *Change Order*.

- 3.2.5 Claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the *Contractor* and the *Owner's* other contractors shall be dealt with in substantially the same manner as contemplated in PART 8 DISPUTE RESOLUTION provided the *Owner's* other contractors have reciprocal obligations. The *Contractor* shall be deemed to have consented to arbitration of any dispute with any other contractor of the *Owner* whose contract with the *Owner* contains a similar agreement to arbitrate.
- 3.2.6 Placing, installing, application and connection of work performed by the *Owner's* own forces or by the *Owner's* other contractors, on and to the *Work* performed by the *Contractor* will not relieve the *Contractor's* responsibility to provide and maintain the specified warranties with respect to the *Work* except to the extent that the placing, installing, application or connection of such work by the *Owner's* own forces or by the *Owner's* other contractors on and to the *Work* performed by the *Contractor* gives rise to a claim under the warranties provided by the *Contractor*, in which case such warranties shall not apply to such claim.

### GC 3.3 TEMPORARY SUPPORTS, STRUCTURES AND FACILITIES

- 3.3.1 The *Contractor* shall have the sole responsibility for the design, erection, operation, maintenance, and removal of temporary supports, structures, and facilities and the design and execution of construction methods required in their use. Any review of the *Contractor's* temporary supports, structures, or facilities or any shop drawings related thereto by the *Owner* or the *Consultant* does not absolve the *Contractor* of its "sole responsibility" under this section.
- 3.3.2 The *Contractor* shall engage registered professional engineering personnel skilled in the appropriate disciplines to perform those functions referred to in GC 3.3.1 where required by law or by the *Contract Documents* and in all cases where such temporary supports, structures, and facilities and their method of construction are of such a nature that professional engineering skill is required to produce safe and satisfactory results.
- 3.3.3 Subject to GC 4.2 CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY, but notwithstanding the provisions of GC 3.1 CONTROL OF THE WORK, GC 3.3.1 and GC 3.3.2 or provisions to the contrary elsewhere in the *Contract Documents* where such *Contract Documents* include designs for temporary supports, structures and facilities or specify a method of construction thereof in whole or in part, such facilities and methods shall be considered to be part of the design of the *Work* and the *Contractor* shall not be held responsible for that part of the design or the specified method of construction. The *Contractor* shall, however, be responsible for the execution of such design or specified method of construction in the same manner as for the execution of the *Work*.

### GC 3.4 DOCUMENT REVIEW

3.4.1 The *Contractor* acknowledges having conducted a thorough review of the *Contract Documents* and has reported to the *Consultant* and the *Hospital* any *Design Issue* found by the *Contractor* in the *Contract Documents* during its review. If the *Contractor* does discover any *Design Issue* in the *Contract Documents*, the *Contractor* shall not proceed with the *Work* affected until the *Contractor* has proceeded in accordance with Section GC 4.2 – CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY. The *Contractor* acknowledges that it is responsible for those risks assumed by the *Contractor* described in Section GC 4.2 – CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN contractor described in section GC 4.2 – CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY.

# GC 3.5 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

- 3.5.1 The *Contractor* shall:
  - .1 review the proposed schedules and deadlines of the *Owner* for each phase of the *Work* and where the *Owner* has not specified particular dates for occupancy of phases of the *Work* the *Contractor* shall set these dates so as to achieve occupancy of such phases of the *Work* on an as early as reasonably achievable basis and include them in its proposed *Construction Schedule* under GC 3.5.1.2;
  - .2 prepare and submit to the *Owner* and the *Consultant* as soon as practical and in any event within forty-five (45) days of execution and delivery of the Agreement a detailed computerized Construction Schedule using a critical path method ("CPM") network and a *Construction Schedule* dependent cash flow forecast both in a form approved by the *Owner*. The planning and schedule software shall be "Primavera Project Planner" with the most current release available to be used. The Construction Schedule and any other schedule related reporting requirements of the Contractor shall conform to the phasing and sequencing requirements for the Work as set out in the Contract Documents including the work to be completed by the Owner's own forces or by other contractors and the date for Completion of the Interim Work, the date for Substantial Performance of the Work, the date for Total Completion and the specifications included in Division 1 of the Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, the sequencing requirements. The Construction Schedule shall indicate the requirements of GC 4.1.5.4, the schedule for Commissioning of the Work and the dates set out in paragraph 1.3 of Article A-1 of the Agreement - THE WORK for achievement of the Completion of the Interim Work, Substantial Performance of the Work and Total Completion within the Contract Time. The Owner and the Consultant will respond to the Contractor, in writing, within ten (10) Working Days of receipt of the Construction Schedule, with either its detailed comments or acceptance of the Construction *Schedule* as complete;
  - .3 in the event that the *Owner* and the *Consultant* do not accept the *Contractor's* initial *Construction Schedule* submission as complete, the *Contractor* shall re-submit as many times as necessary the *Construction Schedule*, revised in accordance with the *Owner's* and the *Consultant's* detailed comments and each re-submission shall be provided within five (5) *Working Days* of receipt of the *Consultant's* and the *Owner's* detailed comments who in turn shall also respond within five (5) *Working Days*. When the *Consultant*, it shall be the baseline *Construction Schedule* against which the *Owner* and the *Consultant*, it shall be the *Work*;
  - .4 advise the *Consultant* promptly of any error or omission in the *Construction Schedule* and correct such error or omission;
  - .5 continuously monitor the progress of the *Work* in relation to the *Construction Schedule* and the cash flow and update the *Construction Schedule* and the cash flow forecast with the

monthly construction status report under GC 5.2.5. The continuity of the *Construction Schedule's* CPM network shall be maintained for all updates and revisions. The *Contractor* shall immediately notify the *Owner* of any variance or potential variance in the scheduled completion dates;

- .6 advise the *Consultant* of any revisions required to the *Construction Schedule* as a result of extension of the *Contract Time* in accordance with PART 6 CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF THE WORK;
- .7 identify potential variances between scheduling and scheduled completion dates, review the schedule of *Work* not started or incomplete and implement necessary adjustments in the *Construction Schedule* in order to meet the date for *Completion of the Interim Work*, the date for *Substantial Performance of the Work* and the date for *Total Completion* set out in the *Construction Schedule* including the movement of manpower and equipment in response to availability of work areas;
- .8 comply with the *Construction Schedule* so as not to interfere with the other activities of the *Owner* in the *Existing Hospital*;
- .9 monitor the *Subcontractors'* personnel staffing and equipment and the availability of materials and supplies in order to meet the *Construction Schedule* and take appropriate courses of action when requirements of a contract with any *Subcontractor*, *Supplier* or *Sub-Subcontractor* are not met;
- .10 obtain from *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* a schedule showing the order number, vendor's name, shop drawing status, manufacturing lead time and delivery date of all critical material and equipment required for the *Work*;
- .11 pre-order equipment, materials and supplies where necessitated by cost and/or time factors and expedite delivery of critical items; and
- .12 in consultation with the *Owner's Project Manager* and the *Consultant*, include in the *Construction Schedule* the integration of the equipment specifications, rough-in requirements, supply and installation, including *Owner's* equipment, to ensure the ordering, delivery, receiving and supply of equipment does not impact on the *Construction Schedule*.
- 3.5.2 Any changes to the critical path of the *Construction Schedule* initiated by the *Contractor* which affect the date for *Completion of the Interim Work*, the date for *Substantial Performance of the Work* and the date for *Total Completion* must be approved in writing by the *Owner*. Subject to the terms of PART 6 CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF THE WORK, any *Owner* approval of such changes to the critical path does not entitle the *Contractor* to a *Change Order*, to extend the *Contract Time* or add to the *Guaranteed Price*.
- 3.5.3 If the *Contractor* is not meeting the deadlines set out in the *Construction Schedule* consistent with its obligations under the *Contract*, then at the written request of the *Owner* or the *Consultant*, the *Contractor*, and its *Subcontractors*, *Suppliers* and *Sub-Subcontractors* as required, shall promptly increase efforts on the *Project* including the addition of more personnel to the *Project* during regular times and during periods of time for which overtime may be required, and, if the delay is for any reason other than as described in GC 6.5.2, GC 6.5.3, GC 6.5.4 or GC 6.5.7, all expenses and costs incurred as a result shall be borne by the *Contractor*. Any dispute between the parties as to whether the *Contractor* is meeting the deadlines set out in the *Construction Schedule* shall be resolved in accordance with PART 8 DISPUTE RESOLUTION.

### GC 3.6 CONSTRUCTION SAFETY

- 3.6.1 The Contractor shall perform all of the obligations of the 'constructor', within the meaning of the OHSA, and shall be solely responsible for construction safety at the *Place of the Work* and for compliance with the rules, regulations and practices required by the OHSA. The Owner will contractually require other contractors retained by the *Owner* and the *Owner*'s own forces to comply with the Contractor's safety program and safety instructions, and the Contractor, as constructor, will have the right to remove the other contractors retained by the Owner and the Owner's own forces from the Place of the Work should they not comply with the Contractor's safety programs and safety instructions. Without limiting the *Contractor's* obligation pursuant to this paragraph, the *Contractor* shall ensure that all Subcontractors', Suppliers' and Sub-Subcontractors' Work is in accordance with the OHSA. The Owner shall have the right to assign to the Contractor the work of the other contractors retained by the *Owner* or the work of the *Owner's* own forces solely for the purpose of coordination of such work and safety training and safety compliance for all persons engaged in such work and, if such coordination, safety training and safety compliance results in a material increase in the Contractor's cost, the Contractor shall be compensated for such coordination, safety training and safety compliance in accordance with the provisions of PART 6 - CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF THE WORK.
- 3.6.2 Prior to commencement of the *Work*, the *Contractor* shall submit to the *Owner*:
  - .1 Documentation of a valid Workplace Safety and Insurance Board clearance certificate and confirmation of the *Contractor's* WSIB CAD-7 performance rating.
  - .2 Documentation of the *Contractor's* insurance coverage.
  - .3 Documentation of the *Contractor's* in-house safety-related programs.
  - .4 A copy of the Notice of Project filed with the Ministry of Labour.
- 3.6.3 The *Contractor* hereby represents and warrants to the *Owner* that appropriate health and safety instruction and training have been provided to the *Contractor's* employees, *Subcontractors*, *Sub-Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* (to the extent same shall have access to the *Project* site) before the *Work* is commenced including training regarding the infection control procedures set out in the materials referred to in GC 3.12.5 and agrees to provide to the *Owner*, if requested, proof of such instruction and training.
- 3.6.4 The *Contractor* shall tour the appropriate area to familiarize itself with the *Place of the Work* prior to commencement of the *Work*.
- 3.6.5 The *Contractor* shall perform the *Work* in accordance with its corporate safety-related programs, the requirements of GC 3.12.5 and applicable legislation, regulations and guidelines (to the extent such guidelines have the force of law). The *Contractor* shall have a competent supervisor on site as required under OHSA at all times.
- 3.6.6 The *Contractor* shall indemnify and save harmless the *Owner Indemnified Persons* from and against any and all claims arising out of any safety infractions committed by the *Contractor*, a *Subcontractor* or a *Supplier* under the OHSA and regulations thereto or resulting from any failure by the *Contractor* to fulfill its obligations under this GC 3.6 – CONSTRUCTION SAFETY including, without limitation, the failure to exercise any of the rights or powers given to the *Contractor* under GC 3.6.1 at the *Place of the Work* in respect of any *Person* for whom *Contractor* is responsible under the OHSA in connection with the *Project*, (including the payment of all legal fees on a full indemnity basis), save and except for claims arising out of any wilful misconduct or negligence of any of the *Owner Indemnified Persons* or breach of the terms of the *Contract* by the *Owner*, or failure of any of the *Owner's* other contractors or the *Owner's* own forces to comply with

any instructions or directions given by the *Contractor*, and this indemnity shall be deemed to be included in the terms of the indemnity set out in GC 12.1.1.

#### GC 3.7 SUPERVISOR

- The Contractor shall employ competent supervisors and necessary assistants who shall be in 3.7.1 attendance at the *Place of the Work* while *Work* is being performed and shall specifically include a competent mechanical and electrical coordinator and equipment coordinator. The Contractor acknowledges that the supervisors are Key Personnel in accordance with GC 13.1 - KEY PERSONNEL. The Contractor's supervisors shall, subject to the provisions of GC 13.1 - KEY PERSONNEL, devote their full time during working hours to the Project and remain at the Place of the Work until the Substantial Performance of the Work is achieved and thereafter such supervisors shall, subject to the provisions of GC 13.1-KEY PERSONNEL, devote sufficient time and effort to the Project as necessary until the final certificate of payment has been issued by the Consultant and all Interim Minor Deficiencies and Minor Deficiencies have been rectified. The Contractor shall include in its staff separate qualified mechanical and electrical coordinators who shall be responsible for coordinating the general, mechanical and electrical shop drawings submitted by the Subcontractors and Suppliers for various trades or divisions of the Work; checking for any conflicts or interferences of the Work of one division or trade with another; checking for completeness of the shop drawings; provide direction on any changes that may be required for compliance with the Contract Documents for submission to the Consultant and review of shop drawings. The mechanical and electrical coordinators shall be active participants in the Commissioning and work closely with the Commissioning Agents in accordance with GC 13.2 - COMMISSIONING. The mechanical and electrical coordinator(s) shall be Key Personnel in accordance with GC 13.1 – KEY PERSONNEL.
- 3.7.2 The supervisor and project manager appointed by the *Contractor* and identified in GC 13.1.3, shall represent the *Contractor* at the *Place of the Work* and shall have full authority to act on written instructions given by the *Consultant* and/or the *Owner* and the *Owner's Project Manager*. Instructions given to the supervisor or the project manager shall be deemed to have been given to the *Contractor* and both the supervisor and any project manager shall have full authority to act on behalf of the *Contractor* and bind the *Contractor* in matters related to this *Contract*.

# GC 3.8 SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

- 3.8.1 The *Contractor* shall preserve and protect the rights of the parties under the *Contract* with respect to *Work* to be performed under subcontract, and shall:
  - .1 enter into contracts or written agreements with *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* to require them to perform their *Work* as provided in the *Contract Documents* and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, shall advise the *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* of the transfer to the *Contractor* of the design coordination and design errors and omissions and design completion risk as set out in GC 4.2 CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY;
  - .2 incorporate the relevant terms and conditions of the *Contract Documents* into all contracts or written agreements with *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* including those specified in GC 12.3 WARRANTY; and
  - .3 be as fully responsible to the *Owner* for acts and omissions of *Subcontractors*, *Suppliers* and of persons directly or indirectly employed by them as for acts and omissions of persons directly employed by the *Contractor*.
- 3.8.2 A list of all *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* that the *Contractor* has engaged for the performance of the *Work* as of the date of execution of this *Contract* is set forth in GC 13.7.1, and the *Contractor* agrees to update such list from time to time as additional *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* are engaged. Any of these named *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* listed by the *Contractor* cannot be changed without the

prior written approval of the *Consultant*. Where the *Contractor* wishes to change such *Subcontractors* or *Suppliers*, it shall set out in writing to the *Consultant* sufficient reasons for the desired change. If the *Consultant* is not satisfied with the *Contractor's* reason for wanting to change a *Subcontractor* or *Supplier*, it shall notify the *Contractor* that its request is not acceptable and that the *Contractor* is required to proceed with the designated *Subcontractor* or *Supplier*. The *Contractor* shall indemnify and save harmless the *Owner* from and against any claims by any *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* that the *Contractor* has changed which may arise out of or be in connection with such change, and this indemnity shall be deemed to be included in the terms of the indemnity set out in GC 12.1.1.

- 3.8.3 The Contractor shall not be required to employ as a Subcontractor or Supplier, a person or firm to whom the Contractor may reasonably object provided the Owner may require the Contractor to use particular Subcontractors or Suppliers as specified in the Contract Documents for specific building systems of the *Owner* to ensure the *Owner* does not lose the benefit of any warranty in respect to such building systems including without limitation building automation, fire alarm and nurse call. The Owner shall have the right to assign to the Contractor the work of the Owner's other contractors or the work of the Owner's own forces related to the Project and if such assignment results in an increase in the Contractor's cost or a delay in the Construction Schedule, the Contractor shall be entitled to an extension of Contract Time and/or reimbursement by the Owner for the increase to the Contractor's cost, as the case may be, processed as a Change Order in accordance with the Change Order procedure pursuant to GC 6.2 - CHANGE ORDER. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this GC 3.8.3 the *Contractor* shall use the *Subcontractors* or *Suppliers* that have been identified in the Contract Documents for specific portions of the Work and in respect to such Subcontractors or Suppliers there shall be no increase in the Contractor's cost or allowance for any delay in the Construction Schedule.
- 3.8.4 Except as provided in GC 3.8.5, the *Contractor* hereby agrees to contractually obligate each of its *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* including, suppliers leasing any construction machinery and equipment, to enter into an agreement (the "Assignable Subcontract Agreement") in the form set out in GC 13.4 ASSIGNABLE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT hereto to evidence that each such subcontract shall be assignable without the *Subcontractor's* or *Supplier's* further consent and without the payment of any penalty or other amount at the *Owner's* or the *Lender's* option, to the *Owner* or to the *Lender* or to such other contractor as the *Owner* or *Lender* may designate, which rights shall only be exercised by the *Owner*, such *Lender* or such other contractor in the event that the *Contract* is terminated.
- 3.8.5 In respect of the *Contractor's* contracts with *Subcontractors* or *Suppliers* with a total estimated cost of \$[**REDACTED**] or less, the Contractor is not obliged to enter into an agreement with the *Subcontractor* or *Supplier* in the form set out in GC 13.4, provided that the *Contractor* ensures that each subcontract shall be assignable without the *Subcontractor's* or *Supplier's* further consent and without the payment of any penalty or other amount at the *Owner's* option, to the *Owner* or to the *Lender* or to such other contractor as the *Owner* may designate, which rights shall only be exercised by the *Owner*, such *Lender* or such other contractor in the event that the *Contract* is terminated.

### GC 3.9 LABOUR AND PRODUCTS

- 3.9.1 Unless otherwise stipulated elsewhere in the *Contract Documents* or in other documents made available to the *Contractor* by the *Owner*, the *Contractor* shall provide and pay for labour, *Products*, tools, construction machinery and equipment, water, heat, light, power, transportation and other facilities and services necessary for the performance of the *Work* in accordance with the *Contract* and shall, as appropriate, provide separate metering for such services. The *Contractor* shall arrange for delivery for such materials and equipment to the *Project* in accordance with the *Construction Schedule*.
- 3.9.2 *Products* provided shall be new. All work will be new, of good quality, and free from faults, improper workmanship and defects and in conformance with the *Contract Documents*. *Products* which are not specified shall be of a quality best suited to the purpose required and their use subject to the approval of the *Consultant*.

- 3.9.3 The *Contractor* shall (i) maintain good order and discipline among all personnel engaged on the *Work* and shall promote and maintain a good relationship with all personnel; (ii) shall not employ any persons to perform the *Work* who are incompatible with other labour employed by the *Contractor* in connection with the *Work*; and (iii) act promptly on all problems of labour relations including grievances and jurisdictional disputes. The *Contractor* shall not employ on the *Work* anyone not skilled in the task assigned to him and shall adopt and enforce regulations with respect to safety, fire prevention, smoking, the use of alcoholic beverages, illegal drugs and other controlled substances and other activities that will or may constitute a danger to life, health or property.
- 3.9.4 At the *Owner's* instruction, the *Contractor* shall promptly remove from the *Place of the Work* any employee who represents a threat to the safety or progress of the *Project* or persons on the *Project*, or who is not following the instructions and the control procedures referred to in GC 3.12.5 or whose conduct may be considered as harassment in the workplace of any person who is an employee of the *Owner* under the *Human Rights Code* (Ontario).
- 3.9.5 The *Contractor* is responsible for the safe on-site storage of *Products* and their protection (including *Products* supplied by the *Owner* and other contractors) in such ways as to avoid dangerous conditions or contamination to the *Products* or other persons or property and in locations at the *Place of the Work* to the satisfaction of the *Owner*.
- 3.9.6 Title to the *Products* shall pass to the *Owner* upon payment therefor or upon incorporation into the *Project*, whichever occurs first. For greater certainty, title to *Products* delivered, but not installed, shall pass to the *Owner* when paid for. The *Contractor* shall promptly execute and deliver to the *Owner*, from time to time as the *Owner* may require, any further documentation required to identify, evidence, perfect or protect the *Owner's* interest in the *Products* including without limitation, any registrations pursuant to the *Personal Property Security Act* (Ontario). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the *Contractor* shall continue to bear the risk of loss or damage with respect to the *Interim Work* until the *Interim Completion Date*, and with respect to the balance of the *Work* until the date of issuance by the *Consultant* of its certificate under GC 5.5.5 stating the *Substantial Performance Date*.

# GC 3.10 DOCUMENTS AT THE SITE

- 3.10.1 The Contractor shall keep one copy of the current digital files maintained at all times of Contract Documents, Construction Schedule, submittals, reports, Supplementary Instructions, Change Orders, Contemplated Change Notices, Change Directives, Contractor's Design Contingency issue resolution documents, partnering documents, records of meetings and all other documents necessary for the administration of the Project at the Place of the Work, all in good order and available to the Owner, the Lender's Consultant and the Consultant. The Contractor shall keep a daily log available to the Owner, the Lender's Consultant and the Consultant at all times.
- 3.10.2 The Contractor shall where practical, keep one copy of current standards and manufacturers' literature specified in the Contract Documents at the Place of the Work in good order and available to the Consultant and the Lender's Consultant and their respective representatives for the duration of the Work.

### GC 3.11 SHOP DRAWINGS

- 3.11.1 Shop drawings are drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, performance charts, brochures, samples, *Product* data, and other data which the *Contractor* provides to illustrate details of a portion of the *Work*.
- 3.11.2 The *Contractor* shall provide shop drawings as described in the *Contract Documents* or as the *Consultant* may reasonably request.

- 3.11.3 The *Contractor* shall review all shop drawings prior to submission to the *Consultant*. The *Contractor* represents by this review that:
  - .1 the *Contractor* has determined and verified all field measurements, field construction conditions and *Product* requirements, or will do so and
  - .2 the *Contractor* has checked and coordinated each shop drawing with the requirements of the *Work* and of the *Contract Documents*.

The *Contractor* shall confirm this review of each shop drawing by stamp, date and signature of the person responsible. At the time of submission the *Contractor* shall notify the *Consultant* in writing of any deviations in the shop drawings from the requirements of the *Contract Documents*.

- 3.11.4 At the commencement of the *Work* the *Contractor* shall prepare, for the review and acceptance of the Consultant a schedule (the "Shop Drawing Schedule") of the dates for submission and return of shop drawings to ensure there is no impact on the Construction Schedule including on a reasonable basis in respect to the work of the Owner's own forces or the Owner's other contractors as set out in the Contract Documents or as the Owner has otherwise advised the Contractor. The Consultant will have a minimum of ten (10) Working Days to review and return shop drawings in accordance with the Shop Drawing Schedule or such shorter period as may be mutually agreed between the Contractor and the Consultant. The Contractor shall submit shop drawings to the Consultant in accordance with the Shop Drawing Schedule and in an orderly sequence, sufficiently in advance so as to allow for the Consultant's proper review and cause no delay to the Work or in the work of the Owner's own forces or the Owner's other contractors which has been incorporated into the Construction Schedule. If, at any time, the *Contractor* submits an unusually large number of shop drawings not contemplated by the Shop Drawing Schedule, such that the Consultant cannot process these drawings within ten (10) Working Days, the Consultant, within three (3) Working Days of receipt of such shop drawings, will provide the Contractor with an estimate of the time necessary for processing. The Contractor shall periodically re-submit the Shop Drawings Schedule to correspond to changes in the Construction Schedule for the review and acceptance of the Consultant. The schedule for re-submissions shall provide for a minimum five (5) Working Days period for the Consultant's review. Shop drawings which require approval of a legally constituted authority having jurisdiction shall be submitted first to the *Consultant* for its approval in accordance with the approval process set out in this GC 3.11.4 prior to submission by the *Contractor* to such authority. Should the *Consultant's* review of the shop drawings require significant changes to the shop drawings, then the Contractor shall revise same and resubmit to the *Consultant*, prior to submitting to the authority having jurisdiction.
- 3.11.5 The *Contractor* shall submit shop drawings in the form specified or as the *Consultant* may direct. The *Consultant* will review and return shop drawings in accordance with the *Shop Drawing Schedule* referred to in and the other provisions of GC 3.11.4. The *Consultant's* review is for conformity to the design concept and for general arrangement only. The *Consultant's* review shall not relieve the *Contractor* of responsibility for errors or omissions in the shop drawings or for meeting all requirements of the *Contract Documents*.
- 3.11.6 Upon the *Consultant's* request, the *Contractor* shall revise and resubmit shop drawings which the *Consultant* rejects as inconsistent with the *Contract Documents* unless otherwise directed by the *Consultant*. The *Contractor* shall notify the *Consultant* in writing of any revisions to the resubmission other than those requested by the *Consultant*.
- 3.11.7 Only shop drawings indicated as 'Reviewed' or 'Reviewed as Noted', or words of similar intent, and bearing the *Consultant's* review date and initials, shall be used at the *Place of the Work* or for the manufacture or fabrication of *Products*.
- 3.11.8 The review of shop drawings by the *Consultant* does not authorize a change in the *Guaranteed Price* or *Contract Time*.

- 49 -

- 3.11.9 The *Contractor* shall prepare and maintain record drawings which shall consist of the shop drawings and specifications revised by the *Contractor* during the *Work*, showing changes to the shop drawings and specifications, which record drawings shall be kept current by the *Contractor* and made available to the *Consultant* and the *Lender's Consultant* for review with each application for progress payment.
- 3.11.10 All required actions by the *Contractor* under this GC 3.11 shall be taken promptly so as not to cause any delay in the *Construction Schedule*.

# GC 3.12 USE OF THE WORK

- 3.12.1 The *Contractor* shall confine construction machinery and equipment, storage of *Products*, and operations of employees to limits indicated by laws, ordinances, permits, or the *Contract Documents* and shall not unreasonably encumber the *Work* with *Products*.
- 3.12.2 The *Contractor* shall not load or permit to be loaded any part of the *Work* with a weight or force that will endanger the safety of the *Work*.
- 3.12.3 The Owner shall have the right to occupy phases of the Work as set out in the Contract Documents and to enter and occupy the *Work* in whole or in part for the purpose of placing fittings, furniture and equipment or for other uses including the intended use of the Owner before Substantial Performance of the Work, as provided for in the Construction Schedule. The Contractor shall cooperate with the Owner, the Owner's Project Manager and the Consultant, so as to permit the Owner to occupy and to place such fittings, furniture and equipment in the most efficient manner possible. Such entry and occupation shall not be considered as acceptance of the Work or in any way relieve the Contractor from responsibility to complete the Contract. The Contractor is responsible to ensure the completion of phases of the Work in accordance with the date for Completion of the Interim Work and the date for Substantial Completion of the Work and that the phases of the Work are ready for occupancy by the Owner in accordance with the Contract Documents including the requirements of subparagraphs .2 and .3 and, to the extent available, .4 of the definition of Substantial Performance of the Work as applicable to the respective phase of the Work. The Contractor acknowledges that Substantial Performance of the Work is only achieved in respect to the Work as a whole and not in respect of any phase of the Work.
- 3.12.4 The *Contractor* recognizes that part of the *Work* consists of the renovation of existing buildings and structures or the addition of a structure to an existing building and that the provision of patient care during construction is a priority for the *Owner* and acknowledges that it has reviewed the *Contract Documents* referred to in GC 3.12.5 below. The *Contractor* shall use all methods required to comply with the instructions set out in the *Contract Documents* including those referred to in GC 3.12.5 during the performance of the *Work*. The *Contractor* shall fully cooperate with the *Owner* in complying with the said instructions during the performance of the Work. Any costs incurred by the *Contractor* in complying with the said instructions shall be part of the *Guaranteed Price*.
- 3.12.5 The Contractor acknowledges that the Contract Documents include instructions titled "Special Procedures for Work in Hospitals" (Specification section 01351) which include instructions respecting Owner's use of the Existing Hospital and infection control procedures including CSA Standard Z317.13-03 Infection Control During Construction or Renovation of Health Care Facilities and Risk Assessment and Preventive Measures Checklist for Health Care Facility Construction and Renovation. The Contractor acknowledges having read and understood the said instructions and agrees to comply with the procedures set out therein. The Contractor shall be responsible for any costs and expenses resulting from its failure to comply with these procedures.

### GC 3.13 CUTTING AND REMEDIAL WORK

- 3.13.1 The *Contractor* shall do the cutting and remedial *Work* required to make the several parts of the *Work* come together properly.
- 3.13.2 The *Contractor* shall coordinate the *Work* to ensure that this requirement is kept to a minimum.
- 3.13.3 Cutting and remedial *Work* shall be performed by specialists familiar with the *Products* affected and shall be performed in a manner to neither damage nor endanger the *Work*.

### GC 3.14 CLEANUP

- 3.14.1 The *Contractor* shall maintain the *Work* in a tidy condition and free from the accumulation of waste products and debris, other than that caused by the *Owner*, the *Owner's* other contractors or their employees.
- 3.14.2 The *Contractor* shall remove waste products and debris, other than that resulting from the work of the *Owner*, the *Owner*'s other contractors or their employees, and shall leave the *Work* clean and suitable for occupancy by the *Owner* on the *Interim Completion Date*, in the case of the *Interim Work*, and on the *Substantial Performance Date*, in the case of the balance of the *Work*. The *Contractor* shall remove products, tools and construction machinery and equipment not required for the performance of the remaining *Work*.
- 3.14.3 Prior to application for the final certificate for payment, the *Contractor* shall remove products, tools, construction machinery and equipment, and waste products and debris, other than that resulting from the work of the *Owner*, the *Owner*'s other contractors or their employees.
- 3.14.4 In the event of any dispute regarding the removal of waste products, debris, tools, equipment, etc. the *Owner* shall provide a written notice to the *Contractor* to remove the said waste and debris and allow a reasonable period of time to the *Contractor* for removing the said materials. If the *Contractor* fails to remove the materials within the time specified, the *Owner* may remove the waste products and debris and withhold an amount equal to such cost, to the extent that the *Consultant* shall determine to be just.

### GC 3.15 CONTRACTOR ATTENDING MEETINGS

3.15.1 The *Contractor* shall attend meetings with respect to the *Work* as may be directed by the *Consultant*. The *Contractor* shall not claim any extra compensation for attendance at these meetings. Each of the *Contractor* and the *Owner* shall provide a representative to attend such meeting that is able to make decisions on each of their respective behalf.

# GC 3.16 STANDARD OF CARE

3.16.1 In performing any and all services and obligations that it has agreed to perform in accordance with the terms of this *Contract*, the *Contractor* shall exercise the standard of care, skill and diligence that would normally be provided by an experienced and prudent contractor supplying similar services for similar hospital projects in a timely, good and workmanlike manner. The *Contractor* acknowledges and agrees that throughout this *Contract* the *Contractor's* obligations, duties and responsibilities shall be interpreted in accordance with this standard and any default or alleged default by the *Contractor* in the performance of its obligations, duties and responsibilities shall similarly be interpreted in accordance with this standard. The *Contractor* shall exercise the same standard of due care and diligence in respect of any *Products*, personnel, or procedures which it may recommend to the *Owner*. The *Contractor* shall comply with all requirements of the *Owner* set forth in the *Contract Documents* including the *Contract Documents* referred to in GC 3.12.5. The *Contractor* shall also comply with all rules and directives issued by the *Owner* regarding the continued operations of the *Existing* 

*Hospital* so as not to disrupt the operations of the *Owner* and, except for any requirements of the *Owner* described in the preceding sentence, the cost, if any, and the additional time, if any, required to comply with any such rules and directives issued by the *Owner* shall be adjusted and compensated for by way of a *Change Order* or *Change Directive*, as applicable, as provided in GC 6.2 – CHANGE ORDER and GC 6.3 – CHANGE DIRECTIVE.

### GC 3.17 CONSTRUCTION LICENSE

3.17.1 The *Owner* hereby provides to the *Contractor* a non-exclusive license to have access to and to use the *Place of the Work* sufficient to allow the *Contractor* to perform the *Work*.

# PART 4 ALLOWANCES

# GC 4.1 CASH ALLOWANCES

- 4.1.1 [INTENTIONALLY DELETED];
- 4.1.2 The *Guaranteed Price* includes cash allowances as set out in the specifications of the *Contract Documents* which shall be expended as the *Owner* directs through the *Consultant* by a *Cash Allowance Disbursement Authorization*.
- 4.1.3 Unless otherwise indicated, cash allowances cover the net cost to the *Contractor* of services, *Products*, construction machinery and equipment, freight, unloading, handling, storage, installation, and other authorized expenses incurred in performing the *Work* stipulated under the cash allowances but do not include any *Value Added Tax* payable by the *Owner* to the *Contractor*.
- 4.1.4 Purchases from cash allowances must be authorized by *Cash Allowance Disbursement Authorizations* issued by the *Consultant* as directed by the *Owner* and the form and methods of accounting for costs shall be agreed to by the *Owner*, the *Consultant* and the *Contractor* before proceeding with the purchase. Cash allowance review will be part of the regular site meeting.
- 4.1.5 The parties acknowledge that the following provisions apply to cash allowances included in the *Guaranteed Price*:
  - .1 the *Contractor's Fee* and not the cash allowances include the *Contractor's* overhead and profit in connection with all cash allowances. Where costs under all cash allowances exceed in the aggregate the total amount of all cash allowances, the *Contractor* shall be compensated for overhead and profit on the excess as provided for in GC 6.2 CHANGE ORDER;
  - .2 subject to GC 4.1.5.5 below the *Guaranteed Price* shall be adjusted by written *Change Order* to provide for any aggregate excess or deficit in all cash allowances;
  - .3 progress payments on account of *Work* authorized under cash allowances shall be included in the *Consultant's* monthly certificates for payment;
  - .4 modifications to the *Construction Schedule* shall be prepared by the *Contractor* and reviewed by the *Consultant* to show when items called for under cash allowances must be authorized and or ordered so that the progress and completion of the *Work* are not delayed;
  - .5 any surpluses in a cash allowance may at the election of the *Owner* be used to fund other cash allowances or to fund *Changes in the Scope of the Work* elsewhere in the *Contract* as may be authorized under a *Change Order* or a *Change Directive* in accordance with GC 6.2 CHANGE ORDER and GC 6.3 CHANGE DIRECTIVE as the case may be but without the imposition of overhead and profit; and

.6 any surplus in the aggregate of cash allowances remaining after the application of GC 4.1.5.5 above shall be credited to the *Owner*.

### GC 4.2 CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY

- 4.2.1 The Cost of the Work and the Guaranteed Price include the Contractor's Design Contingency.
- 4.2.2 Subject to the Owner's responsibilities under this GC 4.2.2, the *Contractor's Design Contingency* shall apply to any and all changes, extras or costs attributable to:
  - .1 *Design Issues* which are readily apparent or properly inferable from the *Contract Documents* as forming part of the *Work* or contrary to *Good Industry Practice* as it relates to constructability of the *Work*;
  - .2 *Design Issues* caused by inconsistencies, conflicts, exclusions, interferences or gaps that are readily discoverable or properly inferable from the *Contract Documents*, and particularly, the plans, drawings and specifications; and
  - .3 *Design Issues* where the design intent is readily apparent or properly inferable from the *Contract Documents* but has not been fully detailed or specified.

The terms "readily discoverable", "readily apparent" and "properly inferable" as used in the *Contract* shall be interpreted by taking into consideration the *Contractor's* experience, investigations, inspections and examinations as represented by the *Contractor* to the *Owner* in accordance with GC 1.5.1 and GC 3.4.1 and having regard to the standard of care required under GC 3.16– STANDARD OF CARE.

The *Owner* retains the responsibility for the 'core' efficacy and functionality of the design - the ability/capacity to: (1) produce the desired effect in terms of the building systems including information technology systems; (2) meet the requirements of the Ontario Building Code (but this shall not relieve the *Contractor* of the obligation to provide for all standard Code requirements applicable to the installation of the *Work* whether or not set out in the specifications); and (3) conform to the functional programming needs of the *Owner*. In assessing whether a *Design Issue* is properly characterized as the responsibility of the *Owner*, the *Consultant* shall have regard to the *Risk Assessment Guidelines*. The *Contractor* and the *Owner* acknowledge that the *Risk Assessment Guidelines* are provided for information only and are not complete or exhaustive.

Subject to and without limiting the *Owner's* responsibilities under the preceding paragraph, the *Contractor* must deliver fully functional and operational systems and all components shown in the drawings have to be provided as fully complete and fully functional systems.

4.2.3 When the *Contractor* identifies a *Design Issue* the *Contractor* shall promptly notify the *Consultant* in writing under a request for information of such *Design Issue* and may propose a resolution of the *Design Issue*. Upon receipt of the *Contractor's* notification and proposed resolution, if any, the *Consultant* shall (a) if a proposed resolution is provided by the *Contractor*, proceed to review the proposed resolution and either: (i) confirm that such resolution is acceptable (and a resolution will be considered acceptable if such resolution meets the requirements of the first sentence of GC 4.2.6); (ii) reject the proposed resolution be proposed by the *Contractor*; or (iii) reject the proposed resolution and request additional information to be provided or request an alternative resolutions to the *Contractor* of an acceptable resolution; or (b) if no resolution is proposed by the *Contractor*, provide instructions to the *Contractor* an acceptable resolution. As soon as the *Consultant* has confirmed to the *Contractor* an acceptable resolution. If the *Consultant* characterizes the *Design Issue* as a *Contractor's Design Contingency* matter the *Consultant* shall issue a *Supplemental Instruction* and the cost, if any, of implementing the acceptable resolution to the *Design Issue* shall

form part of the Contractor's Design Contingency. If the Consultant characterizes the Design Issue as a matter that is not properly considered a Contractor's Design Contingency matter the Consultant shall request the Owner issue a Contemplated Change Notice or a Change Directive, as applicable in the circumstances and the cost, if any, of implementing the acceptable resolution to the Design Issue and the additional time, if any, required to implement the acceptable resolution to the *Design Issue* shall be documented in a *Change Order*. If either the *Owner* or the *Contractor* is of the view that the *Design* Issue is not properly characterized by the Consultant or does not agree with the Consultant's decision regarding what constitutes an acceptable resolution to the Design Issue, then either the Owner or the Contractor may dispute the characterization of the Design Issue or the Consultant's decision regarding what constitutes an acceptable resolution of the *Design Issue* pursuant to GC 4.2.7. The Consultant's response to any Design Issue will be provided in accordance with GC 2.2.9. Any professional design services of the Consultant whether to issue the Supplemental Instruction, Contemplated Change Notice or Change Directive or otherwise will be an Owner cost. In assessing whether a Design Issue is properly characterized as a Contractor's Design Contingency matter, the Consultant shall have regard to the Risk Assessment Guidelines. The Contractor and the Owner acknowledge that the *Risk Assessment Guidelines* are provided for information only and are not complete or exhaustive.

4.2.4 When the Consultant identifies a Design Issue the Consultant shall promptly notify the Contractor of such Design Issue, in writing as a Supplemental Instruction or by providing a Contemplated Change Notice or a Change Directive, as applicable in the circumstances. If issued as a Supplemental Instruction the Contractor may review the Design Issue and propose an alternative resolution to the Consultant. Upon receipt of the Contractor's proposed alternative resolution, the Consultant shall proceed to review the proposed alternative resolution and either: (a) confirm that such resolution is acceptable (and a resolution will be considered acceptable if such resolution meets the requirements of the first sentence of GC 4.2.6); (b) reject the proposed resolution, request additional information to be provided or request an further alternative resolution be proposed by the *Contractor*; or (c) reject the proposed resolution and provide instructions to the *Contractor* of an acceptable resolution. As soon as the Consultant has confirmed to the Contractor an acceptable resolution of the Design Issue the Contractor shall proceed to implement such acceptable resolution. If the Consultant characterizes the Design Issue as a Contractor's Design Contingency matter the Consultant shall issue a Supplemental Instruction and the cost, if any, of implementing the acceptable resolution to the Design Issue shall form part of the Contractor's Design Contingency. If the Consultant characterizes the Design Issue as a matter that is not properly considered a Contractor's Design Contingency matter the Consultant shall request the Owner issue a Contemplated Change Notice or a Change Directive, as applicable in the circumstances, and the cost, if any, of implementing the acceptable resolution to the Design Issue and the additional time, if any, required to implement the acceptable resolution of the Design Issue shall be documented in a *Change Order*. If either the *Owner* or the *Contractor* is of the view that the Design Issue is not properly characterized by the Consultant or does not agree with the Consultant's decision regarding what constitutes an acceptable resolution to the Design Issue either the Owner or the Contractor may dispute the characterization of the Design Issue or the Consultant's decision regarding what constitutes an acceptable resolution of the *Design Issue* pursuant to GC 4.2.7. The Consultant's response will be provided in accordance with GC 2.2.9. Any professional design services of the Consultant whether to issue the Supplemental Instruction, Contemplated Change Notice or Change Directive or otherwise will be an Owner cost. In assessing whether a Design Issue is properly characterized as a *Contractor's Design Contingency* matter, the *Consultant* shall have regard to the Risk Assessment Guidelines. The Contractor and the Owner acknowledge that the Risk Assessment Guidelines are provided for information only and are not complete or exhaustive.

4.2.5 The *Contractor* shall provide the *Consultant*, the *Owner* and the *Owner's Project Manager* with a detailed weekly update report on the status of all outstanding *Design Issues* in a form satisfactory to the *Consultant* and the *Owner*.

4.2.6 An acceptable resolution to a *Design Issue* as referred to in GC 4.2.3 and GC 4.2.4 shall be a solution that is in all respects consistent with the design intent and quality standards of the *Contract Documents*, which will not interfere with the efficient operations of the *Owner* and which will not

increase the life cycle costs. If a *Consultant* solution is of a higher quality not consistent with the design intent and quality standards of the *Contract Documents*, the *Contractor* will be entitled to a *Change in the Scope of the Work* in accordance with GC 6.2 – CHANGE ORDER.

- 4.2.7 If either the *Contractor* or the *Owner* is of the view that a *Design Issue* is not properly characterized by the *Consultant* or does not agree with the *Consultant's* decision regarding what constitutes an acceptable resolution to the *Design Issue* either the *Owner* or the *Contractor* may dispute the characterization of the *Design Issue* or the *Consultant's* decision regarding what constitutes an acceptable resolution to the *Design Issue* and such issues will be determined in accordance with PART 8 - DISPUTE RESOLUTION. The *Contractor* acknowledges that notwithstanding any such dispute the *Consultant* may issue a *Supplemental Instruction* to the *Contractor* for a resolution of the *Design Issue* and the *Contractor* shall proceed to implement such resolution of the *Design Issue* in accordance with the *Supplemental Instruction* issued by the *Consultant* pending resolution of the dispute and subject to GC 8.1.3.
- 4.2.8 The Contractor's Design Contingency is included in the Cost of the Work and the Guaranteed Price and the *Contractor* is solely responsible for all costs to remedy all *Design Issues* that are properly characterized as Contractor's Design Contingency matters and the Contractor will not be entitled to any additional compensation or change in the Contract Time in respect of any and all Design Issues that are properly characterized as Contractor's Design Contingency matters, subject in each case to GC 4.2.6 and to the responsibility of the Owner at the Owner's cost for the provision of professional design services as specifically provided in GC 4.2.3 and GC 4.2.4. Subject to the preceding sentence, the Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the Contractor shall have no recourse against the Owner in respect to any *Contractor's Design Contingency* matter or any costs directly or indirectly arising out of Design Issues that are properly characterized as Contractor's Design Contingency matters. The *Contractor* is not accountable to the *Owner* for the expenditure of the amount the *Contractor* has carried as the Contractor's Design Contingency and the Owner has no entitlement to claim any unused portion, if any, of the Contractor's Design Contingency. Payment of the Guaranteed Price to the Contractor (which, for greater certainty, shall include any unused portion of the Contractor's Design Contingency) shall fully satisfy the Contractor in respect to its costs to carry the Contractor's Design Contingency and all costs of the Contractor to remedy all Design Issues that are properly characterized as Contractor's Design Contingency matters.

# PART 5 PAYMENT

# GC 5.1 [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]

#### GC 5.2 ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT

- 5.2.1 The *Contractor* shall maintain and keep accurate *Project* records (which mean all tangible records, documents, computer printouts, electronic information, books, plans, drawings, specifications, accounts or other information) relating to the *Work* for a period of seven (7) years from the date of *Substantial Performance of the Work*. The *Contractor* shall maintain the original *Project* records in its office in Ontario until all claims (which means any claim, demand, liability, damage, loss, cost, expense, suit, action or cause of action) have been settled as required by requirements of law.
- 5.2.2 In addition to other rights of inspection contemplated in the *Contract Documents*, the *Contractor* shall allow the *Owner*, the *Consultant*, the *Lender's Consultant* or other persons authorized by the *Owner* access to the *Project* records as they pertain to *Work* performed on a reimbursable basis pursuant to GC 6.2.3.2 or unit price basis pursuant to GC 6.2.3.3 during the course of the *Work* and for such period of time that the *Contractor* is required to maintain the records set out in GC 5.2.1. The *Contractor* shall be provided with forty-eight (48) hours prior notice for such access. The *Contractor* shall promptly provide at the sole cost of the *Owner*, a certified copy of any part of such *Project* records required by the *Owner* when requested by the *Owner*.

- 5.2.3 The *Contractor* shall ensure that equivalent provisions to those provided in GC 5.2.1 and GC 5.2.2 are made in each *Subcontractor's* and *Supplier's* contract (and shall require the *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* to incorporate same into every level of contract thereunder) for any part of the *Work* in order among other things, to provide the *Owner* with access to *Project* records as contemplated herein.
- 5.2.4 The provisions of GC 5.2.1, 5.2.2 and 5.2.3 shall only apply with respect to *Change Orders* and items under cash allowances.
- 5.2.5 The Contractor shall submit seven (7) copies of a monthly construction status report to the Owner by the twentieth (20th) Working Day of each month which shall include an update of the Construction Schedule prepared in accordance with all the requirements of GC 3.5 - CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE. The Contractor shall endeavour to use project management software compatible with that of the *Owner*. This document will appropriately address significant aspects of, and variances in, the progress of the Work, and shall include, without limitation, an executive bar chart summary of the *Construction Schedule*, the current schedule performance index (developed in accordance with *Good* Industry Practice) and the Contractor's narrative report addressing any significant problems and decisions and pending claims and a detailed report showing the costs to complete the balance of the Work. Included also will be an executive summary of the progress to date of the building systems. A financial status report will be included together with report of any pending or other matters or claims that could have a financial impact on the Project, including without limitation, a report on any labour disruptions or strikes that may have occurred or are pending. An updated cash flow report and projections in conjunction with the monthly Construction Schedule update will also be included, showing a cash flow graph indicating actual cash flow against projected cash flow. Progress photos from different views to indicate the progress of the Work are also to be included as well as a safety report addressing any incidents or accidents. The progress photos must be in digital format and must indicate the date and location of the photograph. Items of immediate concern are to be highlighted, noting when decisions must be reached in order to keep the Project on schedule. Also included shall be approved Change Orders, priced change notices awaiting approval and Contemplated Change Notices and the status of the Contractor's Design Contingency issues.

# GC 5.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PROGRESS PAYMENT

- 5.3.1 Applications for payment on account as provided in paragraph 7.1.1 of Article A-7 of the Agreement PAYMENT may be made monthly as the *Work* progresses.
- 5.3.2 The *Owner* and the *Contractor* acknowledge that the *Guaranteed Price* includes the *Cost of the Financing* and that for the purpose of calculating the amount of any legislative holdback under the *Contract* such determination shall be based only upon the *Cost of the Work*.
- 5.3.3 Application for payment by the *Contractor* shall be dated the last day of the agreed monthly payment period and the amount claimed shall be based on the value, proportionate to the *Cost of the Work*, of the *Work* performed forming part of the *Cost of the Work* including *Products* delivered to the *Place of the Work* at that date. The application for payment shall also include and separately state the value of the *Work* performed in respect to *Change Orders* or *Change Directives* the payment of which the *Owner* is responsible for and which are included within *Additional Owner Payments*. Applications for payment shall be made to the *Consultant* and to the *Lender's Consultant* at the same time. The *Lender's Consultant* shall be responsible for verifying the application for payment to the *Lender*.
- 5.3.4 The *Contractor* shall submit to the *Consultant* and the *Lender's Consultant*, at least fourteen (14) days before the first application for payment, a schedule of values for the parts of the *Work* so as to facilitate a valuation of applications for payment.
- 5.3.5 The schedule of values shall be made out in such form, broken down in such detail and supported by such evidence as the *Owner* and the *Consultant* and the *Lender's Consultant* may reasonably direct and when accepted by the *Consultant* and the *Lender's Consultant* and the *Owner*, shall be used as the basis for applications for payment, unless it is found to be in error.

- 5.3.6 Claims for *Products* delivered to the *Place of the Work* but not yet incorporated into the *Work* shall be supported by such evidence as the *Consultant* may reasonably require to establish the value and delivery of the *Products*.
- 5.3.7 The *Contractor* shall submit to the *Owner*, the *Consultant* and the *Lender's Consultant* a statement based on the schedule of values, a Workplace Safety & Insurance Board Certificate of Clearance, the updated *Construction Schedule* provided under GC 5.2.5 and an updated cash flow with each application for payment.
- 5.3.8 With the second and all subsequent applications for payment (including, without limitation but for greater certainty, any payment to be made under paragraph 7.1.2 of Article A-7 of the Agreement PAYMENT), except the final payment and release of holdback applications, the *Contractor* shall submit a Statutory Declaration on CCDC Form 9A.

### GC 5.4 PROGRESS PAYMENTS

- 5.4.1 The Consultant will issue to the Owner, no later than ten (10) Working Days after the receipt of an application for payment from the Contractor submitted in accordance with GC 5.3 -APPLICATIONS FOR PROGRESS PAYMENT, a certificate addressed to the Owner of the progress of the Work in relation to the schedule of values, a copy of which shall be provided to the Contractor and the Lender's Consultant. The Consultant will issue a certificate for payment to the Owner of Additional Owner Payments payable by the Owner in respect to the application for payment from the *Contractor* in the amount applied for or in such other amount as the *Consultant* determines to be properly due. If the Consultant requires amendments to the application, the Consultant will promptly notify the Contractor in writing giving reasons for the amendment. The Lender's Consultant will be responsible for issuing certificates for payment to the Lender and Project Co respecting Base Progress Payments, with a copy to the Hospital and to Infrastructure Ontario. In addition, the Lender's Consultant shall provide the Hospital and Infrastructure Ontario with a copy of any written assessment or report relating to the status or progress of the Work, including but not limited to, the Lender's monthly cost reports, concurrently with its delivery to the Lender. The Owner and the *Consultant* are not responsible for any delay in issuing a certificate for payment in respect of or for payment of Base Progress Payments on account of the activities of the Lender's Consultant and/or the Lender.
- 5.4.2 Payment to the *Contractor* on account of *Base Progress Payments* and monthly progress payments in respect to *Additional Owner Payments* shall be made no later than ten (10) *Business Days* after the date of a certificate for payment issued by *Lender's Consultant* or the *Consultant*, as applicable.
- 5.4.3 All monthly progress payments for the period following the *Substantial Performance Date* shall be paid by the *Owner* and shall be deemed to be *Additional Owner Payments*. Applications for such progress payments will continue to be provided to the *Lender's Consultant* so long as any amount that has been held back by the *Owner* pursuant to the *Contract* for the *Work* completed prior to the *Substantial Performance Date* remains unpaid.
- 5.4.4 Notwithstanding the time periods provided regarding the approval and certification of payment by the *Consultant* or the *Lender's Consultant* in GC 5.4.1 and for payment in GC 5.4.2, respectively, the total period of time between receipt of the application for payment by the *Contractor* and payment by the *Owner* shall be no more than twenty-five (25) *Business Days*, except in respect to any amount held back from such payment by the *Owner* in accordance with the *Contract*.
- 5.4.5 Construction Liens
  - .1 Notwithstanding anything else in this PART 5 PAYMENT, in the event a claim for a construction lien is registered against the *Project* lands arising from the performance of the *Work*, or the *Owner* receives any written notice of lien arising from the performance of the

*Work*, and unless the *Contractor* makes alternative arrangements to bond or otherwise secure the amount of the lien claim and costs associated therewith satisfactory to the *Owner*, acting reasonably, the *Owner* shall be entitled to withhold such portion of any payment otherwise due to the *Contractor* in an amount *Owner* reasonably determines would be required to satisfy the applicable lien claimant and any costs and expenses incurred by *Owner* in connection therewith, including such amount on account of costs of the lien claimant such that the *Owner* may, upon payment of the amount of the lien claim together with such costs into court, obtain an order vacating such lien pursuant to the *Construction Lien Act* (Ontario) until such time as such claim has been dealt with as provided below.

- .2 In the event that a written notice of a construction lien arising from the performance of the *Work* is received by the *Owner*, and unless the *Contractor* makes alternative arrangements to bond or otherwise secure the amount of the lien claim and costs associated therewith satisfactory to the *Owner*, acting reasonably, the *Contractor* shall, within thirty (30) days at its sole expense, arrange for the withdrawal or other disposal of the written notice of a lien pursuant to the *Construction Lien Act* (Ontario).
- .3 If a construction lien arising from the performance of the *Work* is registered against the *Project* lands, and unless the *Contractor* makes alternative arrangements to bond or otherwise secure the amount of the lien claim and costs associated therewith satisfactory to the *Owner*, acting reasonably, the *Contractor* shall, within thirty (30) days, at its expense, vacate or discharge the lien from title to the *Project* lands. If the lien is merely vacated, the *Contractor* shall, if requested, undertake the *Owner's* defence of any subsequent action commenced in respect of the lien at the *Contractor's* expense.
- .4 If the *Contractor* fails or refuses to vacate or discharge a construction lien or written notice of lien arising from the performance of the *Work* within the time prescribed above, and unless the *Contractor* makes alternative arrangements to bond or otherwise secure the amount of the lien claim and costs associated therewith satisfactory to the *Owner*, acting reasonably, the *Owner* shall, at its option, be entitled to take all steps necessary to vacate and/or discharge the lien, and all costs incurred by the *Owner* in doing so (including, without limitation, legal fees on a full indemnity basis and any payment which may ultimately be made out of or pursuant to security posted to vacate the lien) shall be for the account of the *Contractor*, and the *Owner* may deduct such amounts from the amounts otherwise due or owing to the *Contractor*.
- .5 Without limiting any of the foregoing, the *Contractor* shall satisfy all judgments and pay all costs resulting from any construction liens arising from the performance of the *Work* or any actions brought in connection with any such liens, or in connection with any other claim or lawsuit brought against the *Owner* by any person that provided services or materials to the *Project* lands which constituted part of the *Work*, and the *Contractor* shall indemnify the *Owner*, the *Consultant* and the *Lender's Consultant*, as well as their agents, officers, directors, employees and consultants and their successors and assigns for any and all costs (including, without limitation, legal fees on a full indemnity basis) they may incur in connection with such claims or actions, and this indemnity shall be deemed to be included in the terms of the indemnity set out in GC 12.1.1. The *Contractor* may at its option elect to defend any such claim or action at the Contractor's expense, and where the Owner defends the claim or action the Contractor shall have a right to consent, acting reasonably, in respect to any settlement between the Owner and the other party to the claim or action.
- .6 The provisions of GC 5.4.5.1 through GC 5.4.5.5 inclusive do not apply to construction liens filed by the *Contractor* which are claimed as a result of any default of the *Owner* to make payments to the *Contractor* in accordance with the terms of the *Contract*.

# GC 5.4A COMPLETION OF THE INTERIM WORK

- 5.4A.1 The *Contractor* shall deliver a notice to the *Owner* and the *Consultant* at least ninety (90) days prior to the date anticipated by the *Contractor* to be the *Interim Completion Date*. The *Contractor* acknowledges that the *Owner* needs a minimum of ninety (90) days notice prior to the anticipated *Interim Completion Date* to prepare for the *Commissioning* in respect of the *Interim Work*. The *Contractor* shall advise the *Owner* and the *Consultant* of any change in the anticipated date. The *Contractor* shall, by the date which is twenty (20) days prior to the anticipated *Interim Completion Date* as set out in the *Contractor*'s notice, prepare a list in electronic format on software that identifies deficiencies by division, by trade and by location (the "*Interim Preliminary Minor Deficiencies List*") of *Minor Deficiencies*.
- 5.4A.2 The Contractor shall reconfirm the anticipated Interim Completion Date in a notice given to the Owner and to the Consultant twenty (20) days prior to the anticipated Interim Completion Date which notice shall include the Interim Preliminary Minor Deficiencies List. The Contractor shall plan for start-up and verification of all systems limited to that described for Completion of the Interim Work to be completed no later than seven (7) days prior to the anticipated Interim Completion Date. The Contractor shall reconfirm the anticipated Interim Completion Date in a notice to the Owner and the Consultant by the date which is ten (10) days prior to the anticipated Interim Completion Date. The Consultant shall then have the next following ten (10) Working Days to review and inspect the Interim Work for the purpose of confirming the achievement of Completion of the Interim Work, providing the Owner and the Contractor with its report thereon and, taking into account the Interim Preliminary Minor Deficiencies List, preparing its own list of Minor Deficiencies respecting the Interim Work (the "Interim Minor Deficiencies List") and the Consultants' estimate of the cost of and the time for rectifying Minor Deficiencies set out in the Interim Minor Deficiencies List, and reporting on all such matters to the Owner and the Contractor. If the Consultant is satisfied based on its inspection that Completion of the Interim Work has been achieved, the Consultant shall state this in its report and shall state the date on which the Consultant determines that Completion of the Interim Work was achieved. Failure to include an item on the Interim Minor Deficiencies List does not alter the responsibility of the Contractor to complete the Interim Work.
- 5.4A.3 The *Consultant* shall state the *Interim Completion Date* as set out in its report delivered under GC 5.4A.2 in a certificate.
- 5.4A.4 The *Consultant* must prepare the *Interim Minor Deficiencies List* before a certificate of *Completion of the Interim Work* is issued, but the *Consultant* shall not withhold the certificate of *Completion of the Interim Work* by reason solely that there are *Interim Minor Deficiencies*. Save and except with the *Owner*'s prior written approval, the *Contractor* shall complete all *Interim Minor Deficiencies* no later than one hundred and twenty (120) days from the date when *Completion of the Interim Work* is certified, unless the reasons for any delay are acceptable to the *Owner* or the delay is caused by the *Owner* or a person for whom the *Owner* is, at law, responsible.
- 5.4A.5 The Owner may withhold from the payment otherwise due on the Interim Reimbursement Payment Date a holdback amount that is [REDACTED] of the amount estimated by the Consultant for the Owner to complete and rectify the Interim Minor Deficiencies. The Consultant shall inspect the completion of the Interim Minor Deficiencies and shall provide a monthly progress report to the Owner describing the Interim Minor Deficiencies which have been completed to the satisfaction of the Consultant and the Owner shall release from such holdback the amount of any holdback allocated to the Interim Minor Deficiencies which have been completed. If at any time after the one hundred and twenty (120) day period for completion of the Interim Minor Deficiencies, any of the Interim Minor Deficiencies are not completed within ten (10) Working Days of the Contractor's receipt of a written notice from the Owner to correct the Interim Minor Deficiencies or the Contractor is not diligently working towards completion of the Interim Minor Deficiencies to the Consultant's satisfaction, and unless the Owner otherwise agrees or the reasons for any delay are acceptable to the *Owner* or the delay is caused by the *Owner* or a person for whom the Owner is responsible at law or under the terms of the Contract, the Owner may engage others to perform the work necessary to complete and rectify such Interim Minor Deficiencies at the risk and cost of the Contractor and the Owner may deduct such cost from the holdback amount or any other amount remaining

owing by the *Owner* to the *Contractor*. If the cost of completion and rectification of any *Interim Minor Deficiencies* exceeds the amount held back by the *Owner* then the *Contractor* shall reimburse the *Owner* for all such excess costs.

5.4A.6 The Contractor shall assign to the Owner and submit with the application for Completion of the Interim Work, all guaranties, warranties, (whether from manufacturers, Subcontractors or Suppliers), certificates, preliminary testing and balancing reports, distribution system diagrams, maintenance and operation instructions, maintenance manuals and materials and any other materials or documentation required to be submitted under the Contract and required for the proper operation of the Interim Work (collectively, the "Interim Project Deliverables"). If the Contractor requests, the Contractor and the Consultant shall within sixty (60) days following the request of the Contractor settle and agree upon a list specifying in reasonable detail the items to be assigned and submitted under the foregoing sentence. If the Contractor is unable to provide any of the required guaranties, warranties, certificates, preliminary testing and balancing reports, distribution system diagrams, maintenance and operation instructions, maintenance manuals and materials or other materials or documentation for any reason, the *Contractor* may submit a list of the outstanding Interim Project Deliverables and, if a delay in the delivery of such outstanding Interim Project Deliverables will not impair the safety, security or health of the occupants of the Interim Work, such outstanding Interim Project Deliverables shall be included as Interim Minor Deficiencies. Failure to submit any of the Interim Project Deliverables that are required for the safe occupation and use of the Interim Work and as may be necessary for the security and health of the occupants of the Interim Work shall be grounds for the Consultant to reject the Contractor's application for Completion of the Interim Work. For the purposes of GC 5.4A.5 and any holdback to be taken as contemplated thereunder, the value of outstanding Interim Project Deliverables shall, without regard to the degree or quantum of such outstanding Interim Project Deliverables, be set at \$[REDACTED]. The assignment by the Contractor of all guaranties and warranties included in the Interim Project Deliverables shall expressly reserve the right of the Contractor to make any claims under such guaranties and warranties for the repair or replacement of any Interim Work and such assignment shall in no way prejudice any rights of or benefits accruing to the *Contractor* pursuant to such guaranties and warranties. For greater certainty, nothing herein is intended to constitute a release or waiver of the obligations of the Contractor to submit and assign (as applicable) to the Owner all of the Interim Project Deliverables.

The Contractor shall provide *As-Built Drawings* and specifications, *Record Documents*, spare parts and shop drawings in respect of the *Interim Work* as soon as possible and in any event within thirty (30) days of the *Interim Completion Date*.

5.4A7 The *Consultant* shall provide reasonable assistance to the *Contractor* in satisfying the requirements to obtain occupancy permits or letters from the City of Toronto in respect of the *Interim Work*.

# GC 5.5 SUBSTANTIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK

- 5.5.1 The Contractor shall deliver a notice to the Owner and the Consultant at least ninety (90) days prior to the date anticipated by the Contractor to be the Substantial Performance Date. The Contractor acknowledges that the Owner needs a minimum of ninety (90) days notice prior to the anticipated Substantial Performance Date to prepare for the Commissioning. The Contractor shall advise the Owner and the Consultant of any change in the anticipated date. The Contractor shall, by the date which is twenty (20) days prior to the anticipated Substantial Performance Date as set out in the Contractor's notice, prepare a list, in electronic format on software that identifies deficiencies by division, by trade and by location (the "Contractor's Preliminary Minor Deficiencies List") of Minor Deficiencies including an estimate of the cost of and the time for rectifying such Minor Deficiencies.
- 5.5.2 The *Contractor* shall reconfirm the anticipated *Substantial Performance Date* in a notice given to the *Owner* and to the *Consultant* twenty (20) days prior to the anticipated *Substantial Performance Date* which notice shall include a copy of the *Contractor's Preliminary Minor Deficiencies List*. The *Contractor* shall plan for start-up and verifications of all systems (other than those described for *Completion of the Interim Work* under GC 5.4A.2) to be completed no later than seven (7) days prior to the anticipated *Substantial Performance Date*. The *Contractor* shall reconfirm the anticipated

- 60 -

Substantial Performance Date and when the Contractor is satisfied that the Contractor has completed all of the requirements for Substantial Performance of the Work the Contractor shall apply to the Owner and the Consultant for a certification of Substantial Performance of the Work in a notice to the Owner and the Consultant by the date which is ten (10) days prior to the anticipated Substantial Performance Date. The Consultant shall, in the next following ten (10) days, proceed to review and inspect the Work for the purpose of confirming the achievement of Substantial Performance of the Work and providing its report thereon pursuant to GC 5.5.4 and certifying substantial performance of the Contract in accordance with the Construction Lien Act (Ontario) pursuant to GC 5.5.3 and, taking into account the Contractor's Preliminary Minor Deficiencies List, preparing its own list of Minor Deficiencies (the "Minor Deficiencies List") and the Consultant's estimate of the cost of and the time for rectifying Minor Deficiencies set out in the Minor Deficiencies List.

- 5.5.3 When the *Consultant* is satisfied that substantial performance of the *Contract* in accordance with the *Construction Lien Act* (Ontario) has been achieved the *Consultant* shall provide the *Contractor* and the *Owner* with a certificate of substantial performance in accordance with the *Construction Lien Act* (Ontario).
- 5.5.4 When the *Consultant* is satisfied that *Substantial Performance of the Work* has been achieved the *Consultant* shall provide to the *Owner* and to the *Contractor* a report confirming the *Minor Deficiencies List* and the date on which the *Consultant* determines that *Substantial Performance of the Work* was achieved. Failure to include an item on the *Minor Deficiencies List* does not alter the responsibility of the *Contractor* to complete the *Work*.
- 5.5.5 The *Consultant* shall state the *Substantial Performance Date* as set out in its report delivered under GC 5.5.4 in a certificate.
- 5.5.6 The *Consultant* shall prepare the *Minor Deficiencies List* before a certificate of *Substantial Performance of the Work* is issued, but the *Consultant* shall not withhold the certificate of *Substantial Performance of the Work* by reason solely that there are such *Minor Deficiencies*.
- 5.5.7 The *Contractor* shall publish in a construction trade newspaper in the area of the location of the *Work* a copy of the certificate of substantial performance in accordance with the *Construction Lien Act* (Ontario) and the *Contractor* shall provide suitable evidence of the publication to the *Consultant* and the *Owner*.
- 5.5.8 The Owner may withhold from the payment otherwise due on the Final Reimbursement Payment Date a holdback amount that is [REDACTED] of the amount estimated by the Consultant for the Owner to complete and rectify the *Minor Deficiencies* (other than the *Interim Minor Deficiencies*). The Consultant shall inspect the completion of the Minor Deficiencies and shall provide a monthly progress report to the *Owner* describing the *Minor Deficiencies* which have been completed to the satisfaction of the *Consultant* and the *Owner* shall release from such holdback the amount of any holdback allocated to the *Minor Deficiencies* which have been completed. If, at any time after the one hundred and twenty (120) day period for completion of the Minor Deficiencies any of the Minor Deficiencies are not completed within ten (10) Working Days of the Contractor's receipt of a written notice from the *Owner* to correct the deficient work or the *Contractor* is not diligently working towards completion of the deficient work to the Consultant's satisfaction, and unless the Owner otherwise agrees or the reasons for any delay are acceptable to the Owner or the delay is caused by the Owner or a person for whom the Owner is responsible at law or under the terms of the Contract, the Owner may engage others to perform the work necessary to complete and rectify the Minor Deficiencies at the risk and cost of the Contractor and the Owner may deduct such cost from the holdback amount or any other amount remaining owing by the Owner to the Contractor. If the cost of completion and rectification of any *Minor Deficiencies* exceeds the amount held back by the *Owner* then the Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for all such excess costs.
- 5.5.9 The *Contractor* shall assign to the *Owner* and submit with the application for *Substantial Performance* of the Work, all guaranties, warranties, (whether from manufacturers, *Subcontractors* or *Suppliers*),

certificates, preliminary testing and balancing reports, distribution system diagrams, maintenance and operation instructions, maintenance manuals and materials and any other materials or documentation required to be submitted under the Contract and otherwise required for the proper use and operation of the Work and not otherwise deliverable as Interim Project Deliverables (collectively, the "Project Deliverables"). If the Contractor requests, the Contractor and the Consultant shall within sixty (60) days following the request of the *Contractor* settle and agree upon a list specifying in reasonable detail the items to be assigned and submitted under the foregoing sentence. If the *Contractor* is unable to provide any of the required guaranties, warranties, certificates, preliminary testing and balancing reports, distribution system diagrams, maintenance and operation instructions, maintenance manuals and materials or other materials or documentation for any reason, the Contractor may submit a list of the outstanding Project Deliverables and, if a delay in the delivery of such outstanding Project Deliverables will not impair the safety, security or health of the occupants of the Project such outstanding Project Deliverables shall be included as Minor Deficiencies. Failure to submit any of the *Project Deliverables* that are required for the safe occupation and use of the *Work* and as may be necessary for the security and health of the occupants of the *Project* shall be grounds for the Consultant to reject the Contractor's application for Substantial Performance of the Work. For the purposes of GC 5.7.3 and any holdback to be taken as contemplated thereunder, the value of such outstanding *Project Deliverables* shall, without regard to the degree or quantum of such outstanding *Project Deliverables*, be set at **\$[REDACTED]** provided that if there has been a holdback established on account of outstanding Interim Project Deliverables under GC 5.4A.5 and on the Final Reimbursement Payment Date such holdback amount has not been released then the holdback amount of \$[REDACTED] set in respect to outstanding Project Deliverables shall be deemed included without duplication in the holdback on account of outstanding Interim Project Deliverables under GC 5.4A.5 and the provisions of GC 5.4A.5 shall apply to such outstanding *Project Deliverables mutatis mutandis*. The assignment by the *Contractor* of all guarantees and warranties shall expressly reserve the right of the Contractor to make any claims under such guarantees and warranties for the repair or replacement of any Work and such assignment shall in no way prejudice any rights of or benefits accruing to the *Contractor* pursuant to such guarantees and warranties. For greater certainty, nothing herein is intended to constitute a release or waiver of the obligation of the Contractor to submit and assign (as applicable) to the Owner all of the Project Deliverables.

5.5.10 The submission of an application for payment upon *Substantial Performance of the Work* shall constitute a waiver by the *Contractor* of all claims whatsoever against the *Owner* under this *Contract*, whether for a change in the *Guaranteed Price*, extension of *Contract* Time or otherwise, except (a) those made in writing prior to the *Contractor's* application for payment upon *Substantial Performance of the Work* and still unsettled , (b) any third party claim which *Contractor* was not aware of at such time and in respect to which *Contractor* is entitled to indemnification from *Owner* in accordance with the *Contract*, and (c) subject to any subsequent waiver under GC 12.2.2, claims arising out of any act or omission of the *Owner* (or those for whom the *Owner* is responsible at law or under the terms of the *Contract*) after the date of the waiver.

# GC 5.6 PAYMENT OF HOLDBACK UPON SUBSTANTIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK

- 5.6.1 After the issuance of the certificate of *Substantial Performance of the Work*, the *Contractor* shall:
  - .1 Submit an application for payment of the holdback amount;
  - .2 Submit a written request for release of holdback including a declaration that no written notices of lien arising from the performance of the *Work* have been received by it;
  - .3 Submit a Statutory Declaration CCDC 9A; and
  - .4 Submit an original Workplace Safety & Insurance Board Certificate of Clearance.
- 5.6.2 After the receipt of the documents set out in GC 5.6.1 and the expiration of a period of forty five (45) days from the date of publication of the certificate of substantial performance pursuant to the

*Construction Lien Act* (Ontario), the *Consultant* shall issue a certificate for payment of the holdback amount.

- 5.6.3 Prior to date of the release of the holdback, the *Contractor* shall have removed from the *Place of the Work* all supplies, waste materials, rubbish and temporary facilities and all personnel except as required to achieve *Total Completion* or to correct any remaining *Minor Deficiencies*.
- 5.6.4 Subject to the provisions of GC 5.4.5 and the removal of any claims for lien preserved or perfected pursuant to the *Construction Lien Act* (Ontario) arising from the performance of the *Work*, the holdback amount authorized by the certificate for payment of the holdback amount is due and payable on the second *Business Day* following the expiration of forty-five (45) days from the date of publication of the certificate of substantial performance pursuant to the *Construction Lien Act* (Ontario).

### GC 5.7 COMPLETION

- 5.7.1 The *Contractor* shall provide *As-Built Drawings* and specifications, *Record Documents*, spare parts and shop drawings as soon as possible and in any event within thirty (30) days of the *Substantial Performance Date*.
- 5.7.2 Save and except with the *Owner's* prior written approval, the *Contractor* shall, without limitation to the provisions of GC 5.4A.5 with respect to the completion of the *Interim Minor Deficiencies*, complete all *Minor Deficiencies* and assign and provide all of the *Project Deliverables* that remain outstanding no later than one hundred and twenty (120) days from the date when *Substantial Performance of the Work* is certified, unless the reasons for any delay are acceptable to the *Owner* or the delay is caused by the *Owner* or a person for whom the *Owner* is, at law or under the terms of the *Contract*, responsible.

# GC 5.8 FINAL PAYMENT

- 5.8.1 When the *Contractor* considers that the *Work* is completed, the *Contractor* shall submit an application for final payment. The *Contractor's* application for final payment and release of finishing construction lien holdback, shall include the following documentation:
  - .1 the *Contractor's* written request for release of holdback, including a declaration that no written notices of lien arising from the performance of the *Work* have been received by it;
  - .2 the *Contractor's* Statutory Declaration CCDC 9A;
  - .3 the Contractor's Workplace Safety and Insurance Board Certificate of Clearance; and
  - .4 the *Contractor's* written statement that the *Work* has been performed to the requirements of the *Contract Documents*, itemizing approved changes in the *Work*, the *Consultant's* written instructions and modifications required by authorities having jurisdiction.
- 5.8.2 The *Consultant* will, no later than ten (10) days after the receipt of an application from the *Contractor* for final payment, complete reviewing the *Work* to verify the validity of the application, and no later than the third (3rd) Working Day after completing the review, will notify the *Contractor* that the application is valid or give reasons why it is not valid.
- 5.8.3 When the *Consultant* finds the *Contractor*'s application for final payment valid, the *Consultant* will issue a final certificate for payment.
- 5.8.4 Subject to the other requirements of the *Contract*, the unpaid balance of the *Guaranteed Price* shall become payable to the *Contractor* on the later of: (i) the second  $(2^{nd})$  *Business Day* following the

expiration of all liens pursuant to the *Construction Lien Act* (Ontario), and (ii) the second (2nd) *Business Day* following the issuance of the *Consultant's* final certificate for payment, subject to the *Owner's* right under the *Contract* to withhold payment from the unpaid balance of the *Guaranteed Price* including for any amounts required pursuant to GC 5.9 WITHHOLDING PAYMENT and any sums required to satisfy any lien or trust claims arising from the *Work*.

### GC 5.9 WITHHOLDING OF PAYMENT

5.9.1 If because of climatic or other conditions reasonably beyond the control of the *Contractor*, there are items of work that cannot be performed, payment in full for that portion of the *Work* which has been performed as certified by the *Consultant* shall not be withheld or delayed by the *Owner* on account thereof, but the *Owner* may withhold, until the remaining portion of the *Work* is finished, only such an amount that the *Consultant* determines is sufficient and reasonable to cover the cost of performing such remaining *Work*.

# GC 5.10 NON-CONFORMING WORK

5.10.1 No payment by the *Owner* under the *Contract* nor partial or entire use or occupancy of the *Work* by the *Owner* shall constitute an acceptance of any portion of the *Work* or *Products* which are not in accordance with the requirements of the *Contract Documents*.

# PART 6 CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF THE WORK

### GC 6.1 CHANGES

- 6.1.1 The *Owner*, through the *Consultant*, without invalidating the *Contract*, may make *Changes in the Scope of the Work* consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions to the *Work* by *Change Order* or *Change Directive*.
- 6.1.2 The *Contractor* shall not perform a *Change in the Scope of the Work* without a *Change Order* or a *Change Directive.* This requirement is of the essence and it is the express intention of the parties that any claims by the *Contractor* for a change in the *Guaranteed Price* and/or *Contract Time* shall be barred unless there has been strict compliance with the requirements of all PART 6 CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF THE WORK. No course of conduct or dealing between the parties, no express or implied acceptance of alterations or additions to the *Work* and no claims that the *Owner* has been unjustly enriched by any alteration or addition to the *Work*, whether in fact there is any such unjust enrichment or not, shall be the basis of a claim for additional payment under this *Contract* or a claim for any extension of the *Contract Time*.
- 6.1.3 *Supplemental Instructions* are subject to the provisions of the *Contract Documents* and will not result in a *Change Order* or a *Change Directive*. Any actions taken by the *Contractor* in response to such instructions are at the *Contractor's* risk and included in the *Guaranteed Price* and in the *Contract Time*.
- 6.1.4 The *Consultant* shall copy the *Lender* and the *Lender's Consultant* on all *Change Orders*, *Change Directives* and *Supplemental Instructions*.

# GC 6.2 CHANGE ORDER

6.2.1 When a *Change in the Scope of the Work* is proposed or required, the *Consultant* shall provide a *Contemplated Change Notice* to the *Contractor*. Any adjustment to the *Guaranteed Price* or to the *Contract Time* as a result of the proposed *Change in the Scope of the Work* shall be recorded in a *Change Order* in accordance with GC 6.2.2. If the proposed *Change in the Scope of the Work* is anticipated by the *Contractor* to result in an adjustment of the *Guaranteed Price*, the *Contractor* shall provide to the *Owner* and the *Consultant* a written explanation and details for the adjustment. Any

- 64 -

adjustment to *Contract Time* shall only be to the extent that the critical path of the *Construction Schedule* is affected by the change to the *Work* and the *Contractor* shall not be entitled to claim any ownership of the *Schedule Cushion*.

- 6.2.2 When the *Owner* and the *Contractor* agree to the adjustments in the *Overhead and Profit Fee*, *Guaranteed Price* and *Contract Time* or to the method to be used to determine the adjustments, such agreement shall be effective immediately and shall be recorded in a *Change Order*, signed by the *Owner* and the *Contractor*. The value of the *Work* performed as the result of a *Change Order* shall be included in applications for progress payment as *Additional Owner Payments*.
- 6.2.3 The value of *Changes in the Scope of the Work* shall be determined by one of the following methods as selected by the *Owner*:
  - .1 A lump sum amount (but excluding any amount on account of an increase to the *Cost of the Financing*) substantiated by an itemized cost breakdown acceptable to the *Consultant* and the *Owner* which lump sum shall be reasonable and consistent with market rates in the local market, if available, and if not available, in accordance with competitive market rates for such a project otherwise available at the time such *Work* is performed, and which will include an *Overhead and Profit Fee* applied in accordance with GC 6.2.4;
  - .2 The aggregate of the Cost as defined herein and the Overhead and Profit Fee as applied in accordance with GC 6.2.4 all substantiated by an itemized cost breakdown acceptable to the Owner and the Consultant and may be initiated with a maximum change order amount at the option of the Owner. "Cost" shall be actual net cost to the Contractor excluding its overhead and profit, as agreed to by the *Owner* and the *Contractor* and as determined pursuant to the Cost of the Work provisions applicable to Changes in the Scope of the Work of GC 6.2.5, GC 6.2.6, GC 6.2.7 and GC 6.2.8 provided that all such actual costs must be reasonable, consistent with market rates in the local market, if available, and if not available, in accordance with competitive market rates for such a project otherwise available at the time such Work is performed and substantiated in full detail to the satisfaction of the Consultant and the Owner. Such Costs shall be subject to full and complete audit at all reasonable times by the representatives of the *Consultant* and the *Owner*. This method of determining the value of changes in the Work shall extend to Subcontractors, Suppliers and Sub-Subcontractors as applicable. Subcontractor and Sub-Subcontractor labour rates, labour productivity rates and discount and all material and trade rates and discounts applicable to changes shall be submitted to the Owner and, subject to the Owner's approval prior to the execution of the applicable Subcontractor and Sub-Subcontractor contracts. The pricing of all materials and Products involved in changes shall be at the actual cost including discounts and not at manufacturer's list or suggested retail prices.
  - .3 Unit price as set out in the *Contract* or subsequently agreed upon, which shall include overhead, profit, and other reasonable charges of the *Contractor* which shall be the total cost to the *Owner*. Where applicable, adjustment to the *Guaranteed Price* shall be based on net quantity difference from original quantity.
- 6.2.4 *Overhead and Profit Fee*, as that term is referred to in GC 6.2.3.1 and GC 6.2.3.2, shall be a percentage of the *Cost* as defined in GC 6.2.3.2 and as listed below and shall include the *Contractor's* and *Subcontractors'* overhead and profit. Overhead means any cost incurred for maintaining a viable business, including but not limited to:
  - .1 licensing required for conducting business in a jurisdiction;
  - .2 salaries, wages, benefits for office personnel, general management, warehouse personnel, maintenance workers and other employees engaged in daily operations at the place of business;

- .3 general office expenses not related to an individual project, including but not limited to rent, leases, mortgages, financing costs including holdback, utilities, disposal charges and related services, telephone, light, power, water, utilities and heat;
- .4 leased or rented equipment, furniture and facilities not used on the *Project* site;
- .5 office supplies including but not limited to stationary, postage and other office supplies, equipment, computer hardware and software;
- .6 *Project* related office expenses including but not limited to: permits and/or licenses required by authorities having jurisdiction, phone, fax, internet, printing, courier charges, office equipment rentals, lodging and travel;
- .7 *Project* related site expenses including but not limited to: site/trailer office(s) and sheds, including cost of telephone, light, power, utilities, water and heat used therein, *Project* safety (hoarding, signage, bump lines, etc.), site security, fire prevention, snow removal, winter conditions, surveying, coordination of service disruption, *Project* signage, sanitary facilities, water, power, heat, temporary protection of areas adjacent to the *Work*, *As-Built Drawings* and maintenance manuals;
- .8 salaries, wages, benefits for *Project* manager, foreman and supervisor, *Project* superintendent, mechanical and electrical coordinator;
- .9 licenses, permits, certificates, fees and deposits except when these are special for a particular item of *Work*; and
- .10 printing charges for proposed changes, *Change Orders* and drawings for *Contractor's* and *Subcontractors'* use in the *Work*. (the *Consultant* will provide one (1) copy of change notice documentation and in the event of re-issue of full size drawings will provide one (1) reproducible and one (1) print).

At the *Contractor's* option, if the *Contract Time* is extended as a result of a *Change Order*, then the expenses referred to in GC 6.2.4.6, GC 6.2.4.7 and GC 6.2.4.8 for the extended period that are specifically related to the *Change Order* may be excluded from the *Overhead and Profit Fee* and included in the *Cost of the Work* in accordance with GC 6.2.6, and the applicable *Contractor's Overhead and Profit Fee* referred to in GC 6.2.5 shall be reduced by **[REDACTED]** and applied to the entire scope of the *Change Order*.

In addition, at the *Contractor's* option, if an extension of the *Contract Time* would have occurred but for the utilization of additional resources by the *Contractor* which may include premium time and overtime, then the expenses referred to in GC 6.2.4.6, GC 6.2.4.7 and GC 6.2.4.8 that are specifically related to the additional resources utilized by the *Contractor* may be excluded from the *Overhead and Profit Fee* and included in the *Cost of the Work* in accordance with GC 6.2.6, and the applicable *Contractor's Overhead and Profit Fee* referred to in GC 6.2.5 shall be reduced by [**REDACTED**] and applied to the entire scope of the *Change Order*. The determination of whether the utilization of additional resources by the *Contractor* did avoid an extension of the *Contract Time* shall, subject to the provisions of PART 8 – DISPUTE RESOLUTION, be determined by the *Consultant* based on the impact of such utilization of additional resources on the critical path of the *Construction Schedule*.

6.2.5 In determining the value of *Scope Changes* the *Owner* will be permitted to aggregate only the value of *Changes in the Scope of the Work* that arise out of *Owner* initiated *Change Orders* which relate to the same category, location or component of *Work*.

#### On Scope Changes having a value of \$[REDACTED] or less:

The Contractor's Overhead and Profit Fee on changes will be permitted as follows:

- .1 Within the scope of the *Contractor's* own work force, the *Overhead and Profit Fee* shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the *Cost* performed by the *Contractor's* own workforce.
- .2 The *Contractor's* total *Overhead and Profit Fee* for work performed by a *Subcontractor* shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the *Cost* performed by the *Subcontractor*.

The Subcontractor's Overhead and Profit Fee on changes will be permitted as follows:

- .3 Within the scope of the Subcontractor's own work force, the Overhead and Profit Fee shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the Cost performed by the Subcontractor's own workforce.
- .4 The Subcontractor total Overhead and Profit Fee for the work performed by a Sub-Subcontractor shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the Cost performed by the Sub-Subcontractor.
- .5 No Overhead and Profit Fee on credits will be permitted.

### On Scope Changes having a value of **\$[REDACTED]** to **\$[REDACTED]**:

The Contractor's Overhead and Profit Fee on changes will be permitted as follows:

- .6 Within the scope of the Contractor's own work force, the Overhead and Profit Fee shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the Cost performed by the Contractor's own workforce.
- .7 The *Contractor's* total *Overhead and Profit Fee* for work performed by a *Subcontractor* shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the *Cost* performed by the *Subcontractor*.

The Subcontractor's Overhead and Profit Fee on changes will be permitted as follows:

- .8 Within the scope of the Subcontractor's own work force, the Overhead and Profit Fee shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the Cost performed by the Subcontractor's own workforce.
- .9 The Subcontractor total Overhead and Profit Fee for the work performed by a Sub-Subcontractor shall not be more than **REDACTED**] of that portion of the Cost performed by the Sub-Subcontractor.
- .10 No Overhead and Profit Fee on credits will be permitted.

# On Scope Changes having a value of **\$[REDACTED]** to **\$[REDACTED]**:

The Contractor's Overhead and Profit Fee on changes will be permitted as follows:

.11 Within the scope of the Contractor's own work force, the Overhead and Profit Fee shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the Cost performed by the Contractor's own workforce.

.12 The *Contractor's* total *Overhead and Profit Fee* for work performed by a *Subcontractor* shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the *Cost* performed by the *Subcontractor*.

The Subcontractor's Overhead and Profit Fee on changes will be permitted as follows:

- .13 Within the scope of the Subcontractor's own work force, the Overhead and Profit Fee shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the Cost performed by the Subcontractor's own workforce.
- .14 The Subcontractor total Overhead and Profit Fee for the work performed by a Sub-Subcontractor shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the Cost performed by the Sub-Subcontractor.
- .15 No Overhead and Profit Fee on credits will be permitted.

#### On Scope Changes having a value of \$[REDACTED] and over:

The Contractor's Overhead and Profit Fee on changes will be permitted as follows:

- .16 Within the scope of the Contractor's own work force, the Overhead and Profit Fee shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the Cost performed by the Contractor's own workforce.
- .17 The Contractor's total Overhead and Profit Fee up for work performed by a Subcontractor shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the *Cost* performed by the *Subcontractor*.

The Subcontractor's Overhead and Profit Fee on changes will be permitted as follows:

- .18 Within the scope of the Subcontractor's own work force, the Overhead and Profit Fee shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the Cost performed by the Subcontractor's own workforce.
- .19 The Subcontractor's total Overhead and Profit Fee for the work performed by a Sub-Subcontractor shall not be more than **[REDACTED]** of that portion of the Cost performed by the Sub-Subcontractor.
- .20 No Overhead and Profit Fee on credits will be permitted.
- 6.2.6 For the purposes only of determining the value of *Changes in the Scope of the Work* under GC 6.2.3.2, the *Cost*, which excludes *Value Added Tax* shall mean the actual costs, without mark-up or the *Contractor* assessments, as necessarily incurred by the *Contractor* in the performance of a *Change in the Scope of the Work* and shall be restricted to the following:
  - .1 wages and benefits paid for labour in the direct employ of the *Contractor* under applicable collective bargaining agreements, or under a salary or wage schedule agreed upon by the *Owner* and the *Contractor*;
  - .2 salaries, wages and benefits of the *Contractor's* personnel, when stationed at the field office, in whatever capacity employed; or personnel engaged at shops or on the road, in expediting the production or transportation of materials or equipment excluding the costs identified in GC 6.2.4.2 and GC 6.2.4.8;

- .3 contributions, assessments or taxes incurred for such items as employment insurance, provincial or territorial health insurance, workers' compensation, and Canada or Quebec Pension Plan, insofar as such cost is based on wages, salaries or other remuneration paid to employees of the *Contractor* and included in the *Cost of the Work* as provided in GC 6.2.6.1 and GC 6.2.6.2;
- .4 the cost of all *Products* including cost of transportation thereof;
- .5 the net amounts of all payments paid to *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* in accordance with agreed to charge out rates after deduction of any back-charges, set offs or other similar charges but excluding costs to the *Contractor* that result from any *Subcontractor's* or *Supplier's* insolvency or failure to perform;
- .6 the cost of quality assurance such as independent inspection and testing services except for any such cost excluded under GC 6.2.8.19;
- .7 charges levied by authorities having jurisdiction at the *Place of the Work*;
- .8 royalties, patent license fees, and damages for infringement of patents and cost of defending suits therefor subject always to the *Contractor's* obligations to indemnify the *Owner* as provided in GC 10.3.1 of GC 10.3 PATENT FEES;
- .9 incremental premiums, if any, for all bonds and insurance in relation to the performance of the *Work*;
- .10 all taxes, other than *Value Added Tax*, and duties for which the *Contractor* is liable in relation to the performance of the *Work*;
- .11 charges for long distance telephone and facsimile communications, courier services, expressage, photocopying, reproduction of *Contract Documents*, and petty cash items incurred in relation to the performance of the *Work*;
- .12 the cost of removal and disposal of waste products and debris;
- .13 costs incurred due to emergencies affecting the safety of persons or property;
- .14 the cost of removal or containment of toxic or hazardous substances;
- .15 where there is a reduction in the construction scope of the *Work*, demobilization costs and costs incurred for cancellation or reduction of *Subcontractor* or *Supplier* contracts entered into on an arms length basis; and
- .16 any other cost to the *Contractor* expressly or properly inferable from any provision of the *Contract*.
- 6.2.7 Discounts, rebates and refunds
  - .1 All cash discounts shall accrue to the *Contractor* unless the *Owner* deposits funds with the *Contractor* with which to make payments, or where the *Owner* pays the costs of financing the *Work*, in which case the cash discounts shall accrue to the *Owner*. All trade discounts, rebates and refunds, and all returns from sale of surplus materials and equipment applicable to the *Work* shall accrue to the *Owner*, and the *Contractor* shall make provisions so that they can be secured.

- 6.2.8 The following costs shall not be reimbursed or otherwise included in the *Cost* in connection with any *Change Order* or *Change Directive* and are deemed to be included in the *Overhead and Profit Fee*:
  - .1 any cost not specifically and expressly described in GC 6.2.6;
  - .2 overhead, profit and general expenses;
  - .3 the *Contractor's* capital expenses, including interest on the *Contractor's* capital employed in the *Work*;
  - .4 costs due to the fault or negligence of the *Contractor*, *Subcontractors*, *Sub-Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* and anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or for whose acts any of them may be liable, including but not limited to, costs for the correction of damaged, defective or non-conforming work, disposal and replacement of materials and equipment incorrectly ordered or supplied, and making good damage to property not forming part of the *Work*;
  - .5 losses or costs chargeable to any *Subcontractor* or *Supplier* pursuant to its subcontract;
  - .6 fines, penalties, sanctions or impositions assessed or imposed by any governmental body, instrumentality or tribunal due, in whole or in part, to the action or inaction of the *Contractor*, any *Subcontractor*, any *Subcontractor*, any *Supplier* or any person for whom they are responsible in law;
  - .7 costs associated with the *Contractor's* failure to obtain any and all permits in a timely manner including, without limitation, the costs of any delays resulting therefrom, unless such failure is due to the failure of the *Contract* drawings and specifications to conform with the laws and regulations applicable thereto or unless such failure is directly and solely attributable to the delay of the *Owner*;
  - .8 costs of accelerating the Work in accordance with GC 6.5.9;
  - .9 costs resulting from the failure of the *Contractor* or any *Subcontractor* or *Sub-Subcontractor* to procure and maintain insurance as required by the *Contract Documents*;
  - .10 overtime and premium time required under GC 6.5.9;
  - .11 *Project* incentive bonuses except as approved in advance in writing by the *Owner*;
  - .12 costs (including legal fees and expenses) of bonding, securing or removing liens or defending claims filed by *Subcontractors*, *Suppliers* or *Sub-Subcontractors* arising directly from a default by the *Contractor* in properly making any payment in connection with the *Work*, unless such default by the *Contractor* is due to the wrongful failure by the *Owner* to make a progress payment to the *Contractor*;
  - .13 any fines levied against the *Contractor* or the *Owner* due to the *Contractor's* (or any *Subcontractor's* or *Sub-Subcontractor's*) violations of any regulations or other federal, provincial or local laws, regulations or ordinances which fines shall be paid by the *Contractor*, the *Contractor* hereby indemnifying, defending and agreeing to hold harmless the *Owner Indemnified Persons* (as defined in GC 12.1.1) from and against any Claims (as defined in GC 12.1.1) arising out of any such violation or fine, and this indemnity shall be deemed to be included in the terms of the indemnity set out in GC 12.1.1;
  - .14 losses or expenses for which the *Contractor* is compensated by insurance;

- .15 salaries or other compensation (including without limitation, salaries of the *Contractor's* officers and employee's benefits) of any employee of the *Contractor* (or related companies) not working on matters relating to the *Project* except as agreed to in writing by the *Owner*;
- .16 expenses of the *Contractor's* head and district offices other than the field office except as agreed to in writing by the *Owner*;
- .17 salaries and other compensation of the *Contractor's* personnel stationed at the *Contractor's* principal office or offices other than the field office;
- .18 cost of all deductibles arising out of the misconduct, fault, negligent act or omissions of the *Contractor*, any *Subcontractor*, any *Supplier* or any *Sub-Subcontractor* or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable;
- .19 costs for re-inspections and re-testings of non-conforming *Work* not carried out in accordance with the *Contract Documents*;
- .20 legal costs, incurred by the *Contractor*, in relation to the performance of the *Work*; and
- .21 all taxes on income, capital or real property of the *Contractor*.
- 6.2.9 For greater certainty, any charges or back charges as collected and if collected by the *Contractor* from any of its *Subcontractors* or *Suppliers* including for equipment rentals, hoisting, clean up costs or any other expenses for which the *Contractor* is otherwise entitled to reimbursement pursuant to GC 6.2.6 shall be credited to and thereby reduce the *Cost* in connection with any *Change Order* or *Change Directive*.
- 6.2.10 If there is an increase or a decrease in the *Cost of the Financing* as a result of a *Change Order*, the Guaranteed Price shall be increased or decreased by the increase or decrease to the Cost of the Financing. The Contractor shall provide the calculation of the increase or decrease in the Cost of the Financing together with a certificate of the Lender verifying such calculation. Where the increase in the Cost of the Financing includes breakage costs, but the impact of the Change Order on the Cost of the Financing could also be accommodated without incurring breakage costs, calculations for both options shall be provided to the Owner together with a certificate of the Lender addressed to Project Co (which will expressly provide that the certificate may be relied upon by Hospital) verifying such calculations. The Owner shall, in its sole and absolute discretion, within five (5) Business Days of receiving such certificate from Lender select under which option to proceed with by written notice to Project Co, Contractor and the Lender. For greater certainty, the increases or decreases in the Cost of the Financing shall be calculated in a commercially reasonable manner and in accordance with the Lender's standard banking practices and the Lending Agreements and without regard to the identity of the party paying such costs and expenses and, with respect to any swap breakage costs or gains, such costs or gains shall be calculated in accordance with standard market practices. The Owner may, in its sole and absolute discretion, elect to apply any portion of the Schedule Cushion to any extension of Contract Time otherwise determined under a Change Order with the result that such extension of Contract Time shall be reduced or eliminated as the case may be by the number of days of the Schedule Cushion the Owner has elected to apply and the determination of the increase in the Cost of the Financing associated with such Change Order shall be recalculated based on the remaining extension of Contract Time, if any, under such Change Order after such application by the Owner of Schedule Cushion. If a Change Order gives rise to a net benefit to the Contractor through a reduction of the Cost of the Financing, then the Contractor shall pay any such net benefit received by the *Contractor* to the *Owner*.

#### GC 6.3 CHANGE DIRECTIVE

- 6.3.1 If the *Owner* requires the *Contractor* to proceed with a *Change in the Scope of the Work* prior to the *Owner* and the *Contractor* agreeing upon the adjustment in the *Guaranteed Price* and in the *Contract Time*, the *Owner*, through the *Consultant*, shall issue a *Change Directive*.
- 6.3.2 A *Change Directive* can only be used by the *Owner* to direct a *Change in the Scope of the Work* which is within the general scope of the *Contract Documents*.
- 6.3.3 Upon receipt of a *Change Directive*, the *Contractor* shall proceed promptly with the *Change in the Scope of the Work*, in which case any adjustment to the *Guaranteed Price* shall be determined on the basis set forth in GC 6.2.3.2 having regard to GC 6.2.4.
- 6.3.4 Pending determination of the *Overhead and Profit Fee*, the adjustment to the *Guaranteed Price* and to the *Contract Time* required as a result of a *Change Directive*, the *Cost* of the *Work* incurred (determined on the basis of the "*Cost*" as set out in GC 6.2.3.2) as the result of a *Change Directive* is eligible to be included in the *Additional Owner Payments*, notwithstanding the limit imposed by the *Guaranteed Price*. Costs to complete the Work authorized by the *Change Directive*, including all labour and materials, shall be authorized by the *Owner* daily or every other day.
- 6.3.5 If the *Owner* and the *Contractor* do not agree on the proposed *Overhead and Profit Fee*, the proposed adjustment in the *Guaranteed Price*, in the *Contract Time*, or in the method of determining them, the adjustment shall be referred to the *Consultant* for determination on the same basis as a *Change Order* and shall be recorded in a *Change Order*.
- 6.3.6 If at any time after the start of the *Work* directed by a *Change Directive*, the *Owner* and the *Contractor* reach agreement on the *Overhead and Profit Fee*, on the adjustment to the *Guaranteed Price* and to the *Contract Time*, this agreement shall be recorded in a *Change Order* signed by *Owner* and the *Contractor*.
- 6.3.7 Following the start of the *Work* directed by a *Change Directive*, the *Contractor* will maintain in accordance with industry standard records to support the *Cost of the Work* under GC 6.2.6 in respect of the *Work* under the *Change Directive*.

#### GC 6.4 CONCEALED, UNKNOWN CONDITIONS

- 6.4.1 In the event that the *Contractor* encounters conditions at the *Place of the Work* which are not described in or are not properly inferable or readily apparent from the documentation included in the *Additional Site Information* or would not have been readily apparent from the *Contractor's* inspections of the *Place of the Work* made under the *Request for Proposals* prior to the date of the *RFP Submission*, the *Contractor* will promptly notify the *Consultant* who will promptly investigate such conditions and who will then report to the *Owner* and the *Contractor* with a finding as to whether such conditions were or were not described in or were or were not properly inferable or readily apparent from the documentation included in the *Additional Site Information* or would not have been readily apparent from the *Contractor's* inspections of the *Place of the Work* made under the *Request for Proposals* prior to the date of the such conditions were or were not described in or were or were not properly inferable or readily apparent from the documentation included in the *Additional Site Information* or would not have been readily apparent from the *Contractor's* inspections of the *Place of the Work* made under the *Request for Proposals* prior to the date of the *RFP Submission*.
- 6.4.2 If the conditions were described in or were properly inferable or readily apparent from the documentation included in the *Additional Site Information* or would have been readily apparent from the *Contractor's* inspections of the *Place of the Work* made under the *Request for Proposals* prior to the date of the *RFP Submission*, then the *Contractor* shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the *Guaranteed Price* or in *Contract Time*.
- 6.4.3 If the conditions were not described in and were not properly inferable and readily apparent from the documentation included in the *Additional Site Information* and would not have been readily apparent from the *Contractor's* inspections of the *Place of the Work* made under the *Request for Proposals* prior to the date of the *RFP Submission*, and the conditions justify an increase in the *Guaranteed Price*

or an extension of *Contract Time*, or both, the *Consultant* shall issue appropriate instructions for a *Change in the Scope of the Work* as provided in GC 6.2 – CHANGE ORDER or GC 6.3 – CHANGE DIRECTIVE.

#### GC 6.5 DELAYS

- 6.5.1 In accordance with paragraph 11.1 of Article A-11 of the Agreement INTERPRETATION AND OTHER MATTERS, the *Contractor* acknowledges and agrees that time is of the essence with respect to *Work* and with respect to the *Contract* as a whole.
- 6.5.2 If the *Contractor* is delayed in the performance of the *Work* (and only to the extent that such delay affects the critical path of the *Construction Schedule*) by:
  - .1 acts or omissions of the *Owner*, the *Consultant*, the *Owner's* other consultants or contractors or anyone employed or engaged by them, directly or indirectly, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, but excluding acts or omissions which are permitted or contemplated by the provisions of the *Contract*;
  - .2 a stop work order issued by a Court or other public authority and providing that such order was not issued as a result of the *Contractor* not performing its obligations under this *Contract* including where such non-performance is caused by anyone employed or engaged by the *Contractor* directly or indirectly including, without limitation, a *Subcontractor*, *Supplier* or *Sub-Subcontractor*; or
  - .3 a direction from the *Owner* to the *Contractor* to suspend the performance of the *Work* or a portion thereof as a result of a public health issue arising in connection with or affecting the *Hospital*;

the *Contract Time* will be extended for such reasonable time as the *Consultant* will recommend in consultation with the *Owner* and the *Contractor* and the *Contractor* will be reimbursed by the *Owner* for the *Cost* (as defined in GC 6.2.3.2) incurred by the *Contractor* as a result of the delay, and such extension of the *Contract Time* and reimbursement of *Cost* shall be valued and processed as a *Change Order* in accordance with the *Change Order* procedure pursuant to GC 6.2 – CHANGE ORDER hereof.

- 6.5.3 If the Contractor is delayed in the performance of the Work (and only to the extent that such delay affects the critical path of the Construction Schedule) by a lack of access to the Place of the Work as a result of an order or direction issued by the Owner or by a government authority to the Owner, but not as a result of the Contractor not performing its obligations under this Contract including where such non-performance is caused by anyone employed or engaged by the *Contractor* directly or indirectly including, without limitation, a Subcontractor, Supplier or Sub-Subcontractor or by any activity described in GC 6.5.4, the Contract Time will be extended for such reasonable time as the Consultant will recommend in consultation with the *Owner* and the *Contractor* and the *Contractor* will be reimbursed by the Owner for the Cost (as defined in GC 6.2.3.2) incurred by the Contractor as a result of the delay, and such extension of the Contract Time and reimbursement of Cost shall be valued and processed as a *Change Order* in accordance with the *Change Order* procedure pursuant to GC 6.2 – CHANGE ORDER hereof. The Contractor acknowledges that in performing the Work at all times paramountcy of access must be given to emergency vehicles and no claim may be made by the Contractor for any delay in the performance of the Work as a result of any temporary lack of access to the Place of Work resulting from this paramountcy of access by emergency vehicles, provided that the *Owner* will use reasonable efforts to avoid and to limit the duration of any temporary lack of access for this reason.
- 6.5.4 If the *Contractor* is delayed in the performance of the *Work* by civil commotion, warlike operation, invasion, rebellion, hostilities, military or usurped power, acts of God, labour disputes, strikes or lock

outs (including lock-outs decreed or recommended for its members by a recognized contractors' association of which the *Contractor* is a member or to which the *Contractor* is otherwise bound), fire, unusual delay by common carriers or unavoidable casualties or, without limit to any of the foregoing. by a cause beyond the Contractor's control (but excluding any delay due to: (i) labour disputes involving only the forces of the Contractor or any Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor or labour disputes provided for in GC 6.5.2.4, (ii) lack of funds, (iii) the fault or negligence of the Contractor or anyone employed or engaged directly or indirectly by the Contractor, including any Supplier, Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor, (iv) any shortage of labour, equipment or materials unless such shortage is due to an event which gives rise to relief under this GC 6.5.4, (v) the default, delay or failure of any Supplier, Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor unless such default, delay or failure is due to an event which would give rise to relief under this GC 6.5.4 if the Supplier, Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor was a party to the Contract or (vi) any weather (extreme or unusual) encountered in the course of completing the Work), then the Contract Time shall be extended for such reasonable time as the Consultant may decide in consultation with the Contractor and the Owner, and such extension of the Contract Time shall be processed as a Change Order in accordance with the Change Order procedure pursuant to GC 6.2 – CHANGE ORDER hereof. The Contractor shall not be entitled to payment for costs incurred as the result of any delays described in this GC 6.5.4 and there shall be no adjustment to the Guaranteed Price save and except for an increase in the Cost of the Financing under GC 6.2.10 and where there is a claim against any insurance carried under the Contract under which insurance proceeds to cover the cost of a delay are payable. The Contractor shall use reasonable efforts to minimize the effect of delays described in this GC 6.5.4 upon the performance of the Work and Contract Time. The Contractor agrees that labour disputes, strikes and lockouts involving Suppliers, which are not directed specifically at the Work, and which do not lead to picketing at the *Place of the Work*, shall not constitute grounds for delay of the *Work* if other suppliers of materials or services acceptable to the *Consultant* are available on commercially reasonable terms.

- 6.5.5 Should the *Contractor* contend that it is entitled to an extension of the *Contract Time* for completion of any portion of the *Work*, the *Contractor* shall:
  - .1 as soon as reasonably possible but in any event within fifteen (15) days of the occurrence of the delay, provide the *Owner* with written notice setting forth the cause of the delay, a description of the impact the delay will have on the critical path of the *Work* (including an order of magnitude estimate of the cost of the delay) and a description of the portions of the *Work* affected thereby, together with all pertinent details;
  - .2 as soon as reasonably possible but in any event within fifteen (15) days after the cause of the delay has ceased to exist, submit a written application to the *Owner* for the specific *Contract Time* extension requested, and if the delay is as a result of an event described in GC 6.5.2, GC 6.5.3 or GC 6.5.7, together with a breakdown of the actual costs, without mark-up, incurred by the *Contractor* as a result of the delay;
  - .3 take all reasonable steps to mitigate the consequences of such an event (that could result in delays) upon the performance of its obligations under this *Contract*, resume performance of all its obligations affected by the delay event as soon as practicable and use all reasonable endeavours to remedy any failure to perform; and
  - .4 use all reasonable efforts to anticipate the occurrence of any delay event and take appropriate measures to avoid its potential occurrence or minimize the potential effects of its occurrence.
- 6.5.6 The *Contractor* acknowledges that the provisions of GC 6.5.5.1 and GC 6.5.2 are required by the *Owner* to ensure the *Owner* is provided with timely and sufficient information respecting any alleged delay to ensure that the *Owner* is not prejudiced in dealing with the claim by the *Contractor* for an extension of *Contract Time* or an increase to the *Guaranteed Price* as a consequence of the occurrence of the delay. If the *Contractor* fails to comply with the requirement to provide the information under either GC 6.5.5.1 or GC 6.5.2 within the time periods therein provided, it shall be disentitled to claim an extension to the *Contract Time* and payment of additional costs but only to the extent that the

*Owner* has been prejudiced by the failure. The onus shall be on the *Contractor* to establish substantial compliance with the said requirements, and that the *Owner* has not been prejudiced by the failure to provide the required information within the required time periods.

- 6.5.7 The Owner may order the Contractor in writing to suspend or interrupt all or any part of the Work for such period of time as the *Owner* may determine as to be appropriate for the convenience of the Owner. This right of the Owner to suspend or interrupt the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity. In the event of an Owner ordered suspension of the Work not resulting from the Contractor not performing its obligations under this *Contract* including where such non-performance is caused by anyone employed or engaged by the *Contractor* directly or indirectly including, without limitation, a Subcontractor, Supplier or Sub-Subcontractor, the Contract Time will be extended for such reasonable time as the *Consultant* will recommend in consultation with the *Owner* and the *Contractor* and the Contractor will be reimbursed by the Owner for the Cost (as defined in GC 6.2.3.2) incurred by the Contractor as a result of the suspension of the Work, and such extension of the Contract Time and reimbursement of *Cost* shall be valued and processed as a *Change Order* in accordance with the Change Order procedure pursuant to GC 6.2 - CHANGE ORDER hereof. The Consultant is not authorized to order a suspension of the Work. The Work shall only be suspended by written notice from the Owner to the Contractor.
- 6.5.8 Should the *Work* be stopped for any cause, the *Contractor* shall provide protection for any part of the *Work* likely to become damaged during the *Work* stoppage. The *Owner* shall pay the costs for such protection only if stoppage occurs due to delays as specified in GC 6.5.2, GC 6.5.3 and GC 6.5.7.
- 6.5.9 If the *Work* should be behind schedule for a reason other than as described in GC 6.5.2, GC 6.5.3, GC 6.5.4 or GC 6.5.7, or if any of the *Subcontractors, Suppliers* or *Sub-Subcontractors* delays the progress of any portion of the *Work* necessary to complete the *Work* on schedule, the *Contractor* shall use all reasonable measures to bring the *Work* back on schedule. The *Contractor* shall exercise all means within its discretion, such as directing any *Subcontractors, Suppliers* or *Sub-Subcontractors* creating delays to increase their labour forces and equipment, to improve the organization and expediting of the *Work*, or to work overtime as may be necessary. The *Contractor* shall provide any additional supervision, coordination and expediting, including overtime by its own personnel as may be required to achieve this end. The costs and expenses incurred by the use of such measures and overtime shall be no adjustment in the *Guaranteed Price* of the *Work* as a result of such costs and expense.
- 6.5.10 *Costs* (as defined in GC 6.2.3.2) due to delays caused by non-availability of specified items, when such delays could have been avoided or substantially mitigated by the *Contractor*, shall be the responsibility of the *Contractor*.
- 6.5.11 The cost which the *Contractor* may be entitled to under GC 6.5.2, GC 6.5.3, or GC 6.5.7 shall extend to all direct costs incurred or suffered by the *Contractor* as a result of the delay including the *Overhead and Profit Fee* in an amount determined in accordance with GC 6.2.5 and by the increase to the *Cost of the Financing* in accordance with GC 6.2.10, but shall not include indirect, consequential or special damages such as loss of profit or loss of opportunity arising from the delay.
- 6.5.12 Where there are concurrent delays, some of which are caused by the *Owner* or by others for whom the *Owner* is responsible and some of which are caused by the *Contractor* or others for whom the *Contractor* is responsible, the *Contractor* shall not be entitled to either an extension in the *Contract Time* or additional compensation to the extent of the concurrent delays. Concurring delays are those that are caused by two or more independent events which affect items on the critical path of the *Construction Schedule* where the time period over which such delays occur overlap in time, but only for the duration of the overlap.

- 6.5.13 The *Contractor* acknowledges that, subject to any extension of the *Contract Time* that may arise in connection with the *Consultant's* failure to respond to any *Design Issue* in accordance with GC 2.2.9 as it applies to the circumstances of either of GC 4.2.3 or GC 4.2.4 or if there is any extension of *Contract Time* allowed in the circumstance of a *Change in the Scope of the Work* under GC 4.2.6, no extension of time shall be made for delays caused by a *Design Issue* properly characterized as a *Contractor's Design Contingency* matter under GC 4.2 CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY of this *Contract*.
- 6.5.14 The Owner shall provide the Contractor with reasonable access to and use of the Place of the Work sufficient to allow the Contractor to perform the Work and in a manner consistent with the Construction Schedule subject to and in accordance with the notification requirements and restrictions set out in the Contract Documents including those Contract Documents referred to in GC 3.12.5; provided that the Contractor agrees that the inability of the Owner to provide the Contractor with access to an area for construction activities not on the critical path for reasons generally outlined in GC 3.12.4 and GC 3.12.5 will not result in a claim by the Contractor for a change in the Guaranteed Price or Contract Time.
- 6.5.15 The *Contractor* acknowledges and agrees that the *Contract Time* includes a *Schedule Cushion* in the *Construction Schedule* at no additional cost to the *Owner*. The *Contractor* shall separately identify the extent of the *Schedule Cushion* in the *Construction Schedule*.
- 6.5.16 The *Contractor* acknowledges and agrees that in the event that an extension of the *Contract Time* is allowed under any provision of this *Contract*, the *Owner* may, in its sole and absolute discretion, elect to apply any portion of the *Schedule Cushion* with the result that such extension of *Contract Time* shall be reduced or eliminated as the case may be by the number of days of the *Schedule Cushion* the *Owner* has elected to apply.
- 6.5.17 For greater certainty, no extension of the *Contract Time* resulting from a delay under any provision of this GC 6.5 shall be allowed, unless the event or circumstance on which the claim is based extends the critical path of the *Construction Schedule*, the date for *Completion of the Interim Work*, the date for *Substantial Performance of the Work* or the date for *Total Completion* and in no case shall the extension of *Contract Time* be more than the necessary extension of the critical path as a result of the event causing the delay.

#### PART 7 DEFAULT NOTICE

# GC 7.1 OWNER'S RIGHT TO PERFORM THE WORK, SUSPEND THE WORK OR TERMINATE THE CONTRACT

- 7.1.1 If the *Contractor* should be adjudged bankrupt, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors because of the *Contractor's* insolvency, or if a receiver is appointed because of the *Contractor's* insolvency, the *Owner* may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy the *Owner* may have, by giving the *Contractor* or receiver or trustee in bankruptcy notice in writing, terminate the *Contract* without affecting in any respect the liability of the *Contractor* in respect of earlier defaults.
- 7.1.2 If the *Contractor* should neglect to prosecute the *Work* in compliance with the requirements of the *Contract*, the *Owner* may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy the *Owner* may have, notify the *Contractor* in writing that the *Contractor* is in default of the *Contractor's* contractual obligations and instruct the *Contractor* to correct the default in the five (5) *Working Days* immediately following the receipt of such notice.
- 7.1.3 If the default cannot be corrected in the five (5) *Working Days* specified, the *Contractor* shall be in compliance with the *Owner*'s instructions if the *Contractor*:

- .1 commences and is diligently proceeding with the correction of the default within the specified time;
- .2 provides the *Owner* with a schedule acceptable to the *Owner* for such correction; and
- .3 corrects the default in accordance with such schedule.

If the *Contractor* fails to correct the default in the time specified in the schedule referred to in GC 7.1.3.2 or subsequently agreed upon, the *Owner* may correct such default and deduct the cost and expense thereof from any payment then or thereafter due the *Contractor* provided the *Consultant* has certified such cost to the *Owner* and the *Contractor*.

- 7.1.4 The *Owner* may terminate the *Contract* if the Contractor:
  - .1 fails to deliver a schedule for correction of the default of the *Contractor* to the *Owner* in accordance with GC 7.1.3.2 that is acceptable to the *Owner*, acting reasonably, that indicates *Substantial Performance of the Work* will be achieved by the *Longstop Date*; or
  - .2 subject to GC 6.5.2, GC 6.5.3, GC 6.5.4 and GC 6.5.7 fails to achieve *Substantial Performance of the Work* by the *Longstop Date*.
- 7.1.5 If the *Owner* terminates the *Contract* pursuant to GC 7.1.1 or GC 7.1.4, the *Owner* shall be entitled to take possession of the *Work* and *Products*, utilize the construction machinery and equipment (subject to the rights of third parties and to payment of reasonable rental fees in respect of construction machinery and equipment owned by the *Contractor*) and finish the *Work* by whatever method the *Owner* may consider expedient.
- 7.1.6 In the event of a termination as provided for pursuant to the *Contract Documents*, the *Contractor* shall cooperate with the *Owner* and turn over to the *Owner*, copies of the *Contractor's* records, documentation and drawings necessary for the *Owner* to proceed with the *Work*, including the legal assignment to the *Owner* of any of the *Contractor's* rights in any agreement relating to the *Work*, as the *Owner* may require, and the *Contractor* shall not do anything to impede the *Owner's* ability to proceed with the Work. Further, the *Contractor* agrees to turn over to the *Owner*, on a timely basis enabling the *Contractor* to make and retain copies as it may reasonably deem necessary, all of the *Contractor's* records, files, documents, materials, drawings, and any other items relating to the *Project*, whether located on the *Place of the Work*, at the *Contractor's* office or elsewhere (including, without limitation, all records as described in GC 5.2.1 and notwithstanding the fact that such provision only permits access by the *Owner* to such records) and to vacate the *Place of the Work* in accordance with the *Owner's* reasonable instructions. The *Owner* may retain such records, files, documents, materials, drawings for such time as it may need them and may reproduce any and all such items for its own use.
- 7.1.7 The *Contractor's* obligation under the *Contract* as to quality, correction and warranty of the *Work* performed by the *Contractor* up to the time of termination shall continue in force after such termination.
- 7.1.8 If all or substantially all of the *Work* should be stopped or otherwise delayed for a continuous period of one hundred and eighty (180) days or more (or if the *Owner* reasonably believes that such a delay is reasonably likely to occur) as a result of the occurrence of any one or more of the events described in GC 6.5.2.2 or .3 or GC 6.5.4 which may result in an extension of *Contract Time*, or at any time for the convenience of the *Owner*, the *Owner*, may, by giving the *Contractor* written notice, terminate the *Contract*. Such notice shall in the case of termination for the convenience of the *Owner*, include confirmation that the *Owner* has, in respect of such termination, obtained the prior written consent of the Ministry of Health and Long Term Care.

#### GC 7.2 CONTRACTOR'S RIGHT TO SUSPEND THE WORK OR TERMINATE THE CONTRACT

- 7.2.1 If the *Owner* should be adjudged bankrupt, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors because of the *Owner*'s insolvency, or if a receiver is appointed because of the *Owner*'s insolvency, the *Contractor* may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy the *Contractor* may have, by giving the *Owner* or receiver or trustee in bankruptcy notice in writing, terminate the *Contract*.
- 7.2.2 If all or substantially all of the *Work* should be stopped or otherwise delayed for a continuous period of one hundred and eighty (180) days or more as a result of the occurrence of any one or more of the events described in GC 6.5.2, GC 6.5.3, GC 6.5.4 or GC 6.5.7 the *Contractor* may, by giving the *Owner* written notice, terminate the *Contract*, provided that:
  - .1 the *Contractor* shall at all times following the occurrence of any one or more of the events described in GC 6.5.2, GC 6.5.3 and GC 6.5.4 take all reasonable steps to prevent and mitigate the effects of any delay;
  - .2 the *Contractor* shall, at all times during which any one or more of the events described in GC 6.5.2, GC 6.5.3 and GC 6.5.4 is subsisting, take all steps in accordance with *Good Industry Practice* to overcome or minimize the consequences of the event; and
  - .3 the *Contractor* shall take all reasonable steps to mitigate its losses and costs resulting from the occurrence of any one or more of the events described in GC 6.5.2, GC 6.5.3 and GC 6.5.4.
- 7.2.3 The *Contractor* may notify the *Owner* in writing, with a copy to the *Consultant*, that the *Owner* is in default of its contractual obligations if:
  - .1 the *Owner* fails to pay the *Contractor* when due the amounts certified by the *Consultant* or amounts awarded by arbitration or court in respect of the *Contract*; or
  - .2 the *Owner* violates the requirements of the *Contract* to a substantial degree.

The *Contractor's* written notice to the *Owner* shall advise that if the default is not corrected in the twenty (20) *Working Days* immediately following the receipt of the written notice the *Contractor* may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy it may have, terminate the *Contract*.

7.2.4 The *Owner's* withholding of holdback and final payments or otherwise effecting any set-off permitted hereunder shall not constitute a default under this GC 7.2 permitting the *Contractor* to claim that the *Owner* is in default of the *Owner's* contractual obligations.

#### PART 8 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

# GC 8.1 AUTHORITY OF THE CONSULTANT

- 8.1.1 Differences between the parties to the *Contract* as to the interpretation, application or administration of the *Contract* or any other disagreement between the parties including any disagreement as to any decision, finding or determination by the *Consultant*, herein collectively called disputes, which are not resolved to the mutual satisfaction of the parties in the first instance by findings of the *Consultant* subject to and as provided in GC 2.2 ROLE OF THE CONSULTANT, shall be settled in accordance with the requirements of this PART 8.
- 8.1.2 If the matter in dispute is not resolved promptly the *Consultant* will give such instructions as in the *Consultant's* opinion are necessary for the proper performance of the *Work*. The parties shall act immediately according to such instructions, subject to GC 8.1.3, it being understood that by so doing neither party will jeopardize any claim they may have. If it is subsequently determined that such

instructions were in error or at variance with the *Contract Documents*, the *Contractor* shall be entitled to payment for carrying out such instructions in accordance with the *Change Order* valuation procedures pursuant to GC 6.2.3.2.

8.1.3 As time is of the essence, it is essential that performance of the *Work* continue notwithstanding any such dispute. In the event the dispute is referred to an Adjudicator under GC 8.2.5 the parties shall, in accordance with GC 8.2.5.6 and notwithstanding GC 8.1.2, comply with any decision of the Adjudicator including the payment of any amounts the Adjudicator determines are owing and for greater certainty the parties will comply with the decision of the Adjudicator notwithstanding any referral of the dispute to arbitration or to the courts in accordance with GC 8.2.6 until a final determination of the matter is made by an arbitrator or a court, as the case may be.

#### GC 8.2 NEGOTIATION, MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION

- 8.2.1 In accordance with the latest edition of the Rules for Mediation of Construction Disputes as provided in CCDC 40, the parties shall appoint a Project Mediator within thirty (30) days after the *Contract* was awarded. If the parties are unable to agree upon a Project Mediator within the prescribed time, then either party may request a judge of the Superior Court for the Province of Ontario to appoint the Project Mediator. The parties may at any time mutually agree in respect to a particular dispute not to proceed with either or both of the dispute resolution procedures set out in GC 8.2.4 and GC 8.2.5.
- 8.2.2 The claimant shall give written notice of a dispute to the other party/(parties), in the case of a dispute as to a decision, finding or determination made by the Consultant no later than five (5) *Working Days* after the receipt of the *Consultant's* decision, finding or determination given under GC 2.2 ROLE OF THE CONSULTANT. Such notice shall set forth particulars of the matters in dispute, the probable extent and value of the damage and the relevant provisions of the *Contract Documents*. Such notice shall be copied to Infrastructure Ontario at the address set out in paragraph 8.1 of Article A.8 of the Agreement RECEIPT OF AND ADDRESSES FOR NOTICES, for information purposes only. The other party shall reply to such notice no later than five (5) *Working Days* after it receives or is considered to have received it, setting out in such reply its grounds and other relevant provisions of the *Contract Documents*.
- 8.2.3 The parties shall first make good faith efforts to promptly resolve their disputes by amicable negotiations conducted by the senior representatives of the *Owner* and the *Contractor* at the *Place of the Work*. If, following good faith negotiations between them, resolution of a dispute has not been reached within five (5) *Working Days* of the request for negotiations, then upon the written request of either party, senior executive officers of each party shall attempt to resolve the dispute. If the dispute is resolved, such resolution shall be evidenced by an instrument in writing.
- 8.2.4 If a dispute has not been resolved within ten (10) *Working Days* of a party's written request for executive officer negotiation, then upon the written request of either party the dispute shall be submitted to the Project Mediator for mediation. The mediated negotiations shall be conducted in accordance with the latest edition of the Rules for Mediation of Construction Disputes as provided in CCDC 40. If the dispute is resolved, such resolution shall be evidenced by an instrument in writing.
- 8.2.5 If the dispute has not been resolved within ten (10) *Working Days* after the Project Mediator was requested under GC 8.2.4 or within such further period as agreed by the parties, the Project Mediator shall terminate the mediated negotiations by giving notice in writing to both parties, and the dispute shall be referred to adjudication in accordance with this GC 8.2.5. Such adjudication shall be conducted in accordance with the following:
  - .1 Within thirty (30) days after the date of *Contract* award, the parties shall appoint an Adjudicator. If the parties are unable to agree upon an Adjudicator within the prescribed time, then either party may request a judge of the Superior Court for the Province of Ontario to appoint the Adjudicator.

- .2 Either party may refer a dispute to the Adjudicator by providing written notice of its intention to the other party and the Adjudicator at least three (3) *Working Days* prior to making the referral.
- .3 Once a dispute has been referred to the Adjudicator, the Adjudicator is required to make a decision within twenty-eight (28) days of the referral, or such longer period as agreed by the parties after the dispute has been referred, and such decision shall be in writing.
- .4 The Adjudicator is required to act impartially in fulfilling his/her duties under this *Contract* and the Adjudicator may take whatever initiative he/she deems necessary in order to resolve the dispute, including requiring the parties to submit whatever documents, statements of position or other information the Adjudicator requires.
- .5 The Adjudicator may decide that any of the parties to the dispute is liable to make a payment under the *Contract* and when that payment is due.
- .6 In the absence of any directions by the Adjudicator relating to the time for performance of his/her decision, and notwithstanding any instruction received from the *Consultant* in accordance with GC 8.1.2, the parties shall be required to comply with any decision of the Adjudicator immediately on delivery of the decision to the parties in accordance with this paragraph.
- .7 If requested by one or both of the parties to the dispute, the Adjudicator shall provide reasons for his/her decision.
- .8 The Adjudicator shall be entitled to the payment of such reasonable amount as he/she may determine by way of fees and expenses reasonably incurred by him/her which the Adjudicator may apportion between the parties as he/she considers appropriate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties shall be jointly and severally liable for any sum which remains outstanding following the making of any determination on how payment shall be apportioned such that if the Adjudicator is unable to recover his/her fees and expenses from one party, he/she may recover from the other.
- .9 The Adjudicator shall not be liable for anything done or omitted in the discharge or purported discharge of his/her functions as Adjudicator unless the act or omission is in bad faith.
- 8.2.6 By giving notice in writing to the other party, not later than ten (10) Working Days after the receipt of the decision of the Adjudicator and subject to the parties' obligation to comply with the Adjudicator's decision in accordance with GC 8.1.3, either party may (i) elect, by written notice to the other party, to refer the dispute to be finally resolved by arbitration under the latest edition of the Rules for Arbitration of Construction Disputes as provided in CCDC 40, or (ii) elect, by written notice to the other party and regardless of whether the other party has given a notice under clause (i) above electing to refer the dispute to be finally resolved by arbitration, to require that the dispute be referred to and resolved solely by litigation in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice, and both parties agree to attorn to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Ontario in respect of the dispute, provided if the actual or potential total value or amount at issue in the dispute (as determined by adding all claims and counterclaims) is less than **\$[REDACTED]**, taking into account recurrence over time if the dispute involves a recurring matter, the party which has not referred the dispute to be resolved by litigation may elect, by written notice given to the other party within ten (10) Working Days after the receipt of the notice requiring that the dispute be resolved by litigation, to refer the dispute to be finally resolved by arbitration. Such notice of arbitration or referral to a court shall be copied to Infrastructure Ontario at the addresses set out in paragraph 8.1 of Article A.8 of the Agreement -RECEIPT OF AND ADDRESSES FOR NOTICES, for information purposes only. Notwithstanding that a notice of arbitration has been delivered, if the actual or potential total value or amount at issue in the dispute (as determined by adding all claims and counterclaims) is **[REDACTED]** or more,

taking into account recurrence over time if the dispute involves a recurring matter, then either party may elect, by written notice to the other party, to require that the dispute be referred to and resolved solely by litigation in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice, and both parties agree to attorn to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Ontario in respect of the dispute.

- 8.2.7 Except otherwise as provided in the *Contract Documents*, no arbitration arising out of or relating to the *Contract Documents* shall include by consolidation, joinder or in any other manner any other individual or entity who is not a party to this *Contract* unless:
  - .1 the inclusion of such other individual or entity is necessary if complete relief is to be afforded among those who are already parties to the arbitration;
  - .2 such other individual or entity is substantially involved in a question of law or fact which is common to those who are already parties to the arbitration and which will arise in such proceedings; and
  - .3 the written consent of the other individual or entity sought to be included and of the *Owner* and the *Contractor* has been obtained for such inclusion, which consent shall make specific reference to this paragraph; but no such consent shall constitute consent to arbitration of any dispute not specifically described in such consent or to arbitration with any party not specifically identified in such consent.

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, if a claim, dispute or other matter in question between the *Owner* and the *Contractor* involves the work of a *Subcontractor* or *Supplier* either the *Owner* or the *Contractor* may join such entity as a party to the arbitration between the *Owner* and the *Contractor* hereunder. The *Contractor* shall include in all subcontracts a specific provision whereby the *Subcontractor* consents to being joined in an arbitration between the *Owner* and the *Contractor* involving the *Work* of such *Subcontractor*, in accordance with this PART 8, including, without limitation, this GC 8.2. Nothing in this paragraph nor in the provision of such subcontractor or the *Supplier* against the *Owner*.

8.2.8 The *Contractor* agrees that any claims made by it against any other contractor(s) of the *Owner* based (in whole or in part) as a result of any acts or omissions of other contractor(s) shall, in the first instance, be submitted to the *Owner*. The *Owner* shall then, with the assistance of the *Contractor*, present the claim to the other contractor(s) for resolution under the terms of the applicable contract(s). The *Contractor* has the full responsibility for the preparation of such claims and the *Contractor* shall bear the complete expense of preparing and presenting its claim, including legal fees. The *Contractor* agrees that it will not pursue or will stay any legal proceeding related to the claim(s), with the exception of initiating legal proceedings to assert any statutory right to a lien under the *Construction Lien Act* (Ontario), for a reasonable period of time to allow the *Owner* to reach a resolution acceptable to the *Contractor* under the terms of the applicable contract. If such resolution has not been achieved within a reasonable period of time the *Contractor* shall proceed with any legal proceeding against the other contractor of the *Owner*. The *Contractor* shall proceed with any legal proceeding against the other contractor of the *Owner*. The *Contractor* shall proceed with any legal proceeding against the other contractor of the *Owner*. The *Contractor* shall proceed with any legal proceeding against the other contractor of the *Owner*. The *Contractor* shall proceed with any legal proceeding against the other contractor of the *Owner*. The *Contractor* shall proceed with any legal proceeding against the other contractor of the *Owner*. The *Contractor* shall proceed diligently with its Work under the *Contract* pending resolution of any such claim or dispute when directed to do so by the *Owner*.

#### GC 8.3 RETENTION OF RIGHTS

- 8.3.1 It is agreed that no act by either party shall be construed as a renunciation or waiver of any rights or recourses, provided the party has given the notices required under this PART 8 and has carried out the instructions as provided in GC 8.1.2.
- 8.3.2 Nothing in this PART 8 shall be construed in any way to limit a party from asserting any statutory right to a lien under applicable lien legislation of the jurisdiction of the *Place of the Work* and the assertion of such right by initiating judicial proceedings is not to be construed as a waiver of any right

that party may have under GC 8.2.6 to proceed by way of arbitration to adjudicate the merits of the claim upon which such a lien is based.

#### PART 9 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

#### GC 9.1 PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY

- 9.1.1 The *Contractor* shall protect the *Work* and the *Owner's* property at the *Place of the Work* including the *Existing Hospital* and property adjacent to the *Place of the Work* from damage which may arise as the result of the *Contractor's* operations under the *Contract*, and shall be responsible for such damage, except damage which occurs as the result of:
  - .1 Design Issues (other than Design Issues which are properly characterized as Contractor's Design Contingency matters under GC 4.2 CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN CONTINGENCY); or
  - .2 acts or omissions by the *Owner*, the *Consultant* or any contractor retained by the *Owner* directly and whose contract is not assigned to the *Contractor*, their respective agents and employees.
- 9.1.2 Should the *Contractor* in the performance of the *Contract* damage the *Work*, the *Owner's* property at the *Place of the Work* including the *Existing Hospital* or property adjacent to the *Place of the Work*, the *Contractor* shall be responsible to *Make Good* such damage at the *Contractor's* expense.
- 9.1.3 Should damage occur to the *Work* or the *Owner's* property at the *Place of the Work* including the *Existing Hospital* for which the *Contractor* is not responsible, as provided in GC 9.1.1, the *Contractor* shall *Make Good* such damage to the *Work* and, if the *Owner* so directs, to the *Owner's* property and the *Guaranteed Price* and *Contract Time* shall be adjusted (including on account of *Overhead and Profit Fee*) as provided in GC 6.1 CHANGES, GC 6.2 CHANGE ORDER and GC 6.3 CHANGE DIRECTIVE.
- 9.1.4 The *Contractor* shall not undertake to repair and/or replace any damage whatsoever to adjoining property or acknowledge the same was caused or occasioned by the *Contractor*, without first consulting the *Owner* and receiving written instructions as to the course of action to be followed.
- 9.1.5 Notwithstanding GC 9.1.4 where there is danger to life or property which arises out of or in connection with the performance of the *Work*, either party may but the *Contractor* shall take such emergency action as is necessary to remove the danger.

#### GC 9.2 DAMAGES AND MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY

- 9.2.1 If either party to the *Contract* should suffer damage in any manner because of any wrongful act or neglect of the other party or of anyone for whom the other party is responsible in law or under the terms of the *Contract*, then that party shall be reimbursed by the other party for such damage. The reimbursing party shall be subrogated to the rights of the other party in respect of such wrongful act or neglect if it be that of a third party.
- 9.2.2 Claims for damage under GC 9.2.1 shall be made in writing to the party liable within reasonable time after the first observance of such damage and if undisputed shall be confirmed by *Change Order*. Disputed claims shall be resolved as set out in PART 8 DISPUTE RESOLUTION and when finally determined shall be confirmed by *Change Order* under GC 6.2 CHANGE ORDER.
- 9.2.3 If the *Contractor* has caused damage to the work of another contractor related to the *Project*, the *Contractor* agrees upon due notice to settle with the other contractor by negotiation or arbitration in accordance with GC 3.2.5 and PART 8 DISPUTE RESOLUTION. If the other contractor makes a

claim against the *Owner* on account of damage alleged to have been so sustained, the dispute shall be dealt with in substantially the same manner as contemplated in GC 3.2.5 and PART 8 – DISPUTE RESOLUTION. The *Owner* shall notify the *Contractor* of any such claim made by a contractor and the *Owner* may, at its option, require the *Contractor* to defend the claim at the *Contractor's* expense. The *Owner* may at its option elect to defend the claim at the *Contractor's* expense, and where the *Owner* defends the claim the *Contractor* shall have a right to consent, acting reasonably, in respect to any settlement between the *Owner* and such other contractor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the *Contractor* shall indemnify and hold harmless the *Owner*, the *Consultant*, the *Owner's Project Manager* and the Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation, and their respective agents, consultants, officers, directors and employees and their successors and assigns as well as Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario, Her ministers, agents and employees or any person for whom they are in law responsible, from such claims, including the satisfaction of any order or judgment made against the *Owner* or the *Consultant* and for any and all legal and other costs incurred by the *Owner* or the *Consultant* arising from such action and this indemnity shall be deemed to be included in the terms of the indemnity set out in GC 12.1.1

9.2.4 If the *Contractor* becomes liable to pay or satisfy a final order, judgment or award against the *Owner*, then the *Contractor*, upon undertaking to indemnify the *Owner* against any and all liability for costs and, at the *Owner*'s option, providing the *Owner* with security (financial instrument dependent on what is at issue) for payment thereof, shall have the right to appeal in the name of the *Owner* such final order or judgment to any and all courts of competent jurisdiction.

#### GC 9.3 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

- 9.3.1 For the purposes of applicable environmental legislation, the *Owner* shall be deemed to have control and management of the *Place of the Work* with respect to existing conditions.
- 9.3.2 Prior to the *Contractor* commencing the *Work*, the *Owner* has taken
  - .1 all reasonable steps to determine whether any hazardous, toxic or harmful substances or materials as defined by applicable law, rules, regulations or ordinances ("Hazardous Materials") are present at the *Place of the Work*; and
  - .2 provided the *Consultant*, the *Lender's Consultant* and the *Contractor* with a report on any such *Hazardous Materials*, which report the *Contractor* acknowledges is included in the *Site Background Reports*.
- 9.3.3 The *Contractor* shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that:
  - .1 no person suffers injury, sickness or death and no property is injured or destroyed as a result of exposure to or the presence of *Hazardous Materials* which were at the *Place of the Work* prior to the *Contractor* commencing the *Work* and which are described in or are properly inferable from the *Additional Site Information* ("*Disclosed Hazardous Materials*");
  - .2 all necessary steps are taken in accordance with legal requirements, to dispose of, store or otherwise render harmless *Disclosed Hazardous Materials*; and
  - .3 there is no discharge, escape, emission, leak, deposit, dispersion or migration into the environment ("Release") or threatened *Release* of any *Disclosed Hazardous Materials* at or from the *Place of the Work* which has or may have an adverse effect upon the environment or human health or safety;

as a result of the performance of the Work by the Contractor.

9.3.4 The *Contractor* shall take reasonable steps to ensure that:

- .1 no person suffers injury, sickness or death and no property is injured or destroyed as a result of exposure to or the presence of *Hazardous Materials* brought to the *Place of the Work* by the *Contractor* or any *Subcontractor*, *Supplier* or *Sub-Subcontractor* or any of their respective agents or employees or anyone else for whom the *Contractor*, *Subcontractor*, *Supplier* or *Sub-Subcontractor* is at law responsible in connection with the *Performance of the Work* by the *Contractor* (collectively "*Contractor Hazardous Materials*");
- .2 the *Contractor* and its *Subcontractors, Suppliers* and *Sub-Subcontractors* and their respective agents and employees and anyone else for whom the *Contractor, Subcontractor, Supplier* or *Sub-Subcontractor* is at law responsible comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and ordinances relating to *Contractor Hazardous Materials;* and
- .3 there is no *Release* or threatened *Release* of any *Contractor Hazardous Materials* at or from the *Place of the Work* which has or may have an adverse effect upon the environment or human health or safety.
- 9.3.5 If the Contractor
  - .1 encounters Hazardous Materials at the Place of the Work; or
  - .2 has reasonable grounds to believe that Hazardous Materials are present at the Place of the Work,

which were not disclosed by the *Owner* under GC 9.3.2 ("Undisclosed Hazardous Materials"), the *Contractor* shall

- .3 take all reasonable steps, including stopping the *Work*, to ensure that no person suffers injury, sickness or death and that no property is injured or destroyed as a result of exposure to or the presence of the *Hazardous Materials*; and
- .4 immediately report the circumstances to the *Consultant*, the *Lender's Consultant* and the *Owner* in writing.
- 9.3.6 If the *Contractor* is delayed in performing the *Work* or incurs additional costs as a result of taking steps required under GC 9.3.5.3 or (except where a *Release* or threatened *Release* is caused by a default by the *Contractor* in the performance of its obligations under this GC 9.3 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS) GC 9.3.10, the *Consultant* shall issue appropriate instructions for a *Change in the Scope of the Work* as provided in GC 6.2 CHANGE ORDER or GC 6.3 CHANGE DIRECTIVE and the *Contract Time* shall be extended for such reasonable time as the *Consultant* may recommend in consultation with the *Owner* and the *Contractor* and the *Guaranteed Price* shall be adjusted by a reasonable amount for costs incurred by the *Contractor* as a result of the delay and as a result of taking those steps.
- 9.3.7 Notwithstanding GC 2.2.6 and GC 2.2.7 of GC 2.2 ROLE OF THE CONSULTANT or GC 8.1.1 of GC 8.1 AUTHORITY OF THE CONSULTANT, the *Consultant* may select and rely upon the advice of an independent expert in a dispute under GC 9.3.6 and, in that case, the expert shall be deemed to have been jointly retained by the *Owner* and the *Contractor* and shall be jointly paid by them.
- 9.3.8 The Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor, Project Co, the Lender, the Lender's Consultant, the Consultant, the Owner's Project Manager and Infrastructure Ontario, each of their respective directors, officers, consultants, agents and employees and each of their respective successors and assigns as well as her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario, her ministers, agents and employees or any person for whom they are in law responsible (the "Contractor Indemnified Persons") from and against any and all Claims arising out of or resulting from:

- .1 exposure to, or the presence of, Hazardous Materials at the Place of the Work other than Contractor Hazardous Materials;
- .2 the breach of any applicable laws, rules, regulations or ordinances relating to such Hazardous Materials; and
- .3 any Release or threatened Release at or from the Place of the Work of any such Hazardous Materials which have or may have an adverse effect upon the environment or human health or safety;

other than *Contractor Indemnified Claims* as set out in GC 9.3.9 (collectively, the "*Owner Indemnified Claims*"). It is expressly agreed and understood that such indemnification shall apply and extend to *Owner Indemnified Claims* made by federal, provincial or local government entities or agencies. It is further expressly agreed and understood that such indemnification shall apply to all *Owner Indemnified Claims* arising even if such *Owner Indemnified Claims* are not discovered or made until after the performance of the *Work* or after conclusion of the *Contract.* This obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnified *Claim* and the such interview of any *Owner Indemnified Claim* and the *Contractor* may, at its option, require the *Owner* to defend the *Owner Indemnified Claim* at the *Owner's* expense. The *Owner* may at its option elect to defend any *Owner Indemnified Claim* at the *Owner's* expense, and where the *Contractor* defends an *Owner Indemnified Claim* the *Owner* shall have a right to consent, acting reasonably, in respect to any settlement of the *Owner Indemnified Claim.* 

- 9.3.9 The *Contractor* shall indemnify and hold harmless the *Owner Indemnified Persons* from and against any and all *Claims* arising out of or resulting from any matter or circumstance relating to:
  - .1 the *Contractor's* obligations under this GC 9.3 -HAZARDOUS MATERIALS; and
  - .2 *Contractor's Hazardous Materials* except where the *Claim* results from any act or omission of the *Owner* or any other contractor of the *Owner* or any of the *Owner's* own forces in relation to the *Contractor's Hazardous Materials*,

(collectively, the "Contractor Indemnified Claims"), and this indemnity shall be deemed to be included in the terms of the indemnity set out in GC 12.1.1. It is expressly agreed and understood that such indemnification shall apply and extend to Contractor Indemnified Claims made by federal, provincial or local government entities or agencies. It is further expressly agreed and understood that such indemnification shall apply to all Contractor Indemnified Claims arising out of such actual spilling, dumping, release and/or disposal of Hazardous Materials even if such Contractor Indemnified Claims are not discovered or made until after the performance of the Work or after conclusion of the Contractor Indemnified Claim and the Osmer may, at its option, require the Contractor to defend the Contractor Indemnified Claim at the Contractor's expense. The Contractor may at its option elect to defend any Contractor Indemnified Claim at the Contractor's expense, and where the Owner defends a Contractor Indemnified Claim the Contractor shall have a right to consent, acting reasonably, in respect to any settlement of the Contractor Indemnified Claim.

- 9.3.10 In the event of any *Release* or threatened *Release* of any *Hazardous Materials* at or from the *Place of the Work*, the *Contractor* shall immediately upon becoming aware of the same notify the *Consultant* and the *Owner* of such event.
- 9.3.11 This GC 9.3 shall govern over the provisions of GC 1.3.1 of GC 1.3 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES or GC 9.2 DAMAGES AND MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY.

- 85 -

- 9.3.12 If the Contractor causes or permits:
  - .1 any *Contractor Hazardous Materials* to be dealt with by the *Contractor* or any *Subcontractor* or *Supplier* in a manner which does not comply with applicable legal and regulatory requirements or which threatens human health and safety or the environment or causes material damage to the property of the *Owner* or others; or
  - .2 any *Disclosed Hazardous Materials* but which were then harmless or stored, contained or otherwise dealt with in accordance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements, to be dealt with by the *Contractor* or any *Subcontractor* or *Supplier* in a manner which does not comply with applicable legal and regulatory requirements or which threatens human health and safety or the environment or causes material damage to the property of the *Owner* or others,

the Contractor upon becoming aware of the same shall:

- .3 take all reasonable steps, including stopping the *Work*, to ensure that no person suffers injury, sickness or death and that no property is injured or destroyed as a result of exposure to or the presence of the *Hazardous Materials*; and
- .4 immediately upon becoming aware of the same report the circumstances to the *Consultant* and the *Owner* by telephone, confirmed in writing.
- 9.3.13 In the circumstances contemplated in GC 9.3.3, GC 9.3.4, GC 9.3.5 or GC 9.3.12, the *Contractor* shall perform its obligations thereunder, at the *Contractor's* sole cost and expense, except in the circumstances contemplated by GC 9.3.5 which shall be at the *Owner's* sole cost and expense in accordance with the provisions of GC 9.3.6. The *Contractor* shall perform its obligations under GC 9.3.3, GC 9.3.4, GC 9.3.4, GC 9.3.5 and GC 9.3.12, including, as applicable, any clean up, removal, containment, storage or other dealing with the relevant *Hazardous Materials* and any remediation of damage caused thereby, in a manner which the authorities having jurisdiction determine will:
  - .1 meet all applicable legal and regulatory requirements, including the applicable Table of the Soil Groundwater and Sedimentary Standards for use under Part XV.1 of the *Environmental Protection Act* dated March 9, 2004 and ensure compliance with any applicable permits or other authorizations; and
  - .2 rectify all material damage to the property of the *Owner* and others.

#### PART 10 GOVERNING REGULATIONS

#### GC 10.1 TAXES AND DUTIES

- 10.1.1 The *Contractor* shall pay all customs, taxes and duties in effect during the performance of the *Work*. The amount incurred shall be included in the *Cost of the Work*. The *Guaranteed Price* shall include *Provincial Sales Tax* but exclude Value Added Tax. The *Owner* shall be entitled to claim for any exemptions and rebates available under Section 7(1)38 of the *Retail Sales Tax Act* (Ontario) and the *Contractor* shall cooperate with the *Owner* and provide any information and documentation as may be required by the *Owner* to obtain any such exemption and rebate.
- 10.1.2 Any increase or decrease in costs to the *Contractor* due to changes in such included taxes and duties after the time of the *RFP Submission* shall increase or decrease the *Guaranteed Price* accordingly, except for changes announced before the time of the *RFP Submission*, and to take effect at some time thereafter, which shall, except as expressly set forth in GC 10.1.1, be deemed to have been taken into account in the *Guaranteed Price*.

- 10.1.3 The *Contractor* is not entitled to any mark-up for profit, overhead or otherwise, due to an increase in taxes or duties. The *Contractor* shall be entitled to claim for the increase in cost equal to the amount of such included tax and/or duty on the uncompleted cost of the *Work*. The *Owner* will be entitled to withhold payment to the *Contractor* a sum equal to the amount of tax and/or duty reduction on the uncompleted portion of the *Work*.
- 10.1.4 When an exemption or recovery of government sales taxes, duties or excise taxes is applicable to the *Contract*, the *Contractor* shall at the request of the *Owner* assist, join in, or make application for an exemption, recovery or refund of all such taxes and duties and all amounts recovered or exemptions obtained shall be for the sole benefit of the *Owner*. The *Contractor* agrees to endorse over to the *Owner* any cheques received from the federal or provincial governments as may be required to implement the foregoing failing which the *Owner* is hereby authorized to deduct the amount from any *Contract* payment that is then or may thereafter become due to the *Contractor*.
- 10.1.5 The *Contractor* shall maintain and make available to the *Consultant* accurate records, tabulating equipment and component costs showing respective taxes and duties or excise taxes.
- 10.1.6 The *Contractor* is referred to the news release from the Ontario Ministry of Labour dated June 14, 2001 "Government Acts to Level Playing Field for Ontario Contractors". The *Contractor* and all *Subcontractors* will be required to show proof relating to compliance with the Ontario *Provincial Sales Tax* requirements in the form of a statement of compliance of regulations and a valid vendor permit registration number.
- 10.1.7 The *Contractor* hereby represents and warrants to the *Owner* that the *Contractor* is registered under Subdivision d of Division V of Part IX of the *Excise Tax Act* (Canada) and has been assigned GST/HST Number [**REDACTED**].

#### GC 10.2 LAWS, NOTICES, PERMITS AND FEES

- 10.2.1 The laws of the *Place of the Work* shall govern the *Work*.
- 10.2.2 The *Owner* shall obtain and pay for the building permit, temporary and permanent easements, and rights of servitude. The *Contractor* shall be responsible to obtain and pay for all other permits, licenses, or certificates and pay the fees and deposits necessary for the performance of the *Work* which were in force at the date of the *RFP Submission* which costs shall form part of the *Guaranteed Price*.
- 10.2.3 The *Contractor* shall give the required notices and comply without delay with the laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or codes which are or become in force during the performance of the *Work* and which relate to the *Work*, to the preservation of the public health, and to construction safety. Whenever standards of the laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes and orders relating to the *Work* differ, the most stringent standards shall govern.
- 10.2.4 Except as may constitute a *Design Issue* properly characterized as a *Contractor's Design Contingency* matter under GC 4.2.2 and except in respect of those *Contract Documents* which, under the terms of the *Contract*, the *Contractor* is required to prepare or produce, the *Contractor* shall not be responsible for verifying that the *Contract Documents* are in compliance with the applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or codes relating to the *Work*. If the *Contract Documents* are at variance therewith, or if, subsequent to the date of the *RFP Submission*, changes are made to the applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or codes which require modification to the *Contract Documents*, the *Contractor* shall notify the *Consultant* in writing requesting direction immediately upon such variance or change becoming known. The *Consultant* will make the changes required to the *Contract Documents* and GC 6.3 CHANGE DIRECTIVE.

- 10.2.5 If the *Contractor* fails to notify the *Consultant* in writing, fails to obtain direction as required in GC 10.2.4, and performs *Work* knowing it to be contrary to any laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or codes, the *Contractor* shall be responsible for and shall correct the violations thereof and shall bear the costs, expenses and damages attributable to the failure to comply with the provisions of such laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or codes.
- 10.2.6 The *Contractor* shall furnish necessary certificates as evidence that the *Work* installed conforms with laws and regulations of authorities having jurisdiction, including all certificates necessary for the *Consultant* to certify as required to obtain a permit for the *Owner's* occupancy or partial occupancy. These certificates are to be final certificates giving complete clearance of the portions of the *Work* for which they are obtained.

#### GC 10.3 PATENT FEES

- 10.3.1 The *Contractor* shall pay the royalties and patent licence fees required for the performance of the *Contract.* The amount incurred shall be included in the *Guaranteed Price.* The *Contractor* shall indemnify and hold the *Owner Indemnified Persons* harmless from and against *Claims* arising out of the *Contractor's* performance of the *Contract* which are attributable to an infringement or an alleged infringement of a patent of invention by the *Contractor* or anyone for whose acts the *Contractor* may be liable, and this indemnity shall be deemed to be included in the terms of the indemnity set out in GC 12.1.1.
- 10.3.2 The *Owner* shall indemnify and hold the *Contractor* harmless against claims, demands, losses, costs, damages, actions, suits, or proceedings arising out of the *Contractor's* performance of the *Contract* which are attributable to an infringement or an alleged infringement of a patent of invention in executing anything for the purpose of the *Contract*, the model, plan, specification or design of which was supplied to the *Contractor* as part of the *Contract Documents*.

#### GC 10.4 WORKERS' COMPENSATION

- 10.4.1 Prior to commencing the *Work* and prior to receiving payment on *Completion of the Interim Work*, *Substantial Performance of the Work*, completion of the *Contract* and the final certificate for payment, and for each application for payment, the *Contractor* shall provide a clearance certificate, obtained from the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board indicating compliance with workers' compensation legislation at the *Place of the Work*, including payments due thereunder.
- 10.4.2 At any time during the term of the *Contract*, when requested by the *Owner*, the *Contractor* shall provide such evidence of compliance by the *Contractor* and *Subcontractors*.

#### PART 11 INSURANCE — BONDS

#### GC 11.1 INSURANCE

- 11.1.1 The *Contractor*'s Insurance
  - .1 Without restricting the generality of any of the indemnities given pursuant to the *Contract*, the *Contractor* shall provide, maintain and pay for the insurance specified in GC 11.1.1.2. Unless otherwise stipulated (including, without limitation, as provided under GC 11.1.1.2.1), the duration of each insurance policy shall be from the date of commencement of the *Work* until the date of *Substantial Performance of the Work*. Coverage under these policies extends only to the activities of the insureds in relation to the *Project*. Unless otherwise stated, these policies will:
    - .1 be non-contributing and primary;

- .2 in the case of the General Liability insurance set out in GC 11.1.1.2.1, include as additional insureds the City of Toronto, Infrastructure Ontario, Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario, her ministers, agents and employees, the *Lender* and the *Lender's Consultant* and include as first named insured, *Project Co* and the *Contractor*, and as named insureds the *Owner*, the *Owner's Project Manager, Suppliers* who install *Products, Subcontractors, Sub-Subcontractors* and the *Consultant* and such other entities, persons, firms or corporations as the *Owner* may reasonably determine;
- .3 in the case of the property and boiler and machinery insurance set out in GC 11.1.1.2.2, include as named insured the *Contractor*, the *Owner*, the Lender and Project Co and as additional insureds, *Suppliers* who install *Products*, *Subcontractors*, *Sub-Subcontractors*, the *Consultant*, the *Lender's Consultant*, and such other entities, persons, firms or corporations as the *Contractor*, the *Owner* and the *Owner's* insurance consultant may determine; and
- the Contractor shall place, maintain and pay at its sole cost and expense all premiums .4 for the insurance specified in GC 11.1.1.2. All required insurance policies shall be placed and maintained with insurers having an AM Best's Rating of not less than A-IX that are licensed to underwrite insurance in the jurisdiction of the Place of the Work. All policies must act as primary and non-contributory and must be endorsed to provide the Owner and the Lender with not less than sixty (60) days prior written notice of cancellation or adverse material change in coverage. All policies, other than Automobile Liability Insurance and Wrap-up shall include a waiver of subrogation by the insurer against any additional insured thereunder including, without limitation, the Owner, the Lender and any other entity to whom the Owner or the Contractor have agreed to waive rights of subrogation (excluding claims arising out of the professional services provided by the architects and engineers engaged in the *Project*). The policies will take effect prior to the commencement of the Work and shall, unless otherwise stipulated (including, without limitation, GC 11.1.1.2.1), be maintained until the date of Substantial Performance of the Work. The Contractor is responsible for ensuring that all policies provide coverage in a scope and form that is considered normal for the Project.
- .2 The policies to be placed and maintained by the *Contractor* are:
  - .1 General Liability Insurance (Wrap-up Form):

General Liability insurance with limits of not less than **\$[REDACTED]** per occurrence and **\$[REDACTED]** in the aggregate, and with a deductible not exceeding **\$[REDACTED]** and shall include: Products & Completed Operations Aggregate **\$[REDACTED]**; Non-Owned Automobile **\$[REDACTED]**; Tenants Legal Liability **\$[REDACTED]**; Medical Payments (**\$[REDACTED]** per person/**\$[REDACTED]** aggregate); Damage to Existing Structures included; Damage to Hired Automobile **\$[REDACTED]**; Employment Practices Exclusion; Mould Exclusion; Asbestos Exclusion; Data Exclusion; Terrorism Exclusion; coverage will be provided for completed operations for a period of not less than twenty-four (24) months from the *Substantial Performance Date*.

- .2 Property and Boiler and Machinery Insurance (Builder's Risk Form):
  - .1 Builder's risk insurance on an "all risks" form with a deductible not exceeding \$[REDACTED] except in respect to flood, the deductible shall be \$[REDACTED] and in respect to earth movement the deductible shall be a minimum of \$[REDACTED] or [REDACTED] subject to usual exclusions but with coverage to include sewer back-up, earth movement and flood for a direct damage sum insured of not less than the sum of the amount of the

Guaranteed Price and the full value of Work and Products to be provided by the Owner and in any event, in an amount for insured physical loss or damage representing not less than [REDACTED] and [REDACTED] of the Cost of the Work. The builder's risk insurance shall also include extra expense and expediting expense coverage and delay in start-up insurance (including coverage for property while in transit or stored off-site) on a revenue form basis with a twenty four (24) month period of indemnity at the Owner's discretion. Coverage will be at least equal to that afforded under IBC Form 4042 or 4047 (the CCDC Endorsement). The "faulty workmanship material and design" exclusion in the Policy shall be no less than the commonly applied "particular part" definition that clarifies the point at which covered "resultant damages" would apply. This exclusion is commonly referred to by Insurers as London Engineering Group (LEG) 2 or Design Exclusion (DE) 4. If the Contractor proposes to use a broader form that includes "defect rectification costs" commonly known as a LEG 3 or DE 5, the cost difference between this and the more restrictive LEG 2 and DE 4 forms shall be presented to the *Owner* for consideration.

Coverage will include soft costs including but not limited to interest on money borrowed to finance construction or reconstruction; fees and other charges incurred to negotiate construction loans; real estate taxes; architectural, engineering and other professional fees; insurance premiums for builder's risk and General Liability coverage; legal and accounting fees; cost of commissions to renegotiate leases; and cost of permit and licenses.

- .2 Coverage shall include hot testing and commissioning and include boiler and machinery insurance for the boilers, pressure vessels and other insurable objects forming part of the *Work* and shall match to the periods required within the *Construction Schedule*.
- .3 The policies shall allow for partial or total use or occupancy of the *Work*.
- .4 If boiler and machinery insurance is arranged under a separate policy to the builder's risk, the soft costs and delay in start-up coverages are to be extended within the separate Boiler and Machinery policy.
- .5 The proceeds of all insurance described in GC 11.1.1.2.2.1 and in GC 11.1.1.2.2.2 shall be paid to the insurance trustee under the *Insurance Trust Agreement*.
- .3 Automobile Liability Insurance:

Automobile liability insurance in respect of licensed vehicles shall have limits of not less than **\$[REDACTED]** inclusive per occurrence for bodily injury, death, and damage to property, covering all licensed vehicles owned or leased by the *Contractor*. Where the policy has been issued pursuant to a government-operated automobile insurance system, the *Contractor* shall provide the *Owner* with confirmation of automobile insurance coverage for all automobiles registered in the name of the *Contractor*.

.4 Aircraft and Watercraft Liability Insurance:

Aircraft and watercraft liability insurance with respect to owned or non-owned aircraft and watercraft if used directly or indirectly in the performance of the *Work*, including use of additional premises, shall be subject to limits of not less than **\$[REDACTED]** inclusive per occurrence for bodily injury, death, and damage to property including loss or use thereof and limits of not less than **\$[REDACTED]** for aircraft passenger hazard. Such insurance shall be in a form acceptable to the *Owner* and the *Lender*.

.5 *Contractor*'s Equipment Insurance:

All risks contractors' equipment insurance covering construction machinery and equipment used by the *Contractor* for the performance of the *Work*, including equipment breakdown coverage, shall be in a form acceptable to the *Owner* and the *Lender* and shall not allow subrogation claims by the insurer against the *Owner* and the *Lender*.

.6 Liability Insurance

The *Contractor* shall maintain at all times during the *Project* a Commercial General Liability insurance policy for not less than **\$[REDACTED]**. The *Owner*, the *Consultant* and the *Lender* are to be included as additional insured and the policy shall include all standard endorsements required of contractors including but, not limited to: Bodily Injury & Property Damage (policy limit); Personal Injury (policy limit); Non-Owned Automobile (policy limit); Tenant's Legal Liability; Medical Payments (min. **\$[REDACTED]** per person); Contingent Employers Liability; Owners & Contractor's Protective; Broad Form Property Damage; Cross Liability; Blanket Contractual Liability. This liability insurance will address *offsite work related to the Project*.

.7 Marine Cargo Insurance:

Marine Cargo Insurance to cover physical loss or damage to any property or equipment that is being transported by ship including Extra Expense and Expediting Expense and (at the *Owner's* discretion) Delay in start-up insurance (advanced loss of revenue insurance) on a gross profit basis with a twenty four (24) month period of indemnity.

- .8 The *Contractor* shall deliver to the *Owner* after commencement of coverage under policies placed and maintained by the *Contractor*, certified copies of all insurance policies evidencing that the applicable policies are in force.
- .9 The policies described in GC 11.1.1.2 will be placed and maintained with insurers acceptable to the *Owner*, the *Consultant* and the *Lender*, and will contain such terms and conditions as the *Owner* and the Lender may require, acting reasonably. The *Owner* shall place and maintain such other insurance as the *Owner* considers necessary or desirable for its own protection, but in each case at the sole cost of the *Owner* and such insurance shall not be in conflict with any of the insurance described in this GC 11.1.1 as "Contractor's Insurance".
- .10 The *Owner* is not responsible for obtaining or maintaining in force, (i) insurance on equipment machinery or tools, owned by, rented to, or in the care, custody and control of the *Contractor* or its *Subcontractors* or, (ii) any other form of insurance not referred to specifically in GC 11.1.1.2.
- .11 Where the full insurable value of the Work is substantially less than the *Guaranteed Price*, the *Owner* may, in its sole discretion, reduce the amount of insurance required.
- .12 Proof of Insurance
  - .1 The *Contractor* shall seven (7) days prior to the commencement of the *Work*, within three (3) days of any renewal, change or replacement of coverage or at the request of the Owner, from time to time, furnish to the *Owner* two (2)

copies of certificates of insurance (CSIO standard certificate forms) signed by an authorized representative of the insurer, and one (1) copy of certified policies once received from the insurer. The *Contractor* is obliged to confirm that the premium associated with such policies has been paid. Receipt by the *Owner* of the above information shall in no way constitute confirmation by the *Owner* that the insurance complies with the requirement of GC 11.1.1.2. Responsibility for ensuring that the insurance coverages outlined in GC 11.1.1.2 are in place, rests solely with the *Contractor*.

- .2 The *Contractor* shall require where reasonably practical its *Subcontractors*, *Sub-Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* who install *Products* with the exception of the blanket protection given them under builder's risk and Wrap-up Forms to provide to it the same type and form of insurance that is required to be obtained by the *Contractor* pursuant to GC 11.1.1.2, in each case to the extent determined by the *Owner*'s insurance consultant as being applicable to that portion of the *Work* being undertaken by such *Subcontractors*, *Sub-Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* who install *Products* and the *Contractor* is responsible for obtaining and forwarding to the *Owner* the appropriate signed certificates or other proof of insurance in accordance with and subject to the requirements of this General Condition.
- .13 Commencement of the *Work*

Neither the *Contractor* nor any of its *Subcontractors*, *Sub-Subcontractors* or *Suppliers* who install *Products* shall begin the *Work* at the *Place of the Work* until necessary proofs of insurance have been furnished and approved by the *Owner* and the *Owner's* insurance consultant.

.14 Policy Requirements

All insurance shall include the *Owner*, the *Hospital*, the *Lender*, the *Consultant*, the *Lender's Consultant*, the *Owner's Project Manager* and the *Owner's* and *Hospital's* directors, officers, employees and agents, as directed by the *Owner* and any other consultant, other contractor or subcontractor engaged in or in relation to the *Work* or such other entities, persons, firms or corporations as the *Owner* and the *Owner's* insurance consultant may determine as insured, named insured, or additional insured; both with respect to the *Contractor's* insurance as well as the *Subcontractor's*, *Sub-Subcontractor's* and *Supplier's* insurance. All insurance shall provide for cross-liability so that each insured. This named insured or additional insured requirement does not apply to automobile insurance.

.15 Maintaining Insurance

If the *Contractor* or its *Subcontractors*, *Sub-Subcontractors* or *Suppliers* who install *Products* fail to place or maintain insurance as required under GC 11.1.1.2, the *Owner* shall have the right, but is not obligated, to place and maintain insurance as required. All premiums and other costs incurred by the *Owner* will be paid by the *Contractor* to the *Owner* on demand, or failing payment may be deducted by the *Owner* from any amount then or thereafter due to the *Contractor*.

.16 Additional Insurance

From time to time the *Owner* at its discretion, by written notice to the *Contractor*, may require the *Contractor* to, or cause a *Subcontractor*, a *Sub-Subcontractor* or a *Supplier* who install *Products* to, procure or maintain additional insurance if required. If such insurance is requested the *Owner* shall reimburse the applicable party.

.17 *Contractor* Liability Preserved

The provisions of GC 11.1.1.2 do not diminish, limit or otherwise affect the liability of the *Contractor* to the *Owner* under or in relation to any other provisions of the *Contract*.

11.1.2 Priority of *Owner*'s Claims

The principal purpose of the stipulations for insurance in GC 11.1.1 is the protection of the interest of the *Owner* and the *Lender*. GC 11.1.1 stipulates that the *Contractor*, rather than the *Owner*, shall provide and maintain insurance as set out therein.

- 11.1.3 The *Owner*'s existing property insurance is described in GC 13.7 OWNER'S PROPERTY INSURANCE and the *Owner* agrees to maintain such property insurance or substantially similar property insurance during the performance of the *Work*
- 11.1.4 The *Contractor* and/or appropriate *Subcontractors*, *Sub-Subcontractors* and *Suppliers* who install *Products* shall be responsible for deductible amounts under the policies except where such amounts may be excluded from the *Contractor*'s responsibility by terms of GC 9.1 PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY and GC 9.2 DAMAGES AND MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY.
- 11.1.5 Any variation in the insurances required as approved by the *Owner* and the *Owner*'s insurance consultant will be valued and processed as a *Change Order* in accordance with the *Change Order* procedure pursuant to GC 6.2 CHANGE ORDER.

#### GC 11.2 BONDS

- 11.2.1 The *Contractor* shall, prior to commencement of the *Work*, provide to the *Owner* both a performance bond and a labour and material payment bond, each in the amount of **[REDACTED]** of the *Guaranteed Price* required pursuant to the terms of the *Contract Documents*. *Project Co.*, the *Lender*, and *Hospital* shall be Obligees under the bonds.
- 11.2.2 Such bonds shall be issued by a duly licensed surety company authorized to transact a business of suretyship in the Province of Ontario and shall be maintained in good standing.
- 11.2.3 For greater certainty the obligations of the surety under such bonds shall not extend to or include any obligations relating to the *Financing* or *Cost of the Financing*.

#### PART 12 INDEMNIFICATION — WAIVER — WARRANTY

#### GC 12.1 INDEMNIFICATION

- 12.1.1 In addition to any other indemnification provided in the *Contract*, or in law or in equity, the *Contractor* shall indemnify and save and hold harmless the *Owner*, the *Consultant*, the *Owner's Project Manager* and *Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation* and each of their respective directors, officers, consultants, agents and employees and each of their respective successors and assigns as well as her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario, her ministers, agents and employees or any person for whom they are in law responsible (the "Owner Indemnified Persons"), from and against any and all claims, demands, losses, costs, expenses, fees (including legal fees on a full indemnity basis), damages, actions, fines, penalties, suits, proceedings, obligations or liabilities (hereinafter called "*Claims*"), which may be brought against or suffered by any of the *Owner Indemnified Persons*, provided the *Claims* are:
  - .1 attributable (i) to the death, sickness, disease or personal or bodily injury of any person, or (ii) to any or all loss, damage or destruction of tangible or intangible property or (iii) to any other loss r damage to any third party; and
  - .2 arising, directly or indirectly, out of, or in consequence of, (i) any act or omission of the *Contractor* or *Subcontractors* or any of each of their respective agents, employees, officers or directors, or anyone for whom the *Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors* or *Suppliers* may be responsible in law or (ii) a breach of the *Contract* by the *Contractor*.
- 12.1.2 The Owner retains for its own benefit and hereby holds in trust for and on behalf of any Owner Indemnified Person, other than the Owner, having the benefit of an indemnity from the Contractor under the Contract, the benefit of such indemnification of the Contractor. The Contractor retains for its own benefit and hereby holds in trust for and on behalf of Project Co, the Lender and the Lender's Consultant, having the benefit of an indemnity from the Owner under the Contract the benefit of such indemnification of the Owner.
- 12.1.3 In addition to any other indemnification provided in the *Contract*, or in law or in equity, the *Contractor* shall indemnify and save and hold harmless the *Owner Indemnified Persons* from and against any and all *Claims* which may be brought against or suffered by any of the *Owner Indemnified Persons* that are attributable to a breach of the *Contract* by the *Contractor*.
- 12.1.4 For greater certainty the liability of the *Contractor* under GC 12.1.1 shall not be greater than the total cumulative liability of the Contractor under GC 12.2.3.
- 12.1.5 This GC 12.1 shall govern over the provisions of GC 1.3.1 of GC 1.3 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES or GC 9.2 DAMAGES AND MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY.

#### GC 12.2 WAIVER OF CLAIMS

12.2.1 Waiver of Claims by the *Owner* 

As of the date of the final certificate for payment, the *Owner* expressly waives and releases the *Contractor* from all claims against the *Contractor* including without limitation, those that might arise from the wilful misconduct, negligence or breach of contract by the *Contractor* except one or more of the following:

- .1 those made in writing prior to the date of the final certificate for payment and still unsettled;
- .2 those arising from the provisions of any indemnity given by the *Contractor* under the *Contract* or arising under GC 12.3 WARRANTY;

- those arising from the Contractor's obligations and indemnity under GC 9.3 -
- .4 those made in writing within a period of six (6) years from the *Substantial Performance Date* or within such shorter period as may be prescribed by any limitation statute of the province or territory of the *Place of the Work* arising from any liability of the *Contractor* for damages resulting from substantial defects or deficiencies in or from the *Contractor's* performance of the *Contract*. As used herein "substantial defects or deficiencies" means those defects or deficiencies in the *Work* which affect the *Work* to such an extent or in such a manner that a significant part or the whole of the *Work* is unfit for the purpose intended by the *Contract Documents*.

#### 12.2.2 Waiver of Claims by the *Contractor*

.3

As of the date of the final certificate for payment, the *Contractor* expressly waives and releases the *Owner* from all *Claims* against the *Owner* including without limitation those that might arise from the wilful misconduct, negligence or breach of contract by the *Owner* except:

- .1 those made in writing prior to the *Contractor's* application for final payment and still unsettled;
- .2 those arising from the provisions of any indemnity given by the *Owner* under the *Contract*; and
- .3 those arising from the *Owner's* obligations and indemnity under GC 9.3 –HAZARDOUS MATERIALS or GC 10.3 PATENT FEES.
- 12.2.3 Subject to and save and except in respect to any claims of the *Owner* (i) for the cost to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents; (ii) for the costs that may arise in the circumstances of GC 7.1.1 or to rectify the breach of covenant of the Contractor under GC 12.3.2 or GC 12.3.3 to correct defects, deficiencies or non-compliant items in the Work; (iii) those arising from the Contractor's obligations and indemnity under GC 9.3 – HAZARDOUS MATERIALS; (iv) to recover from the Contractor damages for fraud, material misrepresentation, wilful misconduct or deliberate acts of wrong doing, or the recovery of any insurance proceeds where such funds have been misapplied by the *Contractor* or which, under the terms of this *Contract* should have been paid to the Owner; and (v) to recover from the Contractor payment of any amount that would have been payable to the Owner under policies of insurance under GC 11.1 - INSURANCE but for the breach of the *Contractor* under any such policies which breach relieved the insurer of its obligation to pay the Owner under such policies, but notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract, the total cumulative liability of the Contractor to the Owner for all costs, damages or losses of any kind, in law or in equity, whether based on tort, negligence, contract, warranty, strict liability or otherwise arising from or relating to the Contract (including, for clarity, in respect to a Contractor Delay or under any indemnity provided by the *Contractor* under the *Contract*) shall not be greater than **[REDACTED]**; provided that the *Contractor* shall have no liability to the *Owner* arising from or relating to the Contract for (i) punitive, exemplary or aggravated damages, or (ii) consequential loss or indirect loss of any nature but excluding any loss of income to and loss of use. The limitation of liability provided for in this GC 12.2.3 shall not limit amounts otherwise recoverable by the Owner under policies of insurance under GC 11.1 – INSURANCE or under the performance bond and labour and material payment bond.
- 12.2.4 Subject to and save and except in respect to any claims of the *Contractor* (i) for the payment of the *Guaranteed Price*; (ii) for the costs that may arise in the circumstances of GC 7.2.1; (iii) under GC 9.3.8 under which the *Owner* agrees to indemnify the *Contractor* in respect of toxic or hazardous substances at the *Place of the Work*; (iv) to recover from the *Owner* damages for fraud, material misrepresentation, wilful misconduct or deliberate acts of wrong doing, but notwithstanding any other provision of the *Contracto*, the total cumulative liability of the *Owner* to the *Contractor* for all costs,

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS; and

damages or losses of any kind, in law or in equity, whether based on tort, negligence, contract, warranty, strict liability or otherwise arising from or relating to the *Contract* shall not be greater than the amounts payable to the *Contractor* under policies of insurance under GC 11.1 INSURANCE plus **[REDACTED]**.

- 12.2.5 This GC 12.2 shall govern over the provisions of GC 1.3.1 of GC 1.3 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES or GC 9.2 DAMAGES AND MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY.
- 12.2.6 The *Contractor* acknowledges that the aggregate liability of the *Consultant* in all claims arising under or in respect of this *Contract* shall be limited to the amount of the errors and omissions insurance coverage available to the *Consultant*. The *Owner* covenants with the *Contractor* to cause insurance to be in place covering *Consultant* errors and omissions with indemnity limits of not less than **\$[REDACTED]** available to respond to such claims. The *Contractor* shall not seek to recover from the *Consultant* or from any other person that might seek indemnity or contribution from the *Consultant* any amount in excess of the amount of the available indemnity under any errors and omissions insurance coverage available to the *Consultant* and responsive to such claim. The *Contractor* acknowledges that the *Consultant* is a third party beneficiary under this GC 12.2.6 and that *Consultant* shall be entitled to plead this GC 12.2.6 in its defence to any action brought by the *Contractor* and the *Contractor* waives any defence to such pleading by the *Consultant*. The *Contractor* further acknowledges that the *Owner* is contracting in this respect as agent for the *Consultant*.

#### GC 12.3 WARRANTY

- 12.3.1 The *Contractor* warrants that the *Work*, including all *Products*, and additionally all parts and workmanship replaced during the initial warranty period shall conform to the specifications set out in the *Contract Documents* in all respects and shall be new, of good quality material, of merchantable quality and fit for their intended purpose, as described in the *Contract Documents*, and free of defects in materials, equipment and workmanship for a period of one (1) year from, as the case may be, (i) the *Interim Completion Date* in respect to the *Interim Work* and (ii) in respect to the balance of the *Work* from the *Substantial Performance Date*. This warranty shall cover labour and material, including, without limitation, the costs of removal and replacement of covering materials. This warranty shall not limit extended warranties on any items of equipment or material called for elsewhere in the specifications or otherwise provided by any manufacturer of such equipment or material which extended warranties shall commence Date in respect to the balance of the *Work* and upon the *Substantial Performance Date* in respect to the balance of the *Work*. The *Contractor* shall ensure that all extended warranties specified in the *Contract Documents* are provided and shall assign to the *Owner* all such extended warranties in accordance with the provisions of GC 5.5.9.
- 12.3.2 The *Contractor* agrees to correct promptly, at its own expense, in a manner approved by the *Owner*, defects, deficiencies or non-compliant items in the *Work* which appear prior to and during the warranty periods set out in GC 12.3.1. The *Contractor* acknowledges that the timely performance of warranty work is critical to the ability of the *Owner* to maintain effective hospital operations. The *Contractor* shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to respond to the requirement of the *Owner* to correct defective, deficient or non-compliant items in the *Work* within the time periods required by the *Owner* which, for example, in relation to critical clinical areas can require immediate correction (e.g isolation room air handling or a roof leak which makes a clinical care area unavailable). The *Contractor* further acknowledges that if the *Owner* is unable to contact the *Contractor* and/or obtain the corrective work within such time period required by the *Owner* that the *Owner's* own forces may take such emergency steps as are reasonable and appropriate to correct such defects, deficiencies or non-compliant items in the *Contractor* sown forces such emergency steps taken by the *Owner's* own forces shall not invalidate any warranties in respect to such portion of the *Work* effected by such corrective actions of the *Owner's* own forces.
- 12.3.3 Subject to GC 12.3.2 the *Contractor* shall promptly, and in any event not more than thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice thereof from the *Consultant* or the *Owner*, *Make Good* any defects,

deficiencies or non-compliant items in the Work which may develop within periods for which said materials, equipment, *Products* and workmanship are warranted, and also *Make Good* any damage to other *Work* caused by the repairing of such defects, deficiencies or non-compliant items. All of such *Work* shall be at the *Contractor's* expense. None of such *Work* shall be the basis of a claim for additional compensation or damages. The above-noted time period of thirty (30) days shall be subject to the following:

- .1 If the corrective *Work* cannot be completed in the thirty (30) days specified, the *Contractor* shall be in compliance if the *Contractor*:
  - .1 commences and is diligently proceeding with the correction of the *Work* within the specified time,
  - .2 provides the *Owner* with a schedule acceptable to the *Owner* for such correction, and
  - .3 corrects the *Work* in accordance with such schedule.
- .2 If the *Contractor* fails to correct the *Work* in the time specified or subsequently agreed upon, without prejudice to any other right or remedy the *Owner* may have, the *Owner* may correct such *Work* and deduct the cost and expense thereof from any holdback amount held by the *Owner* or from any payment then or thereafter due the *Contractor* provided the *Consultant* has certified such cost to the *Owner*.
- 12.3.4 The performance of replacement work and *Making Good* of defects, deficiencies or non-compliant items for which the *Contractor* is responsible, shall be commenced and completed as expeditiously as possible, and shall be executed at times convenient to the *Owner* and this may require work outside normal working hours at the Contractor's expense. Any extraordinary measures required to complete the *Work*, as directed by the *Owner* to accommodate the operation of the Hospital or other aspects of the Project as constructed shall be at the *Contractor's* expense.
- 12.3.5 The *Contractor* shall, at any time or times prior to the expiry of said warranty period and when required to do so by the *Owner*, make such openings, tests, inspections, excavations, examinations, or other investigations in, through, of or in the vicinity of the *Work* as directed and shall, if required, *Make Good* again, to the satisfaction of the *Owner*, any openings, excavations or disturbances of any property, real or personal, resulting therefrom. If any defect, deficiency or non-compliant item for which the *Contractor* is responsible is found in the *Work* by such investigations, the cost of such investigations and such *Making Good* shall be borne by the *Contractor*; but if no such imperfect *Work* is found by such investigations, the said cost shall be borne by the *Owner*.
- 12.3.6 The foregoing express warranties shall not, subject to the waiver by the *Owner* set out in GC 12.2.1, deprive the *Owner* of any action, right or remedy otherwise available to the *Owner* at law or in equity for breach of any of the provisions of the *Contract Documents* by the *Contractor*, and the periods referred to in this GC 12.3 WARRANTY shall not, subject to the waiver by the *Owner* set out in GC 12.2.1, be construed as a limitation on the time in which the *Owner* may pursue such other action, right or remedy.
- 12.3.7 For the purposes of this GC 12.3, completion for a milestone other than completion of the *Interim Work* or *Substantial Performance of the Work* is signified by occupation by the *Owner* of the relevant space as more particularly described in the specifications set out in the *Contract Documents*.
- 12.3.8 Subject to GC 3.2.6, neither the performance of work by the *Owner's* own forces or the work of the *Owner's* other contractors shall, except in respect to any damage caused by the *Owner's* own forces or the *Owner's* other contractors, limit the availability or terms of any warranty.

#### PART 13 OTHER PROVISIONS

#### GC 13.1 KEY PERSONNEL

- 13.1.1 The *Contractor* and its *Subcontractors* shall commit as many people and man-hours to the *Work* as are needed, from time to time, to meet its obligations under the *Contract* including the supervisors, project manager and other field management personnel identified in the *Contract Documents* (the "*Key Personnel*").
- 13.1.2 The *Contractor* acknowledges that the *Owner*, in awarding the *Contract*, has relied on the *Contractor's* representations that the *Key Personnel* identified in the *Contractor's* response to the *Request for Proposal* will be available to perform their part of the *Work* throughout the duration of the *Contract* as provided for in GC 3.7.1. *Key Personnel* will be dedicated to the *Project* on a full-time basis unless noted otherwise. The *Contractor* agrees not to undertake other contracts or projects which could adversely affect or be in conflict with its performance of the *Contract*.
- 13.1.3 The *Contractor* represents that the following persons are the *Key Personnel*:

Name	Position
[REDACTED]	[REDACTED]

13.1.4 The *Contractor* shall not replace any of the *Key Personnel* identified in the *Contract Documents* without the prior written approval of the *Owner*. If any of the *Key Personnel* become unavailable to perform services in connection with the *Contract* due to revisions to the *Construction Schedule* or ill health or death or discharge by the *Contractor*, then the *Contractor* shall promptly designate a replacement(s) who shall be subject to the *Owner's* written approval. The *Owner* shall be entitled to complete information on any such replacement of the *Key Personnel*, including a current resume. Further, the *Owner* shall have the right, acting reasonably, to require the *Contractor* to replace any of the *Key Personnel*.

#### GC 13.2 COMMISSIONING

- 13.2.1 The Contractor acknowledges that Commissioning of the Work as required under the Contract Documents is an integral and important part of the Work and undertakes to provide the Owner with any assistance deemed necessary by the Owner, the Consultant and the Commissioning Agent, if any is appointed by the Owner, in respect of the Commissioning for the Project including ensuring that the Subcontractors provide whatever assistance the Owner, the Consultant and the Commissioning Agent may reasonably require. The Contractor shall be responsible for including in the Construction Schedule the schedule for all Commissioning as it relates to the Interim Completion Date and the Substantial Performance Date. A portion of the Commissioning may, as set out in the specifications in the Contract Documents, be completed prior to the Completion of the Interim Work or prior to the Substantial Performance of the Work and completion of Commissioning shall be required prior to Total Completion except to the extent expressly provided in the Contract Documents to occur following Total Completion.
- 13.2.2 The *Owner*, the *Consultant* and the *Commissioning Agent* will attend in accordance with the schedule for *Commissioning* set out in the *Construction Schedule* for performance tests and demonstrations

carried out by the *Contractor*, the *Subcontractors*, the *Suppliers*, manufacturers, and other agents in accordance with the *Contract Documents* and as is mutually satisfactory to both parties.

13.2.3 The *Contractor* and the *Subcontractors* will submit copies of all as-built records, manufacturer's written performance equipment data and specification sheets and shop drawings to the *Owner* and the *Consultant* and as the *Owner* and the *Consultant* may reasonably request, and cooperate, and make reasonable efforts to ensure systems designated for Commissioning are complete and pre-tested as fully operational prior to scheduling tests and demonstrations with the *Owner*, the *Consultant* and the *Commissioning Agent*.

#### GC 13.3 SITE BACKGROUND REPORTS

- 13.3.1 The *Contractor* acknowledges it has been provided the following *Site Background Reports* and has reviewed and is familiar with the *Site Background Reports*:
  - .1 Site Specific Risk Assessment Report to the Ministry of Environment dated December 5, 2002 and prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;
  - .2 Response to the Ministry of Environment Review dated October 6, 2003 and prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;
  - .3 Response to the Final Ministry of Environment Review dated May 18, 2004 and prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;
  - .4 Letter from the Ministry of Environment, Environmental Assessment and Approvals Branch dated April 13, 2006;
  - .5 Letter from the Ministry of Environment dated March 17, 2005;
  - .6 Order of George Rocoski, the Director of Ministry of the Environment dated March 10, 2005;
  - .7 Certificate registered by the Ministry of the Environment as Instrument No. CA807344 on March 16, 2005 (Letter from Miller Thomson LLP dated March 17, 2005);
  - .8 Letter from the Ministry of Environment dated March 4, 2005;
  - .9 Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, 637 & 639 Runnymede Road & 40 Fisken Avenue, Toronto, Ontario dated December 1, 1999 prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;
  - .10 Indoor/Outdoor Air Quality Analysis, Runnymede Chronic Care Hospital, 274 St. John's Road, Toronto, Ontario dated April 17, 2000 prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;
  - .11 Record of Site Condition Transition Notice #3085 625 Runnymede Road (formerly 274 St. John's Road), 637-639 Runnymede Road and 40 Fisken Avenue Toronto, ON dated April 10, 2006 and prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;
  - .12 Asbestos Survey Update Existing Runnymede Healthcare Centre and Construction Office 625 Runnymede Road and 40 Fisken Avenue Toronto, Ontario dated September 26, 2006 and prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;
  - .13 Additional Analysis of Drywall Joint Compound Asbestos Survey Update 40 Fisken Avenue Toronto, Ontario dated October 27, 2006 and prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;
  - .14 Retaining Wall Foundations dated January 12, 2005 prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;

- 99 -

.18 Designated Substance & Hazardous Material Survey dated August 16, 2004 prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;

Earthworks Phase dated March 21, 2007 prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;

Geotechnical Comments dated October 15, 2002 prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;

Soil and Groundwater Management Plan Update Earthworks Phase / Dust Control Plan

Geotechnical Investigation dated May 4, 1994 prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;

- .19 Health and Safety Plan Earthworks Phase dated March 21, 2007 prepared by Shaheen & Peaker Limited;
- .20 Tree Preservation / Protection / Planting Agreement prepared by the City of Toronto;
- .21 Tree Protection Barrier Agreement (Appendix A & B) prepared by City of Toronto;

#### GC 13.4 ASSIGNABLE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT

13.4.1 The following is a form of the *Assignable Subcontract Agreement* referred to in GC 3.8.4:

ASSIGNABLE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made as of the  $\bullet$  day of  $\bullet$ , 200 $\bullet$ , between

•

(hereinafter called "Contractor")

OF THE FIRST PART,

- and -

(hereinafter called the "Subcontractor")

.15

.16

.17

OF THE SECOND PART,

- and -

•

(hereinafter called the "Owner")

OF THE THIRD PART.

WHEREAS pursuant to a construction contract dated as of the  $\bullet$  day of  $\bullet$ , 200 $\bullet$  between the *Contractor* and the *Owner* (together with all amendments thereof which may hereafter be made in accordance with the terms thereof, the "Construction Contract"), the *Contractor* has agreed to construct the Project as defined in the Construction Contract;

AND WHEREAS the *Contractor* and the Subcontractor entered into a subcontract dated the _____day of ______, 200• (such subcontract together with all amendments thereof which may hereafter be made in accordance with the terms thereof, the "Subcontract");

AND WHEREAS under the Construction Contract, the *Contractor* has agreed that the *Owner* may, at its option (exercisable by notice as hereinafter described) cause the *Contractor* to assign to the *Owner* or others as hereinafter identified, all right, title and interest of the *Contractor* in and to the Subcontract (the "Assignment");

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the covenants herein contained, and the sum of \$2.00, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by each of the parties, the parties agree as follows:

- 1. Unless and until notification is given to the Subcontractor in accordance with any of the notices referred to in 2(d), (e), or (f) below, the *Contractor* shall be entitled to enforce all of the benefits and powers under the Subcontract and to deal with, and be obligated to, the Subcontractor in respect of the Subcontract and matters arising therefrom in the same manner and to the same extent as if the *Contractor* had not agreed in the Construction Contract to the Assignment.
- 2. The Subcontractor hereby:
  - (a) acknowledges and consents to any Assignment that may occur pursuant to this Agreement and confirms that any such Assignment that may occur pursuant to this Agreement is permitted pursuant to the provisions of the Subcontract;
  - (b) agrees to give the *Owner* prompt written notice of any default by the *Contractor* under the Subcontract, provided, however, in the event that the *Owner* exercises the option in accordance with this Agreement and effects the Assignment within five (5) *Working Days* of receipt by the *Owner* of the notice, the Subcontractor shall not be entitled to exercise any right to terminate the Subcontract that the Subcontractor may have under the Subcontract arising from or in relation to any event taking place prior to such Assignment;
  - (c) agrees that, immediately upon receipt of written notice (the "Assignment Notice") from the *Owner* that the Subcontract is being assigned to the *Owner*, the *Lender*, the *Hospital*, the *Lender's* or the *Hospital's* nominee (in any event, such party identified in such written notice being the "Assignee") the Assignee shall have all of the right, title, benefit and interest of *Contractor* pursuant to the Subcontract, without the Subcontractor's consent and without the payment of any penalty or other amount, and the Subcontractor shall deal with the Assignee as if it had been originally named in place of *Contractor* in the Subcontract;
  - (d) agrees that the Assignee may, at any time after the giving of the Assignment Notice in subsection 2(c) above, give written notice (the "Successive Assignment Notice") to the Subcontractor of a further assignment of the Subcontract to a new general contractor of the Project (the "GC Assignee"), and that immediately upon receipt of the Successive Assignment Notice, the GC Assignee shall have all of the right, title, benefit and interest of the *Contractor* pursuant to the Subcontract without the Subcontractor's consent and without the payment of any penalty or other amount and the Subcontractor shall deal with the GC Assignee as if it had been originally named in place of the *Contractor* in the Subcontract; and
  - (e) agrees that, notwithstanding subsections 2(c) and 2(d) herein contained, the *Owner* may give written notice (the "Direct Assignment Notice") to the Subcontractor of the assignment of the Subcontract directly to the GC Assignee, and that immediately upon receipt of the Direct Assignment Notice, the GC Assignee shall have all of the right, title, benefit and interest of the *Contractor* pursuant to the Subcontract without the Subcontractor's consent and without the payment of any penalty or other amount and the Subcontractor shall deal with the GC Assignee as if it had been originally named in place of the *Contractor* in the Subcontract.
- 3. Nothing herein contained shall render the *Owner*, the Hospital, or a lender or lenders to the *Owner* liable to any person for the fulfilment or non-fulfilment of the obligations, covenants and agreements, including, but not limited to the payment of any money thereunder or in respect thereto, of *Contractor* under the Subcontract, unless and until the *Owner* has given the Assignment Notice to the Subcontractor, the giving of which

Assignment Notice the Subcontractor acknowledges is in the sole and unfettered discretion of the Owner, provided however, the Assignee shall only be liable for the obligations, covenants and agreements of Contractor under the Subcontract arising from and after the date of Assignment, and provided that from and after the date of the Successive Assignment Notice to the Subcontractor, the Assignee shall have no liability whatsoever to the Subcontractor for any default or for any damages arising in respect of a matter or matters occurring under such Subcontract from and after that date, and that in any event if the Owner gives the Direct Assignment Notice, the Owner, the Hospital or a lender or lenders to the Owner shall have no liability whatsoever to the Subcontractor for any default or for any damages arising in respect to a matter or matters occurring under the Subcontract at any time.

- 4. The Subcontractor acknowledges and agrees that all of the right, title and interest of the *Contractor* in the Subcontract and all of the benefits and privileges of the Owner pursuant to the Assignment and this Agreement have been, or may be, without the consent of the Subcontractor or the payment of any penalty or other amount, assigned by the *Owner* to the Lender as security for obligations of the *Owner* to the Lender and that the Lender may, upon written notification being given to the Subcontractor by the Lender that the Lender is entitled to do so, exercise all of such rights of the Owner and the Contractor to the same extent as if the Lender had been a party to this Agreement in the place and stead of the Owner.
- 5. The Subcontractor further acknowledges and agrees that all of the right, title and interest of the Contractor in the Subcontract and all of the benefits and privileges of the *Owner* pursuant to the Assignment and this Agreement have been, or may be, without the consent of the Subcontractor or the payment of any penalty or other amount, assigned by the Owner, subject to the prior security interest of the Lender, to the Hospital and that the Hospital may, upon written notification being given to the Subcontractor by the Hospital that the Hospital is entitled, as between itself and the Lender, to do so, exercise all of such rights of the Owner and the Contractor to the same extent as if the Hospital had been a party to this Agreement in the place and stead of the Lender.
- 6. Any notice, request or demand required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be served personally, sent by prepaid registered mail or by confirmed facsimile transmission addressed as follows:

(a)	in the case of <i>C</i> [●]	Contractor:
	Attention:	[•]

Facsimile No. (b) in the case of the Owner:

[•]

Attention: [•] Facsimile No.

[•]

with a copy to:

Infrastructure Ontario [•]

Attention:	[•]
Facsimile No.	[•]

(c) in the case of *Lender*: **[BANK]** 

, Ontario

Attention: [•] Facsimile No. [•]

(d) in the case of the Subcontractor:

Attention:[•]Facsimile No[•]

Any party may from time to time change its address and recipient for service by notice to the other party or parties given in the manner aforesaid.

Notices which are served in the manner aforesaid shall be deemed sufficiently served for all purposes of this Agreement, in the case of those personally served or transmitted by facsimile transmission, on the date of such service or transmission, provided same is a Business Day (as hereinafter defined), and if not on the next following Business Day, and in the case of those given by registered mail, on five (5) Business Days following the mailing thereof. Provided that in the event normal mail service is interrupted by strikes, slow-down or other cause, then the party sending the notice shall utilise any similar service which has not been so interrupted in order to ensure the prompt receipt of the notice, request or demand by the other party or parties, and for the purpose of this Section such service shall be deemed to be personal service or facsimile transmission. Business Day shall mean a day which is not: (i) a Saturday or Sunday, or (ii) a day observed as a holiday under the laws of the Province of Ontario.

- 7. This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.
- 8. This Agreement shall be conclusively deemed to be a contract made under and shall for all purposes be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable therein.
- 9. The Subcontractor shall from time to time and at all times hereafter, upon the reasonable written request of the *Owner* so to do, make, do, execute and deliver or cause to be made, done, executed and delivered all such further acts, deeds, assurances and things as may be desirable in the opinion of the *Owner*, acting reasonably, for more effectually implementing and carrying out the true intent and meaning of this Agreement.
- 10. This Agreement may be executed by the parties in counterparts and may be executed and delivered by facsimile and all such counterparts and facsimiles shall together constitute one and the same agreement.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF** the parties have executed this Agreement by affixing their corporate seals under the hands of their proper signing officers duly authorized in that behalf.

# [CONTRACTOR]

By: Name: c/s Title:

# [SUBCONTRACTOR]

c/s

By:

Name: Title:

[•]

By:

Name: c/s Title:

# GC 13.5 RISK ASSESSMENT GUIDELINES

13.5.1 The following chart illustrates the expected treatment of a number of possible changes in the *Work*:

RISK ASSESSMENT GUIDELINE:	A = Contractor's Design Contingency (CDC) B = Unforeseen (Owner's cost) C = Scope Change (Owner's cost) D = Core design functionality (Owner's cost)			
	Α	В	С	D
At SPD level, add five (5) fire dampers. Fire rated partition shown on drawings.	$\checkmark$			
2 hour fire separation required for stairwell. One wall does not show proper Fire Resistance Rating (rated door, hardware, fire damper also required).	$\checkmark$			
Add starter for fan located on roof.	$\checkmark$			
Cost for preparation of interference drawings.				
Structural design insufficient to accommodate loading requirements of the specified equipment in penthouse.				
Provide seven (7) lab sinks complete with taps, wastes				

RISK ASSESSMENT GUIDELINE:	A = Contractor's Design Contingency (CDC) B = Unforeseen (Owner's cost) C = Scope Change (Owner's cost) D = Core design functionality (Owner's cost)			
	А	В	С	D
and fittings.				
Furred out space in existing construction not sufficient for ducts shown, existing conditions did not conform to the Consultant's assumptions.		√		
Final equipment selection requires modifications to services/space outside the tolerances specified.			V	
Reinforcing to install wall mounted equipment not shown, but is required by manufacturer.	V			
Replace 20' of underground broken drainage pipe.		√		
As per industry standards, maintain or reroute existing services running through existing spaces.	V			
Testing and removal of abandoned fire alarm system in existing facility, not identified or readily inferable on the documents.		V		
Existing duct riser is removed and resulting opening needs to be firestopped.	V			
Existing duct to remain in existing building, firestopping around floor opening to be upgraded to meet code requirements.		V		
Upgrade fire separation of existing stairwell: building inspector rules that existing conditions do not meet code with extensive renovations proposed.		V		
Emergency voice communications speakers volume meets specification, but not sufficient when tested by building inspector. Relocation or additional speakers required.		V		
Sprinkler layout does not comply with code requirements. (note: Subcontractor provides sprinkler layout).	V			
Re: exit requirements, Building inspector rules that travel distance is exceeded (different method of measuring) Additional measures to be implemented.		V		
Building inspector and Fire Marshall have different interpretations of whether standpipe enclosure to be		√		

RISK ASSESSMENT GUIDELINE:	A = Contractor's Design Contingency (CDC) B = Unforeseen (Owner's cost) C = Scope Change (Owner's cost) D = Core design functionality (Owner's cost)			
	А	В	С	D
fire rated. Additional cost incurred.				
Bulkhead impedes visibility of exit sign. Modifications to exit sign placement required.	V			
Headroom does not meet Ontario Building Code or design requirements due to lack of design coordination and Subcontractor coordination.	V			
Headroom does not meet Ontario Building Code or design requirements due to initial design fundamentally unable to meet headroom requirements.				V
Barrier free washrooms do not achieve turning radius due to contractor-initiated change to toilet size.	V			
Barrier free washrooms do not achieve turning radius due to design/construction coordination issues.	V			
Barrier free washrooms do not achieve turning radius due to initial design fundamentally unable to provide required turning radius.				V
*Compliance with CSA Z32-04 electrical receptacles in patient care areas not achieved because regular receptacles specified.				V
*Testing for compliance with CSA Z32-04 electrical receptacles in patient care areas not achieved because they are not properly grounded.	V			
Providing additional electrical connections (not on the drawings) to supply fans (on the drawings) required additional capacity in the electrical panel.	V			V
a. <u>Electrical connections</u> : CDC				
b. Capacity of panel: Owner				
Interference drawings and on-site conditions require additional lengths of ductwork/insulation.				
Floor layout requires a total of 20,000 cfm air supply but unit is sized at 10,000 cfm.				V
Drains required for refrigerator/freezers shown on equipment schedule but not on drawings. Requires				$\checkmark$

RISK ASSESSMENT GUIDELINE:	A = Contractor's Design Contingency (CDC) B = Unforeseen (Owner's cost) C = Scope Change (Owner's cost) D = Core design functionality (Owner's cost)			
	Α	В	С	D
larger main drain.				
a. <u>Drains</u> : CDC				
b. Main drain size increase: Owner				
New structural openings required (not shown on drawings) in existing or new construction due to new duct risers (shown on drawings.).				
Infilling of existing structural openings found after demolition (not on existing documentation nor properly inferable from such existing documentation)		√		
Shower specified would not fit through door in existing facility.				
Shower specified would not fit through door in new facility. ( <i>Contractor</i> can install prior to installing door).	V			
Owner's food service provider requires changes to M & E services supplying coffee shop.			V	
Sump pit shown on drawings but sump pit cover missing from specification.	V			
Millwork schedule for a patient room shows nothing, but plans show millwork for clothing storage in patient room.	V			
Fan shown on mechanical drawing but not connected on electrical drawings. Connection of fan to closest Motor Control Centre.	V			
Same as 39 but the feeder to Motor Control Centre needs to be modified to suit additional increase in Load.				
Five fire shutters shown, one additional fire shutter required on $6^{th}$ opening adjacent to other five.	V			
Five fire shutters shown, one additional fire shutter required because building inspector interprets building code differently from the consultants and on which basis the building permit was received.		V		

RISK ASSESSMENT GUIDELINE:	A = Contractor's Design Contingency (CDC) B = Unforeseen (Owner's cost) C = Scope Change (Owner's cost) D = Core design functionality (Owner's cost)			
	Α	В	С	D
Mechanical specifications heat wheels as equipment in the <i>Project</i> , but they do not appear on the drawings so quantity and location not known.				V

Note 1: The *Contractor* shall be responsible to meet all codes, regulations, bylaws and standards to the same extent as per industry standard on similar projects in Ontario.

# GC 13.6 HOSPITAL'S PROPERTY INSURANCE

13.6.1 The following chart is a description of the property insurance policies held by the Hospital.

#### POLICIES

[REDACTED]

# GC 13.7 SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

13.7.1 The following chart is a list of all *Subcontractors* and *Suppliers*.

Type of Trade	Name of Subcontractor / Supplier
[REDACTED]	

### GC 13.8 APPENDIX I – BONDS

13.8.1 The attached Appendix I – BONDS sets out required form of performance and labour and material bonds.

Note 2: These examples are illustrative samples of the types of *Design Issues* which may be encountered, and the findings the *Consultant* might reasonably make as to whether the issues are properly characterized as *Contractor's Design Contingency* matters. These examples are not intended to be definitive or complete.

Note 3: It is the intent that *Subcontractors* should also be aware of the *CDC* (*Contractor's Design Contingency*) defined in GC 4.2.

#### SCHEDULE A TO APPENDIX I

#### PERFORMANCE BOND

No.

Bond Amount \$

**BONDFIELD CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED** as Principal (the "Principal"), and **ZURICH INSURANCE COMPANY** a corporation created and existing under the laws of Switzerland and duly authorized to transact the business of Suretyship in Canada as Surety, (the "Surety"), are held and firmly bound unto **PROJECTCO**, **RUNNYMEDE HEALTHCARE CENTRE** (the "Hospital) and **NAME OF LENDER/AGENT**, in its capacity as agent for and on behalf of the Lenders (the "Agent") as Obligees, (Project Co, Hospital and Agent (to the extent it exercises rights under the Lender's Direct Agreement (as referred to in Recital C)) are hereinafter referred to individually as an "Obligee" and collectively as the "Obligees"), in the amount of **BOND AMOUNT IN WORDS - - - - - xx/100 Dollars (\$**) lawful money of Canada, for the payment of which sum the Principal and the Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally.

#### WHEREAS:

A. **PROJECTCO** (the "ProjectCo") has entered into a Guaranteed Price Contract (the "Construction Contract") with the Principal dated the **NO.** day of **MONTH** in the year **2007** for the **construction of the Runnymede Healthcare Centre Redevelopment Project, Toronto, Ontario** (the "Project");

B. Pursuant to a Limited Assignment of Construction Contract (the "Assignment Agreement") between Hospital, ProjectCo and the Principal, ProjectCo has assigned all of its right, title and interest in the Construction Contract to Hospital save and except the obligation to pay the base progress payments to the Principal in accordance with the Construction Contract;

C. Pursuant to a Lender's Direct Agreement (the "Lender's Direct Agreement") between Hospital, ProjectCo and the Principal, the Agent may become entitled to exercise certain rights in connection with the Construction Contract;

D. Pursuant to certain agreements between the Agent, the lenders from time to time party thereto (the "Lenders"), ProjectCo and the Principal, the Lenders are providing the financing for the construction of the Project by way of a loan to ProjectCo;

E. It is a requirement of the Construction Contract that the Principal provide a Performance Bond and a Labour and Material Payment Bond to the Obligees. It is the intention of the Obligees, the Principal and the Surety that this Bond shall not apply to obligations other than those contained in the Construction Contract, and in any event, shall not obligate the Surety to provide the financing for the Project;

F. The Lender's Direct Agreement provides that the Agent may exercise certain rights in the event of default by the Principal pursuant to the Construction Contract and that it may do so to the exclusion of any rights Hospital may have under the Construction Contract, the Lender's Direct Agreement or this Bond. The Principal, Hospital, the Surety and the Agent wish to make it clear herein that if the Agent should exercise such rights, it shall be entitled to be treated as the sole Obligee pursuant to this Bond for the purpose of the Surety discharging its obligations, if any, and, conversely, in the event that Hospital should become entitled to exercise its rights under the Construction Contract, that it will be treated as the sole Obligee pursuant to this Bond for the purpose of the Surety discharging its obligations, if any.

The condition of this obligation is such that if the Principal shall promptly and faithfully perform the Construction Contract then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect.

The expression "Balance of the Construction Contract Price" where used herein means the total amount payable to the Principal under the Construction Contract but excluding the Cost of the Financing, less the amount properly paid to the Principal, including applicable GST to the extent payable to the Principal, but excluding any holdbacks to be retained in compliance with the *Construction Lien Act* (Ontario) until such time as such holdbacks including applicable GST are due to the Principal.

Whenever the Principal shall be, and declared to be, in default under the Construction Contract, the Obligees, or any of them, having performed the Obligees' obligations thereunder (or if the Obligees are in default, Obligees' default in performing the obligations under the Construction Contract having been cured within a reasonable period of time), and for greater certainty neither Hospital or ProjectCo being in default of any of their respective material obligations under the Construction Contract (or any such default being cured within a reasonable period of time) and the Agent and the Hospital having performed and continuing to perform their respective obligations thereunder including as to the payment of the Balance of the Construction Contract Price (it being acknowledged that any portion of the Balance of the Construction Contract Price in respect of Additional Owner Payments under the Construction Contract shall be paid or made available for payment by Hospital and not the Agent) the Surety shall promptly:

- 1) remedy the default, or;
- 2) complete the Construction Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions or;
- 3) obtain a bid or bids for submission to Hospital and the Agent for completing the Construction Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions and upon determination by Hospital and the Agent and the Surety of the lowest responsible bidder, acceptable to Hospital acting reasonably, arrange for a contract between such bidder and the Obligees, or either of them or between such bidder and such other party as the Hospital or the Agent, as applicable, shall be entitled to direct, and the Surety shall make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default, or a succession of defaults, under the contract or contracts of completion, arranged under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay to complete the Principal's obligations in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Construction Contract and to pay those expenses incurred by Hospital and the Agent as a result of the Principal's default relating directly to the performance of the work under the Construction Contract, less the Balance of the Construction Contract Price; but not exceeding the Bond Amount; or
- 4) pay the Hospital or the Agent as the case may be, the lesser of (a) the Bond Amount or (b) the Obligees' proposed cost of completion less the Balance of the Construction Contract Price.

It is agreed by the Obligees, the Principal and the Surety, that in the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and conditions of this Bond and the Construction Contract, the Assignment Agreement or the Lender's Direct Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Bond shall govern.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Construction Contract or the Lender's Direct Agreement, this Bond shall not respond to nor shall the Surety be liable for any claims for damages (actual, liquidated or otherwise and including, without limitations, all fees and expenses of any kind or nature) incurred by the Agent, other than the cost of completing the Principal's obligations under the Construction Contract, as a result of a default by the Principal pursuant to the Construction Contract.

Subject to all of the other terms and conditions of this Bond, in the event that the Agent becomes entitled, pursuant to the Lender's Direct Agreement, to exercise its rights in respect of the Construction Contract on account of a default by the Principal pursuant to the Construction Contract and the Agent has delivered written notice to the Surety of such entitlement, the Surety shall then discharge any obligations it may have hereunder in favour of the Agent only as if the Agent was the sole Obligee pursuant to this Bond.

Subject to all of the other terms and conditions of this bond, in the event that Hospital becomes entitled, pursuant to the Lender's Direct Agreement, to exercise its rights in respect of the Construction Contract on account of a default by the Principal pursuant to the Construction Contract and Hospital has delivered written notice to the Surety of such entitlement, the Surety shall then discharge any obligations it may have hereunder in favour of Hospital only as if Hospital was the sole Obligee pursuant to this Bond.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in the Construction Contract, there shall be no liability on the part of the Surety or the Principal under this Bond to the Obligees, or any of them, unless the Obligees, or any of them, shall make payments to the Principal, or to the Surety in case it arranges for completion of the Construction Contract upon the default of the Principal, of the Balance of the Construction Contract Price as and when due or within a reasonable period of time in the circumstances and all obligations required to be performed by the Obligees under said Construction Contract are performed at the time and in the manner

therein set forth it being acknowledged that any portion of the Balance of the Construction Contract Price in respect of Additional Owner Payments under the Construction Contract shall be paid or made available for payment by the Hospital and not the Agent.

It is a condition of this Bond that any suit or action must be commenced before the expiration of two (2) years from the date of Substantial Performance of the Work as defined in the Construction Contract.

The Surety herby waives notice of any alteration or amendment of the Construction Contract, or any extension of time as specified therein made by the Obligees.

The Surety shall not be liable for a greater sum than the Bond Amount.

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond, to or for the use of, any person or corporation other than the Obligees named herein, or the heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns of the Obligees.

The Surety shall not be discharged or released from liability hereunder and such liability shall not be in any way affected by any changes, alterations, additions, omissions, or variations, taking or receiving of security, or extension of time, or other modification of the Construction Contract, by the exercise by the Obligee of any of the rights or powers reserved to it under the Construction Contract or by its forbearance to exercise any such rights or powers, including (but without restricting the generality of the foregoing) any changes in the extent of the Work under the Construction Contract or by any dealing, transaction, forbearance or forgiveness which may take place between the Principal and the Obligee provided that where the Lender has a right to approve a Change Order or Change Directive pursuant to subsection 4.1(c) of the Lender's Direct Agreement, the Lender shall forward the request therefore to the Surety promptly on receipt and the Surety shall advise the Lender within a period which ends one day earlier than the Response Period (as defined in the Lender's Direct Agreement) if it consents to such Change Order or Change Directive. If the Surety shall be deemed to approve such Change Order or Change Directive, and such Change Order or Change Directive will not relieve the Surety of any of its obligations hereunder.

If the Principal is declared in default under the Construction Contract, recognizing that time is of the essence in rectifying such default, the Surety shall meet with the Obligee within seventy-two (72) hours to explore methods of completing the work under the Construction Contract. If requested to do so by the Obligee, the Surety shall take control of the site to protect and preserve the work, any relevant documents and records and public safety. Thereafter the Surety will promptly elect as provided herein with respect to the default, with a view to ensuring the work shall proceed with minimal interruption.

If there is a dispute as to whether such default has occurred, the Surety agrees to be bound by the determination of such dispute under the relevant provisions of the Construction Contract (such determination to be final and binding) provided that the Surety has been given notice of such declaration and of the intention to resolve the dispute pursuant to such provisions and has been allowed, upon the written application of the Surety, to participate in the proceeding for such determination.

Unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Construction Contract or the Lender's Direct Agreement.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF,** the Principal, ProjectCo, the Obligees and the Surety have Signed and Sealed this Bond this **NO.** day of **MONTH** in the year **2007**.

SIGNED and SEALED in the presence of

#### BONDFIELD CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

# Name, Attorney-In-Fact

Name: Title:

PROJECTCO

#### **RUNNYMEDE HEALTHCARE CENTRE**

Name: Title:

ZURICH INSURANCE COMPANY

#### NAME OF LENDER/AGENT

Name: Title:

# SCHEDULE B TO APPENDIX I LABOUR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND (Trustee Form)

No.

Bond Amount \$

**BONDFIELD CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED** as Principal, hereinafter called the Principal, and **ZURICH INSURANCE COMPANY** a corporation created and existing under the laws of Switzerland and duly authorized to transact the business of Suretyship in Canada as Surety, hereinafter called the Surety, are held and firmly bound unto ***** PROJECTCO., NAME OF LENDER/AGENT, and RUNNYMEDE HEALTHCARE CENTRE ***** as Obligees, collectively referred to as the Obligees, in the amount of **BOND AMOUNT IN WORDS - - -xx/100 dollars** (**\$**) lawful money of Canada, for the payment of which sum the Principal and the Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally.

WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a written contract with **PROJECTCO**, dated the **NO**. day of **MONTH** in the year **2007** for the **construction of the Runnymede Healthcare Centre Redevelopment Project, Toronto, Ontario** in accordance with the Contract Documents submitted, and which are by reference made part hereof and are hereinafter referred to as the Contract.

The Condition of this obligation is such that, if the Principal shall make payment to all Claimants for all labour and material used or reasonably required for use in the performance of the Contract, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect, subject, however, to the following conditions:

- 1. A Claimant for the purpose of this Bond is defined as one having a direct contract with the Principal for labour, material, or both, used or reasonably required for use in the performance of the Contract, labour and material being construed to include that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service or rental equipment directly applicable to the Contract provided that a person, firm or corporation who rents equipment to the Principal to be used in the performance of the Contract under a contract which provides that all or any part of the rent is to be applied towards the purchase price thereof, shall only be a Claimant to the extent of the prevailing industrial rental value of such equipment for the period during which the equipment was used in the performance of the Contract. The prevailing industrial rental value of equipment shall be determined, insofar as it is practical to do so, by the prevailing rates in the equipment marketplace in which the work is taking place.
- 2. The Principal and the Surety, hereby jointly and severally agree with the Obligees, as Trustee, that every Claimant who has not been paid as provided for under the terms of its contract with the Principal, before the expiration of a period of ninety (90) days after the date on which the last of such Claimant's work or labour was done or performed or materials were furnished by such Claimant, may as a beneficiary of the trust herein provided for, sue on this Bond, prosecute the suit to final judgment for such sum or sums as may be justly due to such Claimant under the terms of its contract with the Principal and have execution thereon. Provided that the Obligees are not obliged to do or take any act, action or proceeding against the Surety on behalf of the Claimants, or any of them, to enforce the provisions of this Bond. If any act, action or proceeding is taken either in the name of the Obligees or by joining the Obligees as a party to such proceeding, then such act, action or proceeding shall be taken on the understanding and basis that the Claimants, or any of them, who take such act, action or proceeding shall indemnify and save harmless the Obligees against all costs, charges and expenses or liabilities incurred thereon and any loss or damage resulting to the Obligees by reason thereof. Provided still further that, subject to the foregoing terms and conditions, the Claimants, or any of them may use the name of the Obligees to sue on and enforce the provisions of this Bond.

- 3. It is a condition precedent to the liability of the Surety under this Bond that such Claimant shall have given written notice as hereinafter set forth to each of the Principal, the Surety and the Obligees, stating with substantial accuracy the amount claimed, and that such Claimant shall have brought suit or action in accordance with this Bond, as set out in sub-clauses 3 (b) and 3 (c) below, Accordingly, no suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by any Claimant:
  - a) unless such notice shall be served by mailing the same by registered mail to the Principal, the Surety and the Obligees, at any place where an office is regularly maintained for the transaction of business by such persons or served in any manner in which legal process may be served in the Province or Territory in which the subject matter of the Contract is located. Such notice shall be given.
    - in respect of any claim for the amount or any portion thereof, required to be held back from the Claimant by the Principal, under either the terms of the Claimant's contract with the Principal, or under the lien Legislation applicable to the Claimant's contract with the Principal, whichever is the greater, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after such Claimant should have been paid in full under the Claimant's contract with the Principal;
    - ii) in respect of any claim other than for the holdback, or portion thereof, referred to above, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the date upon which such Claimant did, or performed, the last of the work or labour or furnished the last of the materials for which such claim is made under the Claimant's contract with the Principal;
  - b) after the expiration of one (1) year following the date on which the Principal ceased work on the Contract, including work performed under the guarantees provided in the Contract;
  - c) other than in a Court of competent jurisdiction in the Province or Territory in which the work described in the Contract is to be installed or delivered as the case may be and not elsewhere, and the parties hereto agree to submit to the jurisdiction of such Court.
- 4. The Surety agrees not to take advantage of Article 2365 of the Civil Code of the Province of Quebec in the event that, by an act or an omission of a Claimant, the Surety can no longer be subrogated in the rights, hypothec and privileges of said Claimant.
- 5. Any material change in the contract between the Principal and the Obligees shall not prejudice the rights or interest of any Claimant under this Bond, who is not instrumental in bringing about or has not caused such change.
- 6. The amount of this Bond shall be reduced by, and to the extent of any payment or payments made in good faith, and in accordance with the provisions hereof, inclusive of the payment by the Surety of claims made under the applicable lien legislation or legislation relating to legal hypothecs, whether or not such claim is presented under and against this Bond.
- 7. The Surety shall not be liable for a greater sum than the Bond Amount.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF,** the Principal, the Obligees and the Surety have Signed and Sealed this Bond dated **NO.** day of **MONTH** in the year **2007**.

SIGNED and SEALED in the presence of

#### BONDFIELD CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED

#### ZURICH INSURANCE COMPANY

Name: Title: Name, Attorney-In-Fact

# PROJECTCO

Name: Title:

# **RUNNYMEDE HEALTHCARE CENTRE**

Name: Title:

#### NAME OF LENDER/AGENT

Name: Title:

#### GC 13.9 REVISIONS TO THE WORK

- 13.9.1 The Contractor and the Hospital acknowledge that revisions to the Work (the "Revisions to the Work") negotiated prior to the execution and delivery of the Project Agreement at Commercial Close (as defined in the Project Agreement) resulted in a decrease in the Guaranteed Price from that contained in the RFP Submission. For greater certainty the Revisions to the Work includes any other additional work that may arise from or as a direct consequence of implementing the Revisions to the Work. The Revisions to the Work which resulted in such decrease to the Guaranteed Price (and for clarity, the Guaranteed Price set out in Section 2.8 of the Project Agreement at Commercial Close is the decreased Guaranteed Price) have been set out in a post-award addendum issued by the Consultant. Acceptance of the Revisions to the Work by the Hospital was on the basis of the following agreements of the Contractor:
  - .1 The *Contractor* is responsible for all costs of all re-design and engineering work, which redesign and engineering work shall be undertaken by the *Consultant*, and all associated costs to prepare and implement the *Revisions to the Work*. For greater certainty the *Contractor* is responsible for any other additional work and any other re-design and engineering work that may arise from or as a direct consequence of implementing the *Revisions to the Work*. The *Hospital* shall direct the *Consultant* to complete all such re-design and engineering work and the *Contractor* shall pay the *Hospital* for the cost thereof within 30 days of delivery of the *Hospital's* invoice to the *Contractor*.
  - .2 The *Contractor* agrees that the changes in the foundation work (forming part of the *Revisions to the Work*), will not in any way disrupt the operational and delivery activities along the north side or any other areas of the existing *Hospital* roadways.